
 
 

  
 
 

Customers and Corporate 
Directorate 
DDaavviidd  WWiillccoocckk  

HHeeaadd  ooff  LLeeggaall  aanndd  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  RReeffoorrmm  
Governance  & Committee Services 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
 
Phone: 01706 647474 
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee 

Enquiries to: Sian Walter-Browne 
Telephone:  01706924701 
Date: Friday, 13 February 2015 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
You are requested to attend the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee to be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Monday, 23 February 2015 
commencing at 6.15 pm. 
 
The agenda and supporting papers are attached.  
 
If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputies or staff in the 
Governance and Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
 

David Wilcock 
Head of Legal and Governance Reform 
 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee Membership 2014/15 
Councillor Shakil Ahmed 
Councillor Andy Bell 
Councillor Surinder Biant 
Councillor Susan Emmott 
Councillor John Hartley 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill 
Councillor Peter Rush 
Councillor Billy Sheerin 
Councillor Ann Stott JP 
Councillor Patricia Sullivan 
Councillor June West 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
 

Rochdale Borough Council 
 

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 23 February 2015 at 6.15 pm 
 

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Apologies for Absence 

1. Apologies   

2. Declarations of Interest  1 - 3 

 Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.   
 
Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting. 
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct. 

 

3. Minutes  4 - 5 

4. Nomination of Deputy Mayor 2015/2016  6 - 8 

5. Gambling Act 2005 - Fees  9 - 23 

6. Implications of the approach to licensing of Hackney Carriage 
vehicles adopted by Rossendale Borough Council  

24 - 39 

7. Constitutional Review  40 - 172 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 2



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25
TH

 JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 

PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS). 

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE 

MEETING AND DATE 

 

……………………………. 

 

Agenda item 

Indicate either 

• Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR 

• Personal Interest OR 

• Personal and Prejudicial interest 

Nature of Interest 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 

LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE. 

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING 

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners. 
 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain 
 

Sponsorship 
 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.   

Contracts 
 

Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council -  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land 
 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council. 

Licences 
 

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer. 

Corporate Tenancies 
 

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) -  
(a) the landlord is the Council: and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where - 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and 
(b) either – 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
Personal Interests 
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect -  
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority; 
(b)  any body - 

(i)  exercising functions of a public nature; 
(ii)  directed to charitable purposes; or 
(iii)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union),  
of which you are in a position of general control or management; 
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25. 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would  reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business - 
(a)  Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or 
 (b)  Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above. 
 
 
MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE 
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25

TH
 JULY 2012. 

 Page 3



 

 

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Monday, 26 January 2015 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Susan Emmott (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Bell, 
Surinder Biant, Hartley, O'Neill, Rush, Sheerin, Sullivan and West 
 
OFFICERS: Rebecca Coley, Rachel Carney and Daniela Ripa (Economy and 
Environment), Noel Scanlon and Sian Walter-Browne (Customers and Corporate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Approximately 30 members of the public 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Stott 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
134 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
MINUTES 
135 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12th January 2015 were 
approved. 
 
 
OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION (INCLUDING MEANS OF ACCESS) FOR THE 
ERECTION OF 70 DWELLINGS 
136 The Director of Economy and Environment reported on submitted planning 
application 14/01209/OUT for outline planning permission (including means of 
access) for the erection of 70 dwellings on land at Dean Farm, Badger Lane, 
Rochdale OL16 4RQ.  
  
There were approximately 30 objectors present, and their representatives and the 
agent for the applicant addressed the Committee. 
 
It was moved and seconded that the Committee grant planning permission in 
accordance with the recommendation contained in the report. This motion was put to 
the vote and was LOST 
 
It was moved and seconded that planning permission be refused on the basis that 
the access to the site via Gill Brook Way was not satisfactory and the development 
would lead to unacceptable traffic on Oldham Road. This motion was put to the vote 
and there were equal numbers of votes in favour and against. The Chairman 
exercised her casting vote and the motion was LOST 
 
It was moved and seconded that the Committee grant planning permission in 
accordance with the recommendation contained in the report. This motion was put to 
the vote and there were equal numbers of votes in favour and against. The Chairman 
exercised her casting vote and the motion was CARRIED.  
 
DECIDED – that (1) the Committee is minded to grant planning permission 
subject to the conditions set out within the submitted report, and subject to the 
completion of a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act to secure:- 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 

 

a) an appropriate contribution to recreational open space within the Borough I 
accordance with Policy H/6 of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan 
and associated Supplementary Planning Document and 
b) an appropriate contribution to affordable housing in accordance with Policy 
H/7of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and associated 
Supplementary Planning Document 
 
(2) the Head of Planning be authorised to issue the decision notice upon 
completion of the planning obligation to secure the above purposes. 
 
 

Page 5



 
 

  
 
Subject:  Nomination of Deputy Mayor 
2015/2016  

Status: For Publication 

Report to: Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Neil Emmott 
 

Date: Monday, 23 February 2015 
  

Report of: Head of Legal and Governance 
Reform 
 
Author Email:  peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

Author: Peter Thompson 
 
Tel: Tel: 01706 924715 

 
Comments from Statutory 
Officers: 

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No 
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No  

Key Decision: No    
 
1 Purpose of the report 

1.1 To invite nomination to the position of Deputy Mayor for the 2015/2016 Municipal 
Year. 
 

2 Recommendations 
2.1 The Committee is asked to recommend to Council a nomination for the office of 
Deputy Mayor for 2015/2016 on behalf of the Labour Group. 
 

 
3 Background 
 
3.1 The formula as agreed by Council for the nomination to the position of Deputy Mayor 

is as follows: 
 "After every election (i.e. May each year or in the fourth year the date of the County 

Council Elections) one point be allocated to every Member of the Council and the 
Party having the highest number of points nominates the Deputy Mayor for the next 
Municipal Year, i.e. twelve months hence.  After the next election, further points be 
credited according to the representation, but points equal to the total number of 
Members of Council, i.e. 60 be deducted from the total of the Party which last 
nominated the Deputy Mayor.  This procedure of crediting and debiting points be 
continued after each election to maintain a running total". 

 
3.2 The Finance Committee agreed on 17th September 1981 that a point would be 

awarded to the successful Party at a by-election where the seat was vacant at the May 
elections or in the fourth year the date of the County Council elections.  The 
Regulatory Committee on 5th March 2002 decided that in the event of a tie in the 
numbers of points allocated to the groups under the procedure, the group with the 
highest number of seats of the Council will nominate the Deputy Mayor.   

 
3.3 The present position with regard to the allocation of points is as follows: 
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
Event Conservative Labour Liberal Democrat Rochdale 

First 
     
Position at 2006/07 -20 9 5  
     
May 2007 elections 8 20 30  
Deputy Mayor: Cllr Parker  -60   
 -12 -31 35  
     
May 2008 elections 8 18 33  
Deputy Mayor: Cllr Swift   -60  
 -4 -13 8  
     
May 2009 – no elections 8 18 32  
Deputy Mayor: Cllr Zulfiqar 
Ali 

  -60  

 4 5 -20  
     
May 2010 elections 11 22 26  
Deputy Mayor: Cllr Godson  -60   
 15 -33 6  
     
May 2011 elections 17 31 12  
Deputy Mayor:  Cllr James 
Gartside 

-60    

 -28 -2 18  
     
May 2012 elections 13 42 5  
Deputy Mayor:  Cllr Rush   -60  
 -15 40 -55  
     
May 2013 – no election                      12 42 5  

 
 

Deputy Mayor: Cllr Wardle  -60   
 -3 22 -50  
     
May 2014 elections 11 46 1 2 
Deputy Mayor: Cllr Surinder 
Biant 

    

     
 
3.3 Following the procedure outlined above, the Labour Group is entitled to nominate the 

Deputy Mayor for 2015/16. 
 

 
Alternatives considered 
3. None.  This report applies a formula as agreed by the Council. 

 
4 Financial Implications 

4.1 None.  
 
5   Legal Implications 

5.1 None 
 

6  Personnel Implications 

Page 7



 
 

6.1 None 
 
7. Equalities Impacts 

7.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
7.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report. 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 8



 
 

  
 
Subject:  Gambling Act 2005 - Fees Status: For Publication 

Report to: Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Cecile Biant 
 

Date: Monday, 23 February 2015 
  

Report of: Director of Economy & Environment 
 
Author Email:    
beverley.wilkinson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Beverley Wilkinson 
 
Tel: Tel: 01706 924178 

 
Comments from Statutory 
Officers: 

Monitoring Officer:   Yes 
Section 151 Officer: Yes  

Key Decision:     
 
1 Purpose of the report 

1.1  To allow Members to determine the scale of fees to be charged under  
        the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

2 Recommendations 
2.1  From the 1st April 2015 Members adopt the maximum level of fees  
       chargeable   under the Gambling Act 2005 (these fees being attached to  
       this report as Appendix A). 
 
2.2  A report will be presented to this Committee prior to  April 2016, providing a  
       review of the Gambling Act licensing fee levels and the income generated. 
 

 Recommendations 
2.3  To enable the Council to meet its statutory duty to set appropriate fees, on a  
       full  cost recovery basis only, in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005  
       Section 212 (2)(d). 
 
2.4  Outlined in the report is some of the work the Licensing Section has undertaken. 

 
3 Background 

3.1  The Gambling Act 2005 contains provision for Licensing Authorities to set their 
own fees, with certain caveats. At its meeting on the 27th November 2006, the 
Cabinet delegated responsibility for the setting of fees to the Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee.  

 
3.2  Fees must be set for all types of premises licences: 

Ø Casinos 
Ø Bingo 
Ø Betting (off –course) 
Ø Tracks (on-course betting) 
Ø Adult Gaming Centres 
Ø Family Entertainment Centres 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
 

3.3      The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 
came into force on the 21st May 2007. These Regulations outline the maximum 
fees that are permitted to be charged by Licensing Authorities to enable full 
cost recovery. A list of the maximum fees chargeable is set out in Appendix A. 
to this report. 

 
3.4   Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Licensing Authority is also responsible for 

dealing with the following permits and registrations: 
Ø Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine 

Permits 
Ø Registration of Small Lottery Licences 
Ø Club Gaming Machine Permits 
Ø Licensed Premises Gaming machine Permits 
Ø Prize Gaming Permits 

 
3.5 This Authority has charged the maximum fees from the first year of licensing, 

and this report invites members to continue charging at this level, however it is 
also recommended that a report be brought before Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee in 12 months’ time, to inform Members of the level of fee income                      
and to seek endorsement for continuing with this approach. For those 
Authorities who keep their charges at maximum, Local Authorities have been 
warned in the past that such decisions could be challenged by the industry, and 
could lead to judicial review. 

 
  If members agree to charge maximum levels, the table below provides some 
  indication of the annual income expected to be achieved in respect of gambling 
  premises licences this year. 
 
   

Premises 
Type 

No. 
Premises 

Maximum 
Annual 
Fee 

Transfer 
Fee 

New 
Application(provisional 
statement holder) 

Total 
Annual 
Fee 
Income 

Bingo Halls 3 £1,000 - - £3,000 

Betting Shops 35 £600 - - £21,000 

Adult Gaming 
Centres 

9 £1,000 - - £9,000 

Family 
Entertainment 
Centres 

1 £750 - - £750 

Track Betting - - - - - 

Total 48 - - - £33,750 

 
 
3.6 This report sets out a number of areas of activity which have been undertaken 
  during the past 12 months. Members may wish to be aware of this activity in 
  considering whether to charge maximum fee level. 
 
3.7 During the last 12 months we have processed the premises licence annual 
  fees; this has been predominantly an administrative function. The collection of 
  fees has not been too problematic, because the legislation allows the Local 
  Authority to revoke a licence for the non-payment of the annual fee (s193). 
 
3.8 During this year we have carried out enforcement inspections to all the  
  gambling premises in the borough, at the time of the inspection all premises 
  were compliant. We have also liaised with the Gambling Commission over 
  issues in relation to gambling premises. A joint initiative with the Gambling 

Page 10



 
 

  Commission Compliance Officer was carried out which involved a full  
  compliance check of betting premises, one betting shop was found to be  
  issuing incorrect betting slips and there was wrong signage within the  
  premise, this was subsequently rectified following further visits. 
 
3.9 The Licensing Enforcement staff have been carrying out visits to licensed  
  premises under the Licensing Act 2003. Whilst carrying out these visits officers 
  have been checking that the premise has the correct number of gaming  
  machines in relation to the notification of permit. To date there has been a high 
  level of compliance, the only issues that have arisen on occasion is where the 
  machines are located on the premises. We have also dealt with requests to 
  increase number of gaming machines on licensed premises. The staff at the 
  premise needs to be able to monitor the machines to ensure that children are 
  not playing on them and that they are not being tampered with.   
 
3.10 The Gambling Commission will be delivering training to Licensing staff which 
  will then be followed up with practical compliance checks overseen by the 
  Commission; Licensing Officers will be checking gaming machines and fixed 
  odds betting terminals, in betting premises and public houses. 
 
3.11 Within the borough we have had removed all gaming machines from taxi bases 
  and takeaways, in the past they had been attracting youths to the premises to 
  play on them which is illegal and we needed to ensure child protection. 

 
Alternatives considered 
3.12 None. 

 
4 Financial Implications 

4.1 None. 
 
5   Legal Implications 

5.1 As indicated at paragraph 3.3 above the Council may only set fees at a level 
necessary to cover the costs of providing a gambling licensing service in the 
Borough. There is a risk of challenge if fees are set at too high a level than is 
necessary to cover costs.  

 
6  Personnel Implications 

6.1 None. 
 
7 Corporate Priorities 

7.1 The following priorities from the Corporate Plan 2014/2015 are relevant to this 
 report: People –Safeguarding children and adults from harm. 

 
8. Risk Assessment Implications  

8.1 Failure to inspect and regulate businesses in accordance with gambling 
 legislation could lead to an increase in problem gambling within the borough. 
 
  Failure to charge the maximum level of fee will negatively impact the amount of 
 regulatory work undertaken. 
 

9. Equalities Impacts 
9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 
There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report. 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

Premises Licence Fees 

 

Premises Type New Application Annual  Fee 

 

 £ £ 

Existing Casinos n/a 3000 

New Small Casino 8000 5000 

New Large Casino 10000 10000 

Regional Casino 15000 15000 

 

 

Bingo Club 

 

3500 1000 

Betting Premises 
(excluding Tracks) 

3000 600 

Tracks 2500 1000 

Family 
Entertainment 
Centres 

2000 750 

Adult Gaming 
Centre 

2000 1000 

   

 

 Application  
to Vary 

Application   
to Transfer 

Application 
for  Re-

Instatement 

Application 
for 

Provisional 
Statement 

Licence 
Application 
(provisional 
Statement 
holders 

Copy 
Licence 

Notification  
of  Change 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Existing Casinos 2000  1350 1350 n/a n/a 25 50 

New Small Casino  4000  1800  1800  8000 3000 25 50 

New large Casino  5000 2150 2150 10000  5000 25 50 

Regional Casino 7500 6500 6500  15000 8000 25 50 

Bingo Club 1750 1200 1200  3500 1200 25  50 

Betting Premises 
(excluding Tracks) 

 1500 1200  1200 3000 1200 25 50 

Tracks 1250 950 950  2500 950 25 50 

Family 
Entertainment 
Centres 

 1000 950 950 2000 950 25 50 

Page 12



 
 

Adult Gaming 
Centre 

 

 1000 1200  1200 2000 

 

 1200 25 25 

 

Page 13



1 

 

 

APPENDIX  

Equality Impact Assessment 

  

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below. 

 

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below 

√     

 

 

Service: 

 

Section:  

 

Responsible Officer: 

 

 

 

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed: 

Regulatory work arising from Gambling Act 2005 

 

 

Date of Assessment: 

08/01/2015 

Officers Involved: 

A Glover 

B Wilkinson 

 

 

 

Page 14



2 

 

 

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed? 

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project) 

 

The Gambling Act 2005 imposes a duty on local authorities to regulate local premises in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act. It also obliges  local authorities to set fees to cover the cost of administration and 
regulation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.Who are the key stakeholders? 

 

Residents of the Borough, elected members, public protection staff, owners of gambling premises, Gambling 
Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 

assessment.   

This equality impact assessment covers the proposal to charge at the maximum level permitted by the Act , 
and regulatory work undertaken as a result. 

Page 15



3 

 

 

 

 

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet? 

 

The setting of fees and undertaking regulatory work is a statutory duty for the local authority as is 
appropriate regulatory work under gambling legislation. The Council works closely with key external partners 
such as the Gambling Commission (e.g. carrying out joint test purchasing exercises). 

 

 

 

 

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken? 

In 2013 the campaign for Fairer Gambling concluded that, within the area of Rochdale Borough, there were 
137 Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBT’s) played by 6,800  local residents. Each player was said to lose 
around £800 per annum on average. The total amount wagered on FOBT’s during 2013  was estimated at 
nearly £153 million per annum, equating to  £721 per resident of the Borough. The equivalent figure per 
resident for Oldham was £697, for Bolton £686, and for Manchester£968. 

 

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project? 

 

All residents of the Borough who engage in gambling with licensed operators. 

Evidence from NatCen Social Research (2012) indicates that 441 of problem gamblers have difficulty paying 
other debts such as household bills. There is a clear relationship between gambling related harm and 
financial difficulty. 

 

 

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 

who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology. 

This report is submitted  to elected members on an annual basis. 

 

Page 16



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  

What action will be taken to close any data gaps? 

 

Please see data referred to above, e.g. from the Campaign for Fairer Gambling and NatCen Social 
Research. 

 

 

 

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 

include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available. 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 

includes both positive and potentially negative impacts. 

 

Race Equality  

 

There is no suggestion that any social group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

Page 17



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disabled People 

There is no suggestion that any  group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

 

 

Carers 

 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

 

Gender 

 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

Age 

Anyone over the age of 18 can gamble, there is no evidence to suggest that people of certain ages gamble 
more than others. 

Page 18



6 

 

 

 

 

 

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

Sexual Orientation 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

 

 

Gender Reassignment 

 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

 

 

Religion or Belief 

 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

Page 19



7 

 

 

 

 

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave 

 

 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 

There is no suggestion that any group uses gambling premises more than any other. 

 

 

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis? 

 

There is a lack of information available in relation to local gambling.  There is a statutory duty placed upon 
the local authority to enforce. 

 

 

 

 

12.What are your recommendations? 

 

To set the fee levels at maximum and undertake the administrative and regulatory work. To continue to work 
with partner agencies such as the Gambling Commission. 

 

 

 

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 

Page 20



8 

 

action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________ 

 

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________ 

 

  

Page 21



9 

 

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2014/15 
 

 

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion 

Resource 
Implications 

Lead Officer 

 
 
Continue to work with 
Gambling Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Joint inspections and 
regulatory work 

 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
None 

 
 
AG/BW 

P
age 22



10 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 23



 
 

   
 
Subject:  Implications of the approach to 
licensing of Hackney Carriage vehicles adopted by 
Rossendale Borough Council 
   

Status: For Publication 

Report to: Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Susan 
EmmottCecile Biant  
 

Date: Monday, 23 February 2015 
  

Report of: Director of Economy & Environment 
 
Author Email:    andy.glover@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Andy Glover 
 
Tel: Tel: 01706 924105 

 
Comments from Statutory 
Officers: 

Monitoring Officer:   Yes 
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision:     
 
1 Purpose of the report 

1.1   This report is intended to update members of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee on the implications for this authority of the policy adopted by 
Rossendale Borough Council in relation to the licensing of Hackney Carriage 
vehicles.   

 
 

2 Recommendations 
 

2.1   The Licensing and Regulatory Committee is requested to: 
 
2.1.1 note the implications for this authority (as set out in section 5 below) of the 

approach to the licensing of Hackney Carriage vehicles adopted by Rossendale 
Borough Council; 

 
2.1.2 consider whether, in light of the implications identified for Rochdale Council, an 

approach should be made to Rossendale Council with a view to seeking a 
reversal of that authority’s current policy.  This approach could be made: 

•    at officer level; or 

•    this report having been submitted to (i) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and (ii) Cabinet, via the Leader of the Council (possibly in conjunction with 
other AGMA authorities);  

 
2.1.3 in addition (or alternatively), an approach could be made to other sub-regional 

bodies such as the Combined Authority, in order to assess the impact of this 
approach across Greater Manchester and consider a collective way forward.  
Furthermore, an approach could be made to the Local Government Association 
to seek their views on the matter;  

  
2.1.4 consider whether this Committee would wish to see an Intended Use Policy 

drawn up and presented to it for future consideration (paragraph 7.3 below); and  

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 
2.1.5 consider whether members of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee would 

support introducing a more robust approach towards operators who employ 
drivers who hold a Hackney Carriage licence in another area but operate as a 
Private Hire driver within the area of Rochdale Council (that approach being set 
out in paragraph 7.2 below).    

 
 
 
3 Reason for this report 
 

3.1   At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 December 2014, 
members considered an update on Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).  During this 
discussion, reference was made to the policy adopted by Rossendale Borough 
Council (discussed in more detail later in this report) and the implications which 
the Rossendale approach may have for this authority.  As a result, it was 
requested that officers prepare a report on the Rossendale approach.  With the 
agreement of the Chair of Licensing and Regulatory Committee, it was agreed 
that a report would initially be prepared for consideration by the Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee, which may then consider whether to send the report on 
for consideration by other committees (including Overview and Scrutiny and/or 
Cabinet).   

 
4          Background information  
 

4.1   Under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, local 
authorities in England (including District Councils) are empowered to licence 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles.  However, each local authority is 
required to introduce its own criteria in relation to the issuing of licences by that 
district. 

 
4.2    Hackney Carriages are amongst the oldest form of transport.  The principal 

activities which a Hackney Carriage can undertake are:  

• to carry passengers for hire and reward; 

• they can be hailed by members of the public; and 

• they can wait on a rank to be hired by members of the public. 
  

 However, pre-booked Hackney Carriages can accept bookings for journeys 
which start outside the district in which the vehicle is licensed, and such journeys 
do not have to pass through or end in the district in which the vehicle is licensed.  
This loop hole in the law has been exploited by individuals to obtain from a local 
authority a Hackney Carriage vehicle and a driver licence, and then work in 
another district for a private hire operator who supplies them with bookings. 

 
4.3    In contrast, a Private Hire vehicle cannot ply for hire or stand on a rank. It must 

be pre-booked with a Private Hire operator. 
 
4.4    As outlined above a Hackney Carriage vehicle can carry passengers for hire and 

reward by pre- booking.  Many of Rochdale Borough’s Hackney Carriages 
receive bookings via Private hire operators. It is possible to identify by way of 
advertisement on the vehicle which operator they are working with.  To illustrate 
this, photographs are attached as Appendix 1. 

 
4.5    Rochdale Borough Council has a Hackney Carriage vehicle colour policy, ie 

London type and wheelchair accessible vehicles have to be black in colour; 
saloon type cars have to be white.  The Rossendale Borough Council licensed 

Page 25



 
 

Hackney Carriage vehicles are not restricted in colour and blend into this 
Council’s private hire fleet. As a member of the public, you would not 
immediately identify that you were travelling in a vehicle not licensed by this 
Council. 

 
4.6    There is case law on this issue where a similar situation arose from that which 

we are now experiencing.  In the case of R. (on the application of Newcastle City 
Council) v Berwick-Upon-Tweed Borough Council & Others [2008], the judge 
made the following statements in his judgement: 

 
          a) “It must be desirable for an authority issuing licences to hackney carriage to 

be able to restrict the issuing of those licences to proprietors and drivers 
which are intending to ply for hire in that authority’s area”  

          b) “A local authority, properly directing itself, is entitled, and indeed obliged….to 
have regard to whether in fact the applicant intends to use that hackney 
carriage predominantly, or entirely, remotely from the authority’s area” 

        c) “It was the intention behind the licensing system that it should operate in such 
a way that the authority licensing hackney carriages is the authority for the 
area in which those vehicles are generally used”  

 
4.7    A Hackney Carriage vehicle licensed in one authority is able to work in the area 

of another local authority, but will be classed as a Private Hire vehicle when 
working outside its area.  This means that drivers may apply to one authority 
(such as Rossendale Borough Council) for a Hackney Carriage licence, and 
work in another area where they do not hold a licence (such as Rochdale 
Council) as a Private Hire driver.    

 
 
5       Policy adopted by Rossendale Borough Council in relation to licensing of 

Hackney Carriage vehicles 
 
5.1    It is acknowledged that, in licensing Hackney Carriage vehicles, Rossendale  

Borough Council adopts a lower standard than that adopted in this authority.  
Examples of this include: 

• less rigorous assessment of language skills; 

• less rigorous approach to area knowledge (eg acceptance of reliance on 
“satnav” devices;  

• reliance on DBS checks to see whether an applicant satisfies the statutory “fit 
and proper” test (when experience has shown this authority that soft 
intelligence – not appearing on the DBS – may be of real relevance here);and 

• less training on matters of safeguarding.   
 
6   Implications of the Rossendale Borough Council approach for this authority 
 
6.1    Whilst difficult to quantify, it is estimated that numerous drivers who are licensed 

with Rossendale Borough Council as Hackney Carriage drivers have begun work 
as Private Hire drivers in this Borough.  In contrast, officers perceive that a 
significant number of drivers previously licensed with Rochdale Borough Council 
have ended their relationship with this Council and are now licensed with 
Rossendale Borough Council.  (Again, this precise number is impossible to 
quantify but may be up to 100).       

 
6.2    As a result, the following implications for this Council have been identified: 

 
 
 

Page 26



 
 

 
6.2.1 CSE 
 
         Rochdale Council has clearly worked very hard to improve its safeguarding 

arrangements in relation to CSE, and the Licensing Section has been at the 
forefront of this revised approach.  It is apparent that all licensed Hackney 
carriage and Private Hire members will frequently come into contact with 
vulnerable members of the community at all hours of the day and night, and as 
such, officers have worked hard to ensure that standards of driver probity are 
now as good as anywhere in the country.  Members have seen reports 
identifying the changes made to procedures in light of Operation Span, including: 

 

• amendments to the Convictions Policy to allow greater use of “soft” 
intelligence;  

• introduction of ex parte hearings to allow sensitive information to be presented 
to the Licensing Panel; 

• a more robust approach to decision making which has led to the revocation of 
numerous licences (often successfully defended on appeal to the higher 
courts); and 

• introduction of an improved coaching session and additional driver training on 
CSE matters. 

 
However, all these local benefits are undermined by a policy adopted by a 
neighbouring authority, which allows drivers over whom this authority has no 
control, to operate on a regular basis in this Borough. Indeed, anecdotally it is 
suspected that the application of less rigorous standards applied by another 
Borough is one of the reasons that this authority is experiencing a migration in 
licensed drivers from this Council.    
 
Rochdale Council only has legal control over those drivers which it licences, and 
our robust approach to any CSE activities by Rochdale-licensed drivers is 
mentioned above.  Any driver licensed by an authority other than Rochdale falls 
outside our legal jurisdiction, and this authority would be unable to take action 
against such a driver’s licence (eg revocation, suspension or the addition of 
conditions) should that driver’s fall below the standards expected of licence 
holders in this Borough.      

 
6.2.2 Customer Care 
 
         Many drivers licensed elsewhere but operating in this Borough will have a lack of 

familiarity with the area.  Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale 
Borough Council operating in this Borough often have to resort to inputting a 
postcode into a satnav device; they have not completed the area knowledge test 
which this authority requires its applicants to undergo, and indeed may have no 
connection to this Borough (other than being entitled to drive here through their 
Rossendale Borough Council licence).  Residents have reported that the 
language skills of Rossendale Borough Council’s Hackney Carriage drivers are 
often poor, making communication difficult.   

 
6.2.3 Financial 
   

It is impossible to precisely determine the loss of income caused by migration to 
Rossendale Borough Council, as it is not easy to define precisely the number of 
drivers who have migrated to that authority (as opposed to abandoning their 
licence for other reasons).  However, Rossendale Borough Council’s approach 
will have a financial impact on the revenue streams of this authority.   

Page 27



 
 

 
It can also be confirmed that neighbouring authorities are reporting an annual fall 
of up to £100k on their licensing income stream, much of which is attributed to 
the actions of Rossendale Borough Council. 
 
   

7     The AGMA dimension 
 
7.1    Rossendale and Rochdale Councils are geographical neighbours, so this 

authority was always likely to be severely impacted by the Rossendale practices 
highlighted in this report.  However, the concerns outlined in this report are not 
just common to this authority; they are being experienced by other authorities 
across the Greater Manchester sub-region, at least one of whom is impacted to 
at least the same extent as ourselves.  For this reason, an approach to sub-
regional bodies (such as the executive leadership of the Combined Authority) or 
national bodies (such as the Local Government Association) may be an 
appropriate next step.   

 
7.2    As a result, one AGMA authority is proposing to adopt the following approach in 

order to (i) reflect concern at the ongoing situation and (ii) bring some pressure 
to bear on licensed operators with a view to discouraging their use of Hackney 
Carriage drivers licensed outside the authority.   The suggested approach is that 
Private Hire operators in this Borough could be obliged to install an additional 
telephone line, through which all bookings of Rossendale-licensed vehicles must 
be made.  Alternatively, all Private Hire operators in this Borough could be 
obliged to declare to a potential customer at the time of booking that the vehicle 
supplied is not licensed by Rochdale Borough Council.  Members are asked to 
consider whether they would wish to see a further report on this approach 
presented to them at a future meeting. 

 
7.3    In order to ensure that this Council is beyond criticism that it is preventing drivers 

from working beyond its borders, it is possible to introduce an Intended Use 
Policy; this would oblige holders of a Hackney Carriage driver’s licence in this 
Borough to give written confirmation that they would not seek to work beyond the 
borders of this authority on a regular basis.  Should this written agreement not be 
adhered to, appropriate enforcement action could then be taken.  Such an 
approach has been adopted by other authorities across the North West, and the 
Committee is invited to consider whether such an approach would be beneficial 
in Rochdale Borough Council.  If so, a report will be brought to a future meeting 
of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee.    

 
8       Conclusion 
 
8.1    In summary, the approach to the licensing of Hackney Carriage vehicles adopted 

by Rossendale Borough Council has significant implications for neighbouring 
authorities (including Rochdale Borough Council). These implications are 
financial, as there will be an impact on revenue for the authority; but even more 
significantly the implications are reputational and are essentially a matter of 
public safety.  Given the lengths this authority has gone to in countering Child 
Sexual Exploitation, it is unacceptable for this progress to be undermined by the 
actions of another local authority.     

 
Alternatives considered 
A united response to this situation has been considered across AGMA (and 
Lancashire County’s District Councils) for some time, but it has not yet proved possible 
to secure collective agreement.   

Page 28



 
 

 
Individual authorities have tried specific approaches such as authorising their officers 
to enforce against Hackney Carraige vehicles licensed by Rossendale Borough 
Council.  This resulted in the authority doing a full investigation (taking statements, 
carrying out interviews etc) but then having to hand the file over to the Licensing 
Authority (Rossendale Borough Council) for action to be taken.  The perception is that 
robust action was not taken by Rossendale Borough Council in these instances.  This 
work was undertaken by the investigating authority without the benefit of any income 
stream coming into that authority.     
 

8 Financial Implications 
 

8.1 It is hoped to gather evidence by the date of the Committee to show that the 
number of Private Hire drivers licensed with Rochdale Borough Council has 
declined over 2014/15.  Whilst it cannot be conclusively shown that this is 
attributable to the Rossendale scenario, it is a reasonable assumption that the 
two are connected.    

 
9   Legal Implications 
 

9.1 It would be appropriate to seek the views of elected members prior to an 
approach to Rossendale Borough Council being made.   

 
 

10  Personnel Implications 
 
10.1  There are no Personnel implications associated with this report.  

 
11 Corporate Priorities 

 
11.1  The 2014/15 Corporate Plan identifies the following priorities which relate to the 

content of this report: 
 

• People – Safeguarding adults and children from harm 

• Prosperity – more and more successful businesses 
 
12. Risk Assessment Implications  

 
12.1  There are real risks for the authority if the situation outlined in this report is not 
addressed.  These include: 
 

• Public Safety - officers are not aware that any of the drivers who have 
recently had their licences revoked by this authority due to CSE activity in 
the recent past have applied to and been granted a licence by a 
neighbouring authority, but – were this to happen – the safety of residents 
could clearly be put at risk; 

• Reputational – the Council has clearly worked hard to address its image in 
relation to CSE and (if unchecked) the current situation could have a 
negative impact on this progress; and 

• Financial – the migration of licensed drivers to other authorities has 
negatively impacted on the revenue streams of this authority.   

 
13. Equalities Impacts 

 
13.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 

 

Page 29



 
 

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
13.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 
The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this report as 
set out below: summarise key issues from, and cross ref to EIA, even if EIA appended 
to report 

    
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 

 
 
 
Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



1 

 

 

APPENDIX  

Equality Impact Assessment 

  

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below. 

 

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below 

    Policy adopted by a neighbouring local authority 

 

Service:  Economy and Environment 

 

Section: Public Protection (Licensing) 

 

Responsible Officer: 

A  Glover 

B Wilkinson 

 

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed: 

Implications for this Council of a Licensing policy adopted by a 

neighbouring local authority 

 

Date of Assessment:  7 January 2015 

 

Officers Involved: 

A Glover 

B Wilkinson 

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed? 

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project) 

This report will consider the impact on Rochdale Council of a Licensing policy adopted by a neighbouring 

local authority, specifically Rossendale BC.  The neighbouring authority is applying a less rigorous standard 

to the licensing of Hackney Carriage drivers than that adopted by this authority (eg carrying out fewer 

checks on applicants for a licence) with the result that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC 

are able to operate as Private Hire drivers in this Borough.  This results in Rochdale Council having a lack of 

Page 33



2 

 

control over drivers operating within its boundaries, leading to reputational / legal financial risks.     

 

2.Who are the key stakeholders? 

Licensed operators and drivers 

Residents of the Borough 

Elected members 

Licensing staff 

Rossendale BC and other local authorities across Greater Manchester affected by Rossendale BC’s approach  

 

 

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 

assessment.   

This EIA covers the  licensing policy of a neighbouring authority and its implications for Rochdale Borough. 

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet? 

This report emphasises the risks to this authority arising from the Licensing policy adopted by Rossendale BC. 

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken? 

One of the main risks to this authority and its residents arising from the Rossendale BC approach is the increased risk 

of CSE activity from drivers licensed by another authority but operating in this Borough when inadequate legal 

safeguards are in place to control their activities.  This issue is clearly a major priority for this Borough. 

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project? 

Residents of Rochdale Borough who use Private Hire vehicles 

All licensed Private Hire operators within this Borough 

Licensing staff who engage with all active Private Hire drivers in the Borough 

 

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 

who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology. 

There has been a wide-ranging discussion amongst AGMA authorities (all of whom are equally affected by this 

situation), but no consensus as to how to respond has yet emerged.  In particular, a meeting was held with Licensing 

staff of Oldham MBC on 5.2.15, which was very useful in giving greater understanding of the common problems 

posed by the Rossendale BC approach. 

Page 34



3 

 

 

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  

What action will be taken to close any data gaps? 

It is not possible to quantify exactly (nor to prove a causal link between) the perceived decrease in drivers 

who cease to be licensed by this authority and the perceived rise in vehicles licensed by Rossendale BC.  

As such, it is difficult to quantify the precise number of drivers who have ceased to be licensed by this 

authority due to the more lax licensing regime operated by Rossendale BC.  

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 

include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available. 

The Council’s Convictions Policy 

 

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 

includes both positive and potentially negative impacts. 

 

Race Equality  

In relation to Rochdale Borough, the 2011 Census confirms the following data on ethnicity.  The overall 

population of Rochdale Borough is 211,699.  Of these, 166,481 are classified as White British (79%) and 

45,218 (21%) as BME.  BME groups now account for a greater proportion of the population than was the 

case in 2001.  Pakistani is the largest population among the BME groups and now accounts for 10.5% 

(22,265) of the total population in 2011, having grown by 40% over the past decade. 

There are approximately 1500 licensed private hire drivers in the Borough and around 25 licensed 

operators.  Of the drivers, around 90% (1350) are from BME communities.  At least 20 of the 25 licensed 

operators are from BME communities. 

As such, any influx of Hackney Carriage licence holders (when licensed by another and therefore able to 

operate in this Borough and undertake Private Hire work) will impact disproportionately – from a business 

perspective – on the local BME community.  

Disabled People 

The standards adopted by Rossendale Borough Council in relation to disabled persons are not known, 

therefore it is difficult to quantify their impact at this stage. .  

Carers 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community who act as Carers. 

Gender 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

Page 35



4 

 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community of any gender. 

Age 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community of any age. 

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community who have served as 

members of the Armed Forces.   

Sexual Orientation 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community of any sexual 

orientation. 

Gender Reassignment 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community who have undergone 

Gender Reassignment. 

Religion or Belief 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community with any particular 

religion or belief. 

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community who are pregnant or on 

maternity leave. 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 

The fact that Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Rossendale BC are able to undertake Private Hire work 

in Rochdale Borough will not specifically impact on members of the local community with regard to their 

marital / civil partnership status. 

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis? 

 The main conclusion is that if the licensing policy adopted by Rossendale Borough Council is less stringent in terms of standards 

of customer care and safety standards (and if more drivers operating in Rochdale Borough obtain their license from outside the 

borough), there may be a significant decline in standards. Consequently, there is a risk that public safety within Rochdale 

Boroughy Council may be adversely affected. 

 

Page 36



5 

 

12.What are your recommendations? 

It is recommended that the Council considers way to at least mitigate the local effect of the policy adopted 

by Rossendale BC. 

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 

action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________ 

 

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________ 

 

  

Page 37



6 

 

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2014/15 
 

 

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion 

Resource 
Implications 

Lead Officer 

 

Subject to the views of Committee, 

officers consider a more robust 

approach to Private Hire operators 

who employ Hackney Carriage 

vehicles licensed by   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The outcome sought is to maintain 

high standards and to ensure the 

safety of customers. 

 

 

June 2015 

 

Grade 8 officer to develop 

proposals for consideration by 

Licensing Manager and Chief 

Public Protection officer 

 

A Glover / B Wilkinson 

P
age 38



7 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 

Subject:  CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW 
  

Status:  For Publication 

Report to: Licensing & Regulatory 
 Committee 
 

Date: 23rd February 2014 
    

Report of:   Director of Customer and Corporate 
Services  

Author: David Wilcock 
  

Email: david.wilcock@rochdale.gov.uk 
 
Tel:     01706 924701 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Neil Emmott, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services 
 

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer  
Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   No 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
 To seek the approval of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee to the proposed 

amendments to the Constitution as outlined in the documents appended to this report 
(Appendix 1). 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the proposed amendments to the Constitution shown in tracked changes 

in the documents appended to this report (Appendix 1). 
 
3 MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/CONSULTATION 

CARRIED OUT 
 
3.1 The Constitution needs to be regularly reviewed to ensure that it reflects the Council’s 

structure and working arrangements.  The Constitutional Review will ensure that the 
Constitution is up to date and fit for purpose, reflecting the current organisational and 
legislative position.   
 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee has delegated authority to approve and adopt 
the updated Constitution. 

 
The Democratic Structures Member Working Group have considered the updated 
parts of the Constitution and recommended that the documents be considered for 
approval by Licensing and Regulatory Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND  

 
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for maintaining the Constitution and ensuring the 
lawfulness of decision making.  A Governance action plan has been prepared and it is 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



 
 

intended to provide updates at regular intervals throughout the year to ensure the 
Constitution is a living document.  
 
Members have the following parts of the constitution (Appendix1) for their 
consideration:- 
 

• Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 
 Updated to reflect current arrangements 
 

• Part 2 – Articles 
 Committee structures and terms of reference have been revised and 
 duplications with Procedure Rules have been deleted. Lists of powers have 
 been slimmed to give general powers rather than setting out the detail. 
 

• Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions 
 This Part has been updated to remove functions which no longer exist and 
 add the new ones. The layout has been simplified. 
 

• Part 4C – Budget and Policy Framework 
 Duplication has been removed and the Framework updated to reflect 
 current practice 
 

• Part 4D – Executive Procedure Rules 
 Revised in accordance with current Executive arrangements 
 

• Proper Officer List 
 A list of Statutory and Proper Officers has been created for ease of 
 reference and functions are grouped together under the relevant officer. 
 

• Contract Procedure Rules 
  Re-written to reflect arrangements with the Stockport and Trafford   
  Procurement Hub 

 
Alternatives considered 
Not applicable. 
 
Consultation proposed/undertaken 
Consultation has taken place with the Democratic Structures Member Working Group.  
 

 The recommendation follows the delegation from the Council on 22nd January 2014 to 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee to approve amendments to the Constitution. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1      There are no financial implications within this report. 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 On 22nd January 2014 the Council was asked to consider the report of the Deputy 

Chief Executive, to note the progress being made in reviewing and updating the 
Council’s Constitution, and to agree both a timetable and a process for approving the 
proposed amendments.  The Council decided that the approval and adoption of the 
updated Constitution should be delegated to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee. 

 
6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 41



 
 

6.1 There are no personnel implications within this report. 
    
7. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
7.1 The proposed amendments will ensure the Constitution is up to date and fit for 

purpose, to enable the Council to achieve its Corporate Priorities. 
 
9. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this report. 
 
10. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 
 
10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
  
There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
    
There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report. 
 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

None 
 
N/A 

 

Page 42



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 1 Page 1 of 5 Updated August 2014 
Summary and Explanation  

 
 
 
 

PART 1 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION 
 

Page 43



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 1 Page 2 of 5 Updated August 2014 
Summary and Explanation  

SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION 
 

The Council's Constitution 
 
The Council of the Metropolitan Borough of Rochdale has agreed a new Constitution which 
sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. 
Some of these processes are required by the law, whilst others are a matter for the Council 
to choose. 
 
The Constitution is divided into 16 articles which set out the basic rules governing the 
Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of practice are provided in 
separate rules and protocols at the end of the document. 
 
What is in the Constitution? 
 

The purpose of the Constitution is to:- 
 

 Enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in partnership with 
members of the public, businesses and other organisations 

 Support the active involvement of members of the public in the process of local 
authority decision-making as a means of strengthening and renewing local 
democracy through community partnership 

 Help Councillors represent their constituents more effectively 

 Enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively 

 Create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to public account 

 Ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which he or she was directly 
involved 

 Ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly identifiable to local 
people and that they explain the reasons for decisions and 

 Provide a means of resourcing and improving the delivery of services to the 
community in accordance with Best Value 

 Enable the Council to combat poverty and social exclusion, and promote wellbeing 

 Enable the Council to promote equality 

 Enable the Council to promote the regeneration of the Borough 

 Enable the provision of a cleaner, safer and healthier environment 
 

Articles 2 – 16 explain the rights of members of the public and how the key parts of the 
Council operate.  These are:- 

 Members of the Council (Article 2) 

 Members of the public and the Council (Article 3) 

 The Council meeting (Article 4) 

 Chairing the Council  

 The Executive Arrangements (Article 6) 

 Overview and scrutiny of decisions (Article 7) 

 Regulatory and other non-Executive Committees and Sub-Committees committees 
Article 8) 

 The Standards Committee (Article 9) 

 Township Committees (Article 10) 

 Joint arrangements (Article 11) 

 Officers (Article 12) 

 Decision making (Article 13) 

 Finance, contracts and legal matters (Article 14) 

 Review and revision of the Constitution (Article 15) 

 Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution (Article 16) 

Page 44



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 1 Page 3 of 5 Updated August 2014 
Summary and Explanation  

How the Council operates 
 

The Council comprises 60 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. Councillors 
are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. The overriding duty of Councillors 
is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including those 
who did not vote for them. 
 
Councillors have to agree to follow a Code of Conduct to ensure high standards in the way 
they undertake their duties. The Standards Committee trains and advises them on the Code 
of Conduct. 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council and m. Meetings of the Council are normally 
open to the public. Here Councillors decide the Council’s overall policies and set the budget 
each year. The Council meeting appoints one Councillor to be the Leader of the Council, 
who and also appoints other Councillors to serve on the Cabinet.  The Cabinet, individual 
Portfolio Holders, and Township Committees and officers together make up the Executive.  
The Executive is the part of the Council which is responsible for most day-to-day decisions.  
The Council is also responsible for the appointment of Committees. 
 

How decisions are made 
 
The Executive  
 
The Executive is the part of the Council which is responsible for most day-to-day decisions. 
The Executive is made up of the Cabinet and Township Committees.  When major decisions 
are to be discussed or made, these are published in the Executive's Forward Plan in so far 
as they can be anticipated. If these major decisions are to be discussed with council officers 
at meetings, this will generally be open for the public to attend except where personal, 
confidential or exempt matters, of which notice has been given, are being discussed. The 
Executive has to make decisions which are in line with the Council’s overall policies and 
budget. If it wishes to make a decision which is outside the Budget or Policy Framework, this 
must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 

There are two Overview and Scrutiny Committees which supports the work of the Executive 
and the Council as a whole. These Committees produces reports and recommendations 
which advise the Executive and the Council as a whole on its policies, budget and service 
delivery.  The Performance Scrutiny Committee also monitors the decisions of the Executive 
through the ‘call-in’ decisions which have been made by the Executive but not yet 
implemented. This enables them to consider whether the decision is appropriate. They may 
recommend that the Executive reconsider the decision or ask the Council as a whole to 
determine whether the Executive should be recommended to reconsider the decision. The 
Policy Overview Committee may also be consulted by the Executive or the Council on 
forthcoming decisions and the development of policy.  A third second Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee maintains an overview of the provision of local health services and providers. 
 

Township Committees 
 
In order to give members of the public a greater say in council affairs, four Township 
Committees have been created. These cover Heywood, Middleton, Pennines (Littleborough, 
Wardle, Milnrow and Newhey) and Rochdale. They involve Councillors for each particular 
area and will generally be open for the public to attend, except where personal, confidential 
or exempt matters are being discussed.   
 

 

 

Page 45



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 1 Page 4 of 5 Updated August 2014 
Summary and Explanation  

The Council’s Staff 
 
The Council has people working for it (called ‘Officers’) to give advice, implement decisions 
and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some Officers have a specific duty to 
ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses its resources wisely. A Protocol governs 
the relationships between Officers and Members of the Council.  A joint venture company, 
the Impact Partnership, acts as an agent on behalf of the Council in respect of certain 
services.  Employees are seconded to this Company and fulfil similar roles and 
responsibilities, having the same specific duties as Council Officers as previously exercised 
by Council Officers at an equivalent level.  Separate staff employed by the joint venture 
company may exercise Council functions as authorised by the Council under contractual 
arrangements acting as the Council’s agent. 
 
Rights of Members of the Public  
 

Members of the public have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. These are 
set out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal rights, whilst others depend on the 
Council’s own processes. The local Citizens’ Advice Bureau can advise on individuals’ legal 
rights. 
 
Where members of the public use specific Council services, for example as a parent of a 
school pupil or as an applicant for a Council service council tenant, they have additional 
rights, which. These are not covered in this Constitution. 
 
Members of the public have the right to:- 
 

 Vote at local elections if they are registered 

 Contact their local Councillor about any matters of concern to them 

 Obtain a copy of the Constitution 

 Attend meetings of the Council, its Executive and committees except where, for 
example,   personal, confidential or exempt matters of which notice has been given 
are being discussed 

 Petition to request a referendum on a mayoral form of Executive 

 Participate in the Council’s question time, participate in the Open Forum at Township 
Committees and contribute to reviews by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 Find out, from the Executive’s Forward Plan, what major decisions are to be 
discussed by the Executive or decided by the Executive or officers, and when 

 See reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by the 
Council, the Executive and Committees  

 Complain to the Council about the standard of service, action or lack of action by the 
Council or its Officers affecting an individual member of the public or group of 
members of the public 

 Complain to the Ombudsman if they think the Council has not followed its procedures 
properly. However, they should only do this after using the Council’s own complaints 
process 

 Complain to the Standards Board for EnglandCouncil’s Monitoring Officer if they 
have evidence which they think believe shows that a Councillor has not followed the 
Councillors' Code of Conduct, and 

 Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the external auditor. 
 
The Council welcomes participation by members of the public in its work. For further 
information on your rights as members of the public, please contact the Council's Information 
Service on (01706) 647474.  
 
The Council shall publish a statement which sets out the rights of the public to inspect 
agendas, reports and background papers and attend meetings.  A copy of this statement 

Field Code Changed

Formatted: No underline, Font color:
Auto

Formatted: No underline, Font color:
Auto

Page 46

../03/03.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 1 Page 5 of 5 Updated August 2014 
Summary and Explanation  

may be obtained at the Council's various information points.  In addition, these rights are set 
out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 

Page 47



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 1 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 

 

 

PART 2 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ARTICLES  
OF THE 

CONSTITUTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 2 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

CONTENTS 
 
 
 

Article 1 The Constitution 
  
Article 2 Members of the Council 
  
Article 3 Members of the Public 
  
Article 4 The Full Council 
  
Article 5 Chairing the Council 
  
Article 6 The Executive 
  
Article 7 Overview and Scrutiny 
  
Article 8 Regulatory and Other Non-Executive Committees  

and Sub-Committees 
  
Article 9 The Standards Committee 
  
Article 10 Township Committees 
  
Article 11 Joint Arrangements 
  
Article 12 Officers 
  
Article 13 Decision Making 
  
Article 14 Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 
  
Article 15 Review and Revision of the Constitution 
  
Article 16 Suspension, Interpretation and Publication  

of the Constitution 
 

Page 49



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 3 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 1 – THE CONSTITUTION 
 
This Article sets out the fundamental provisions of the Constitution. It confirms that the 
Council will act within the law and the provisions of this Constitution. It defines those 
documents which comprise the Constitution. 
 
1.01  Powers of the Council 
 
 The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law 

and this Constitution. 
 
1.02  The Constitution 
 
 This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of the Council of the 

Metropolitan Borough of Rochdale. 
 
1.03  Purpose of the Constitution 
 
 The purpose of the Constitution is to:- 

(a) Enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in 
partnership with members of the public, businesses and other organisations 

(b) Support the active involvement of members of the public in the process of 
local  authority decision-making as a means of strengthening and renewing 
local  democracy through community partnership 

 (c) Help Councillors represent their constituents more effectively 
 (d) Enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively 
 (e) Create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to public 
  account 

(f) Ensure that no one shall review or scrutinise a decision in which he or she 
was directly involved 

 (g) Ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly identifiable to  
  local people and that they explain the reasons for decisions 
 (h) Provide a means of resourcing and improving the delivery of services to the  
  community in accordance with Best Value 
 (i) Enable the Council to combat poverty and social exclusion, and promote 

 wellbeing 
 (j) Enable the Council to promote equality 
 (k) Enable the Council to promote the regeneration of the Borough 
 (i) Enable the provision of a cleaner, safer and healthier environment. 
 
1.04  Interpretation and Review of the Constitution 
 
 Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different courses 

of action, the Council shall always choose that option which it thinks is closest to 
the purposes stated above. 

 
 The Council shall arrange to monitor and evaluate the operation of the 

Constitution as set out in Article 15 to this part of the Constitution. 

Page 50



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 4 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 2 – MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

DEVELOPING ROLES FOR COUNCILLORS 
 
2.01 Composition and eligibility 
 
 (a)  Composition 
 

 The Council shall comprise 60 Members, otherwise called Councillors. 
Three Councillors shall be elected by the voters of each ward in accordance 
with a scheme drawn up by the Electoral Commission (or any successor 
body)Local Government Boundary Commission for England and approved 
by the Secretary of State.  

 

 (b)  Eligibility 
 
   Only registered voters of the district, or those living or working there shall be  
  eligible to hold the Office of Councillor. 
 
2.02 Election and terms of Councillors 
 
 The ordinary election of a third of all Councillors will be held on the first Thursday 

in May in each year beginning in 2002, except that in 2005 and every fourth year 
after there will be no regular election unless otherwise determined by the 
Government. The terms of office of Councillors shall be four years starting on the 
fourth day after being elected and finishing on the fourth day after the date of the 
regular election four years later. 

 
2.03 Filling of casual vacancies 
 

 Casual vacancies which may arise as a result of a Councillor ceasing to be a 
Member before the termination of his or her term of office, shall be filled by the 
holding of a by-election.  The by-election shall be held on an appropriate Thursday.  
However, in all cases where a person ceases to become a Councillor in the final six 
months of his or her term of office, the election may be held in abeyance until the 
normal May election. 

 
2.04 Roles and functions of all Councillors 
  
 (a)  Key roles:   
 
  All Councillors shall:- 
   (i) Exercise the governance, management and legislative functions of the  
   Council  
  (ii) Act in accordance with the purpose of the Constitution 
  (iii) Collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a number of  
   strategic and corporate management functions 
  (iv) Contribute to the good governance of the area and actively encourage

  community participation and involvement of members of the public in  
   decision making 
  (v) Effectively represent the interests of their ward and of individual  
   constituents 
  (vi) Respond to constituents’ enquiries and representations, fairly and  
   impartially    
  (vii)  Maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics and 
  (viii) Be available to represent the Council on other bodies. 
 
 

Page 51



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 5 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
 
 
 (b)  Rights and duties 
 
 (i)  Councillors shall have such rights of access to such documents, 

information, land and buildings of the Council as are necessary for the 
proper discharge of their functions and in accordance with the law 

 (ii)  Councillors shall not make public information which is personal, 
confidential or exempt without the consent of the Council or divulge 
information given in confidence to anyone other than a Councillor or 
Officer entitled to know it 

 (iii)  For these purposes, "confidential" and "exempt" information are 
defined in the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

2.05  Conduct 
 
 Councillors shall at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the 

Protocol on Member/Officer Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 
 
2.06 Allowances 
 
 Councillors shall be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the 

Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution. 
 

 

  

Page 52

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/02.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/06/01.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/06/03.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/07/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 6 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 3 – MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

3.01  Rights of Members of the Public 
 

 Members of the public have the following rights. Their rights to information and 
to participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution:- 

 
 (a)  Voting and petitions 

    
  A minimum of five per cent of members of the public on the electoral roll for 

the area have the right to vote and sign a petition to request a referendum 
for an elected mayor form of Constitution. A petition may be submitted in 
accordance with the Council’s petition scheme. 

 

 (b)  Information 
   
  Members of the public have the right to:- 
  (i)  Attend meetings of the Council and its committees and of the Cabinet 

  except where  
  personal, confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and 

the meeting is held in private, where due notice has been given 
 (ii)  Attend meetings of the Executive except where personal, confidential 

or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is held 
in private 

 (ii) make a written record, or make an audio and/or visual recording, of 
any of the above meetings, except where the the recording disrupts 
the conduct of the meeting or the meeting is being held in private and 
the recording not disrupting the conduct of the meeting 

 (iii)  Find out from the published the Forward Plan what key decisions are 
to be taken by the Executive and when 

 (iv)  See reports and background papers, and any records of decisions 
made by the Council, its committees and the Executive and  

  (v) Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the  
   external auditor. 
 
 (c)  Participation 
 
   Members of the public have the right to participate in the Council’s question  

  time and the Open Forum at Township Committees, and contribute to 
reviews undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
   
 

 
 (d)  Complaints 
 
   Members of the public have the right to complain to:- 

(i)  The Council itself under its complaints scheme 
  (ii)  The Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints scheme 
 (iii) The Council’s Monitoring Officer about a breach of the Councillors' 

Code of Conduct. 
 
3.02  Responsibilities of members of the public 
 
 Members of the public must not be violent, abusing or threatening to Councillors 

or Officers and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council, Councillors 
or Officers. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Page 53

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/02.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 7 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 

Page 54



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 8 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 4 – The Full Council 
 

4.01  Meanings 
 
 (a)  Policy Framework 
 

   The policy framework means the following plans and strategies:- 

 Annual Libraries Plan (Service Plan) 

 Corporate Plan  

 Children and Young People’s Plan 

 Sustainable Community Strategy – Pride of Place 

 Safer Communities Strategy 

 Local Development framework and related plans/strategies, including 
Development Plan Documents 

 Local Transport Plan (Rochdale Borough section) 

 Youth Justice Plan 

 Licensing Authority Policy Statement 

 Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 

 Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 

 Health and Safety Enforcement Service Plan 

 Housing Strategy 

 Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 Environmental Policy 

 Cultural Strategy 

 Rochdale Borough Masterplan 

 Economic Development Strategy 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Treasury Management Strategy and any further financial/budgetary 
items where a full Council decision is required 

  
 

 (b)  Budget  
 
  The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different 

services and projects, proposed contingency funds, the Council tax base, 
setting the Council tax and decisions relating to the control of the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, the control of its capital expenditure and the setting 
of virement limits. 

 
 (c)  Housing Land Transfer  
 
 Housing Land Transfer means the approval or adoption of applications 

whether in draft form or not) to the Secretary of State for approval of a 
programme of disposal of 500 or more properties to a person under the 
Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 or to 
dispose of land used for residential purposes where approval is required 
under sections 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985. 

 
4.02  Functions of the Council 
 
 Only the Council shall exercise the following functions:- 
  

(a)  Approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any application 
to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land Transfer 

(b)  Making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an executive function 
which is covered by the policy framework or the budget where the decision 
maker is minded to make it in a manner which would be contrary to the 

Page 55

http://www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk/acts/acts1993/Ukpga_19930028_en_1.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 9 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

policy framework or contrary to/or not wholly in accordance with the budget, 
subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution 

 (c) Appointing the Leader  
 (d) Agreeing and/or amending the Terms of Reference for Committees, deciding 

on their composition and making appointments to them 
 (e)  Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is an  
  executive function or has been delegated by the Council 
 (f)  Adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.06 

(g) Changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman or 
to admit to being an honorary freeman 

 (h)  Confirming the appointment of the Chief Executive 
(i)  Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting by-laws and 

promoting or opposing the making of local or personal Bills 
(j)  All local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution which the 

Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the Executive  
   

 (k)  Considering Petitions for Debate submitted in accordance with the  
     Council’s Petition Scheme and 

 (l) All other matters which, by law, must be reserved to the Council. 
 
4.03  Council meetings 
 
 There are three types of Council meeting, as defined in the Council’s Procedure 

Rules:- 
 (a)  The annual meeting 
 (b)  Ordinary meetings 
 (c)  Extraordinary meetings 
 and they shall be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules in 

Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 
4.04  Responsibility for functions  
 
 The Council shall maintain the tables in Part 3 of this Constitution setting out the 

responsibilities for the Council’s functions which are not the responsibility of the 
Executive. 
  

Page 56

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/02.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/02.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/04/01.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/01.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/04/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 10 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 5 – CHAIRING THE COUNCIL 
 

5.01  Role and function of the Mayor and Vice-Chairman of the Council 
 

 The Mayor and Vice-Chairman of the Council shall be elected by the Council 
annually.  The Mayor (and in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman of the Council) 
shall have the following responsibilities:- 
1 To uphold and promote the purpose of the Constitution, and to interpret the 

  Constitution when necessary 
2  To preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be carried 

out efficiently and with regard to the rights of Councillors and the interests of 
the community 

 3  To ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of  
 concern to the local community and the main place at which Members, who 

are not on the Executive, are able to hold the Executive to account 
4 To promote public involvement in the Council’s activities. 
5 To determine matters relating to key decisions and consideration of 

executive matters in private in the absence of the Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee as specified in the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules within this Constitution. 

   
5.02 Role and Function of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor 
 
 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor shall be elected by the Council annually.  The 

Mayor (and in his or her absence, the Deputy Mayor) shall attend such civic and 
ceremonial functions as the Council and he or she  

  determines appropriate 
 
 
 

  

Page 57



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 11 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 6 – THE EXECUTIVE  
 
6.01 Role 

 
 The Executive shall carry out all of the local authority’s functions which are not 

the responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by law or under 
this Constitution. 

 
 All executive functions are vested in the Leader of the Council who shall 

determine the exercise of executive powers by Many of executive functions shall 
be carried out by the Cabinet, but in certain instances, executive functions shall 
be carried out by individual Cabinet Members, Township Committees, Officers or 
under Joint Arrangements, in accordance with the Council's Scheme of 
Delegation.  Where the Constitution refers to the Executive, this covers executive 
functions carried out by the Cabinet, Committees of the Cabinet, individual 
Cabinet Members and/or Township Committees or Sub-Committees, Officers, 
and/or Joint Arrangements, as may be determined by the leader of the Council. 

 
 Where the Constitution refers to the Cabinet, this relates solely to functions 

undertaken by the Cabinet. 
 

6.02  Form and composition of the Cabinet 
 
 The Cabinet shall consist of the Leader of the Council, together with up to a 

further nine Councillors appointed to the Cabinet by the Leader of the Council.  
The Leader shall specify the responsibilities of each Cabinet Member, including 
responsibility for any specific portfolio of services and issues.  A Councillor 
allocated such a portfolio shall be referred to as a Cabinet Member or Portfolio 
Holder. 

 
6.03  Leader 

   
The Leader of the Council shall be appointed by the Full Council for a term of 
four years at its first meeting after an ordinary Council election and shall be the 
Leader of the Cabinet. The Leader will hold office until the day of the annual 
meeting after their conclusion of their ordinary term of office unless : 

 
 (a)  He or she resigns from the office or 

(b)  He or she is suspended from being a Councillor under Part III of the Local 
Government Act 2000 (although he or she may resume office at the end of 
the period of suspension) or 

 (cb)  He or she is no longer a Councillor or 
 (dc)  He or she is removed from office by the resolution of Full Council. 
 
 The Leader shall determine all delegations of Executive functions,  and appoint 

a Cabinet of between two and nine members and determine portfolio holder 
arrangements and responsibilities. 

 
6.04 Deputy Leader 
 
 The Leader shall appoint one of the Cabinet Members as Deputy Leader to act 

in their absence. 
   
6.05  Other Cabinet members 
 
 Only Councillors may be appointed to the Cabinet. There may be no co-optees 

and no deputies or substitutes for Cabinet Members. Neither the Mayor nor 

Page 58



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 12 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

Vice-Chairman of the Council may be appointed to the Cabinet, and Members of 
the Cabinet (including the Leader) may not be Members of an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 Other Cabinet Members shall hold office until:- 
 (a)  They resign from office or 

  (b)  They are suspended from being Councillors under Part III of the Local 
Government Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the 
period of suspension) or 

 (cb)  They are no longer Councillors or 
(dc)  They are removed from office, either individually or collectively, by the 

Leader. 
 
6.06 Cabinet Portfolios 
 
  
 
   The Leader of the Council shall assign Portfolios of responsibility to members of 
  the Cabinet. Notices of such assignments of responsibility shall be made  
  available on the Council’s website. 
 

        
 

6.07 The Leader may appoint  Assistants to Portfolio Holders to assist the Cabinet 
Members in the undertaking of their duties.  The Assistants may carry out such 
responsibilities as the Cabinet Member determines, and may deputise for the 
Cabinet Member in their absence, other than in respect of decision making and any 
limitations or conditions indicated below or which the Cabinet Member may specify in 
respect of the ways in which the Assistant will operate.  The Cabinet Member shall 
be responsible for the actions of their Assistant. 

 
   

 Assistants to Portfolio Holders may not 

 Vote at Cabinet meetings or make decisions on behalf of the Cabinet Member  

 Be a member of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (or of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee responsible for scrutinising the Health and Wellbeing Board if 

their Portfolio Holder is involved in that Board), or be a member of any Overview 

and Scrutiny Study Group, considering a matter which relates to their Cabinet 

Member’s portfolio. 

 Move or second Cabinet recommendations at Council 

 Present reports or answer questions on behalf of the Cabinet Member at Council 
 

6.08  Proceedings of the Executive 
 
 Proceedings of the Executive shall take place in accordance with the Council 

procedure Rules and the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution. 

 
 
6.09 Responsibility for functions 
 
 The Chief Executive shall maintain a list in Part 3 of this Constitution setting out 

the arrangements for the exercise of executive functions. 
 
 

 
  

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

Page 59

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/04.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/04/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 13 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 

ARTICLE 7 – OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

7.01  Terms of reference 
 
 The Council shall appoint  the Overview and& Scrutiny Committees  and other bodies 

set out in the left hand column of the table below to discharge the functions conferred by 
Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000,  the Health & Social Care Act 2012 and 
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

  
7.02  General role 
 
 Within their terms of reference, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall:- 

(i)  Maintain and overview of, review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions 
taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions 

 (ii)  Make reports and/or recommendations to the Executive and/or the Council 
in connection with the discharge of any functions 

  (iii)  Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants  
  (iv)  Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet  
   implemented by the Executive and/or committees 
  (v) Monitor performance in all Council service areas 
  (vi) Consider Directorate Plans and Reports 

   
 (vii) Not consider any matter relating to standards of behaviour, conduct, ethics 

or probity, directly or indirectly involving any Member of the Council, such 
matters are to be referred immediately to the Monitoring Officer.  

(viii)Not scrutinise any individual decisions made by non-executive Committees 
of the Council. 

 
7.03  Specific functions 

 
 (a)   Policy development and review  
 
                   The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may:- 

(i)  Assist the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and 
policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues 

 (ii)  Conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of 
policy issues and possible options 

 (iii)  Consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 
community participation in the development of policy options 

 (iv)  Question Members of the Executive and Directors about their views on 
issues and proposals affecting the area, and 

 (v)  Liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether  
  national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are  
  enhanced by collaborative working. 
  
 (b)  Scrutiny  
 
  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may:- 
  (i)  Review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

  Executive and Officers both in relation to individual decisions and over time 
 (ii)  Review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 

objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas 
 (iii)  Question members of the Executive and Officers about their decisions and 

performance, whether generally either in relationcomparison with to service 
plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, 
initiatives or projects 

Page 60



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 14 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 (iv) Make reports and/or recommendations to the Executive and/or the Council 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process 

 (v)  Review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 
and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the overview 
and scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and 
performance, and 

  (vi) Question and gather evidence from any person (with his or her consent). 
 
  

 (c)  Finance  
 

  The Overview and Scrutiny Committees shall exercise overall responsibility for 
 any finances made available to them. 

 
 (d)  Annual report  
 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees shall report its Work Programme 
annually to the Council. 

 
 (e)  Officers  
   

 The Council shall identify an officer to undertake the role of Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer to promote and manage the scrutiny function of the Council shall be 
undertaken by the Governance and Committee Manager (or any future 
equivalent post). The Overview and Scrutiny Committees shall exercise overall 
responsibility for the work  programme of the Officers employed to support 
their work. 

 
7.04 Reference to the Monitoring Officer 
 

 Any dispute about the right of anthe Overview and Scrutiny Committee's right to 
consider a matter shall be referred to the Monitoring Officer, whose decision 
shall be binding. 

 
7.05        Interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

        In addition to any interest a Councillor may have to declare in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct, no Councillor may participate in any 
business before anthe Overview and Scrutiny Committee if they were party to 
the decision made in respect of that item, except as specified within the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.(or of a sub-   committee 
of the Committee) where — 

 
  (a)  that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or  
   action taken by the executive or another of the authority’s committees, sub-
   committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees; and 
 (b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, the Councillor was a 
   member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint 
   sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and was present when that  
   decision was made or action was taken,  
 
 The Councillor may attend the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
 the purpose of explaining the reasons for the decision, or answering questions or 
 giving evidence relating to the business, but cannot participate otherwise  in the 
 discussion or in any vote on the matter. 
 
7.06 Whipping 
 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.01 cm

Page 61



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 15 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 The Whip shall not apply from any of the political groups on their respective 
Members on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee while they are taking part in 
Overview and Scrutiny business. 

 

 No political meetings of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members shall take 
place.  Each Member of the Committee shall act in accordance with such 
Protocols and Guidance as the Council shall determine. 

 
7.07  Proceedings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall conduct its proceedings in 

accordance with the Council Procedure Rules and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

Page 62

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/05.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/05.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 16 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
7.08  Members of Council on a politically balanced basis, together with three Church 
 representatives, two Parent Governor representatives and five further Members of 
 the Council when considering education-related items. 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 To respond to consultation by Cabinet on policy development and the annual budget 
proposals. 

 

 To scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other appropriate 
bodies and partners, against approved Directorate Plans, where appropriate. 

 

 To scrutinise in-year budget performance. 
 

 To instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service performance. 
 

 To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by external 
agencies. (Note: All reports of the external auditor shall be considered by the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee). 

 

 To review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the Council. 

 

 To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on outside 
bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where appropriate. 

 

 To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to Council Services 
and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where appropriate, to make 
recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such studies and reviews. 

 

 To consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy. 
 
 
 

Page 63



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 17 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
 
HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

7.10  Members of Council on a politically balanced basis 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 To be responsible for discharging the Council's scrutiny responsibilities under the Health 
& Social Care Act 2012, as determined by the Council. 

  
 

 To undertake specific detailed studies and reviews  
 

 To submit reports, recommendations and consultation responses on matters coming 
before the Committee to relevant individuals and agencies 

 
 
 
 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  0 cm + Tab after:  0.63 cm
+ Indent at:  0.63 cm

Page 64



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 18 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 

ARTICLE 8 – REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES AND SUB-
COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 

8.01  Regulatory and other Committees 
  
 The Council shall appoint the Committees set out in the Responsibility for 

Council Functions in Part 3 of this Constitution to discharge the non-executive 
functions described in that table. 

 
8.02 The Committees and terms of reference shall be 
 

(a) Licensing and Regulatory Committee 

 To be the Council’s statutory Licensing Committee pursuant to the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to 

o Town and Country Planning and Development Control 
o Licensing and Registration (certain functions to be undertaken 

by the Licensing Sub-Committee) 
o Health and Safety at Work 
o Name and Status of Areas and Individuals 
o  
o Local or personal Bills 
o Miscellaneous functions 

 
(b) Employment Committee 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to employment issues and the terms and 
conditions of staff. 

 
(c) Appointments Committee 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to the appointment of senior staff. 

 
(d) Disciplinary Committee 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to the appointment of senior staff. 
 

(e) Appeals Committee 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to the consideration of appeals relating to 
personnel, regulatory, housing and social care matters. 

 
(f) Dispute Committee 

 To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to employment matters 
 

(f)(g) Charitable Trustee Committee 

 To discharge the functions of the Council as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution where the Council acts as Trustee. 

 
(g) Audit and Risk Management Committee 

 To discharge the non-executive functions as set out  in the 
Constitution relating to audit and risk management matters. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  2.22 cm + Indent at:  2.86
cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at:  3.49 cm +
Indent at:  4.13 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent:
Left:  4.13 cm

Page 65

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/04/01.htm
file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/04/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 19 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
Membership of the above Committees shall be as determined at the annual 
meeting of the Council or as varied thereafter by the Councilprovided for 
within Part 3 to the Constitution, and meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with Procedure Rules at Part 4 to the Constitution. 

 
8.03  Health and Wellbeing Board 
  The Health and Wellbeing Board will lead the improvement of the health and 

wellbeing of the Borough population, with a specific focus on tackling health inequalities.   
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 66



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 20 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 9 – THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
9.01  Standards Committee 
 
 The Council has determined to establish a Standards Committee to assist it with 

promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors, 
Independent Members and Co-Opted Members. 

 
9.02  Composition 
   

 The Standards Committee shall comprise seven Councillors, to be appointed 
generally on a politically balanced basis. The Independent Persons appointed by 
the Council shall be appointed as non-voting co-opted members of the 
Standards Committee. The Committee shall be chaired by a Councillor. . 

 
9.03 Quorum 
 
 A meeting of a Standards Committee or Sub-Committee of a Standards 

Committee shall not be quorate unless at least three voting Members of that 
Committee or Sub-Committee are present for its duration. 

 

9.04  Role and Function 
 
 The Standards Committee shall have the roles and functions set out in Part 3 of 

this Constitution:- 
a.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 21 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
ARTICLE 10  –  TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES  
 

10.01  Township Committees 
 
 The Council has power to appoint Township Committees that may exercise both 

executive and non-executive powers subject to statutory restrictions on the size 
of the Township areas and population..  

 
10.02  Form, Composition and Function 
 
  Table of Township Committees  
   

  The Council shall appoint the Township Committees as set out in the first 
column of the following table, composed as set out in the second column of that 
Table and with the Terms of Reference set out in the third column.  The Terms of 
Reference apply equally to each Township Committee.  Township Committees 
shall exercise such executive power as may be delegated by the Leader of the 
Council, and such non-executive powers as may be delegated by the Council. 

 

Name of 
Committee 

 
Composition 

 
Terms of Reference 

   
Heywood 
Township 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Middleton 
Township 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Pennines 
Township 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

Those Members for 
the Wards of:- 

 North Heywood  

 West Heywood   

 Hopwood Hall   
 
(9 members) 
 
 
Those Members for 
the Wards of:- 

 Hopwood Hall    

 Middleton East 

 Middleton North 

 Middleton South 

 West Middleton  
 
(15 members) 
 
 
Those Members for 
the Wards of:- 

 Littleborough 
Lakeside 

 Littleborough West 
and Wardle 

 Milnrow & Newhey 

 To exercise powers and 
responsibilities in respect of 
Devolved Services – 

 Environmental Management 
(excluding Refuse Collection and 
Recycling and Bereavement 
Services) 

 Highways 

 Community Centres 

 Libraries 

 Development Control 

 Township Funds 

 Leisure Projects - commissioning  
ensuring that services and facilities 
for which the Committee is 
responsible are managed in a 
manner consistent with Borough-
wide policies. 
 

 To identify opportunities for specific 
local improvements or 
developments in respect of 
influenced Services –  

 Planning and Regulation 

 Housing and Regeneration 
(including Rochdale Development 
Agency) 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.79 cm,
Hanging:  1.21 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm,
Left + Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted Table

Page 68



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 22 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rochdale 
Township 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Smallbridge and 
Firgrove 

 
(12 members) 
 
 
Those Members for 
the Wards of:- 

 Balderstone and 
Kirkholt 

 Bamford 

 Castleton 

 Central Rochdale 

 Healey 

 Kingsway 

 Milkstone and 
Deeplish 

 Norden  

 Spotland and 
Falinge 

 
(27 members) 
 

 Customer and Communications 
Services  

 Learners and Young People 
(except Community Centres) 

 Refuse Collection and Recycling 

 Bereavement Services 

 Adult Social Care 

 Children’s Social Care 

 Schools 

 Leisure (via Link4Lifethe Cultural 
Trust) 

 Property  

 Council Housing (via Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing) 

 

 To carry out all the functions 
referred to in the approved Scheme 
of Delegation to Township 
Committees or as may be specified 
elsewhere in the Council’s 
Constitution 

 

 To expend the budget allocated for 
the Township Fund and other 
devolved budgets 

 

 To determine, within the scope of 
the approved Development Control 
Scheme, local planning 
applications 

 

 To consider, review and monitor all 
services and activities provided by 
the Council within the Township 

 

 To develop and support a range of 
appropriate Working Parties and 
Working Groups to promote 
detailed advice on particular issues, 
on matters relating to specific 
geographical areas of the Township 
and to ensure that such bodies 
work in an open and accessible 
way that encourages community 
involvement. 

 
   

 

  
 
10.03         Interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

        In addition to any interest a Councillor may have to declare in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct, no Councillor may participate in any 
business before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee if they were party to the 
decision made in respect of that item, except as specified within the Overview 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.01 cm

Page 69



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 23 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.In any business before the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (or of a sub-   committee of the Committee) where — 
 
  (a)  that business relates to a decision made (whether 
implemented or not) or     action taken by the executive or 
another of the authority’s committees, sub-   committees, joint 
committees or joint sub-committees; and 
 (b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, the Councillor 
was a    member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, 
joint committee or joint    sub-committee mentioned in paragraph 
(a) and was present when that     decision was made or 
action was taken,  
 
 The Councillor may attend the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for  the purpose of explaining the reasons for the decision, or 
answering questions or  giving evidence relating to the business, but cannot 
participate otherwise  in the  discussion or in any vote on the matter. 

 

10.04  Township Committees – Access to Information 
 
 Township Committees shall comply with the Access to Information Rules in Part 

4 of this Constitution. 
  
 Agendas and notices for Township Committee meetings which deal with both 

executive and non-executive functions and functions which are not the 
responsibility of the Executive shall state clearly which items are which. 

 

10.05  Executive Members on Township Committees 
 
 A member of the Cabinet may serve on a Township Committee. if otherwise 

eligible to do so as a Councillor. 
 
10.06 Appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working Parties, local 

Partnership Arrangements and lLocal Outside Bodies shall be made at the first 
meetings of the appropriate Township Committees in the new Municipal Year.  

 
10.07 The Chair and Vice-Chair of each Township Committee and Township Sub-

Committees shall be appointed at the first ordinary meeting of appropriate 
Township Committee in the new Municipal Year.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.01 cm,
Tab stops: Not at  0.85 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.01 cm,
Tab stops: Not at  1.25 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 70



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 24 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 11 – JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 
 

11.01  Arrangements to promote well being 
 
 The Executive, in order to promote the economic, social or environmental well-

being of its area, may:- 
 (a)  Enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body 

(b)  Co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person or 
body and 

(c)  Exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that person or 
body. 

 
11.02  Joint Arrangements - Principles 
  
 (a)  The Council may establish Joint Arrangements with one or more local 

 authorities and/or their Executives to exercise functions which are not 
executive functions in any of the participating authorities, or advise the 
Council. Such arrangements may involve the appointment of a Joint 
Committee with the  other local authorities 

 (b)  The Leader may establish Joint Arrangements with one or more  local 
authorities to exercise functions which are executive functions. Such  

  arrangements may involve the appointment of Joint Committees with the  
  other local authorities 

(c)  Except as set out below, the Council or Leader may only appoint Cabinet 
Members to a Joint Committee and those Members need not reflect the 
political compositionof the Council as a whole 

 (d)  The Council or Leader may appoint Members to a Joint Committee from 
outside the  

  Cabinet in the following circumstances:- 

 the Joint Committee has functions for only part of the area of the 
authority, and that area is smaller than two-fifths of the authority by area 
or population. In such cases, the Council may appoint to the Joint 
Committee any Councillor who is a Member for a ward which is wholly 
or partly contained within the area Political balance requirements do not 
apply to such appointments 

 the Joint Committee undertakes health scrutiny functions as set out in  
the Health and Social Care Act 20122012 

(e)  Any Joint Arrangements including any delegations to Joint Committees shall 
be contained in Part 3 of this Constitution 

 (f) As and when joint arrangements are established, procedure rules will be  
  established in line with the statutory guidance. 
 
11.04 Joint arrangements 
 
 The Council has entered into the following Joint Arrangements 
 

(a) Greater Manchester Combined Authority (including Transport for Greater 
Manchester Committee) 

(b) The Association of Greater Manchester Authorities 
(c) Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel 
(d) Greater Manchester Health Scrutiny Committee 
(e) Joint Health Scrutiny Committee – Pennine Acute 
(f) Joint Health Scrutiny Committee – Pennine Care 
(g) Greater Manchester Joint Mineral Development Plan Document 

Committee 
(h) Greater Manchester Joint Waste Development Plan Document Committee 
(i) Greater Manchester Road Activity Permit Scheme 

Page 71



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 25 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

(j) Joint Committee for Strategic Procurement 
 
 The Executive has entered into the following joint arrangements 
 

(a) Greater Manchester Combined Authority (including Transport for Greater 
Manchester Committee) 

(b) The Association of Greater Manchester Authorities 
(c) Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel 
(d) Greater Manchester Road Activity Permit Scheme 
(e) Joint Committee for Strategic Procurement 

(c)  
 
11.03 Access to information 
  
 (a)  The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution apply, 

including distinctions indicated between executive and non-executive functions. 
(b)  If all the Members of a Joint Committee are Members of the Cabinet in each 

of the participating Authorities then its access to information regime is the 
same as that applied to the Executive 

 (c)  If the Joint Committee contains Members who are not on the Cabinet of any 
  participating authority then the access to information rules in Part VA of the  
  Local Government Act 1972 will apply. 
 

11.04  Delegation to and from other Local Authorities 

 
(a)  The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another local authority 

or, in certain circumstances, the Executive of another local authority 
 

(b)  The Leader of the Council may delegate executive functions to another 
local authority or the Executive of another local authority in certain 
circumstances 

 
 (c)  The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another local  
  authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting. 
 
11.05  Contracting out 
 
  
 The Council (for functions which are not executive functions) and the Leader or 

the Executive (for executive functions) may contract out to another body or 
organisation, functions which may be exercised by an Officer, and which are 
subject to an order under section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 
1994, or under contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the 
Council’s agent under usual contracting principles, provided there is no 
delegation of the Council’s discretionary decision making. 

 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Page 72

file://roc-mps-fps02/council/Constitution%20Review/05/02.htm
http://www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk/acts/acts1994/Ukpga_19940040_en_1.htm
http://www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk/acts/acts1994/Ukpga_19940040_en_1.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 26 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 12 – OFFICERS 
 
TERMINOLOGY 
 
12.01  Management structure 
 
  (a)  General 
 
  The Council may engage such staff (referred to as Officers) as it considers 
  necessary to carry out its functions 
 
 (b)  Chief Executive and Senior Officers 
 
 The Council shall engage persons for the post of Chief Executive and 

further posts of senior officers to form the Council’s senior Officer 
Management Team.  . 

 
 (c) Senior Officers 
 

  The Council shall engage persons for the following posts who shall be 
  designated as follows:-   
   
 Director of Adult Services 
 Director of Children’s Services 
 Deputy Chief ExecutiveDirector of Customers and Corporate (Corporate 

Services) 
 Director of Finance 
 Director of Economy and Environment 
 Director of Public Health 
  
 Assistant Director of Learning Disabilities and Mental Health 
 Assistant Director of Physical Disabilities and Older People 
 Assistant Director of Children’s Social Care 
 Assistant Director of Early Help, Prevention and Partnerships 
  
 (d) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 

Officer 
 
  The Council shall designate the following posts as shown:- 

Post Designation 

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service 

Deputy Chief ExecutiveHead of 
Legal and Governance Reform 

Monitoring Officer 

Director of Finance  Chief Finance Officer 

 
  Such posts shall have the functions described in Article 12.02–12.04 below. 
 
  The Council shall also designate the following statutory posts as shown:- 

Post Designation 

Director of Children’s Services Statutory Director for 
Children's Services 

Director of Adult Services Statutory Director for Adult 
Services 

Director of Public Health Statutory Director of Public 
Health 

  
 

Page 73



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 27 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 (e)  Structure 
 

 The Head of Paid ServiceChief Executive shall determine and publicise a 
description of the overall departmental structure of the Council showing the 
management structure and deployment of Officers. This is set out at Part 7 
of this Constitution. 

  
12.02  Functions of the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) 
 
 (a)  Discharge of Functions by the Council 

   The Head of Paid ServiceChief Executive shall report to the Council 
on the manner in which the  

 discharge of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade 
of officers required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of Officers. 
 
 (b)  Restrictions on Functions 

 The Hhead of Paid Service Chief Executive may not be the Monitoring 
Officer but may hold the post of Chief Finance Officer if a qualified 
accountant. 

 
12.03  Functions of the Monitoring Officer  
 
 (a)  Maintaining the Constitution  

 The Monitoring Officer shall maintain an up-to-date version of the 
Constitution and shall ensure that it is widely available for consultation by 
Councillors, Officers and the public. 

 

  
 
 (b)  Proper Officer for Access to Information 

 The Monitoring Officer shall ensure that executive decisions, together with 
the reasons for those decisions and relevant officer reports and background  

  papers, are made publicly available as soon as possible. 
 
  (c)  Advising whether executive decisions are within the budget and policy  
  framework 
  The Monitoring Officer shall advise whether decisions of the Executive are 

in accordance with the budget and policy framework. 
 
 (d) Contributing to corporate management 
 The Monitoring Officer shall contribute to the Corporate Management of the 

Council through the provision of professional legal advice. 
 
 (e)  Provision of advice 
  The Monitoring Officer shall provide advice on the scope of powers and 

authority to take decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity 
and budget and policy framework issues to all Councillors. 

 
 (f)  Restrictions on posts  
  The Monitoring Officer cannot also be the Chief Finance Officer or the 

Head of Paid Service. 
 
 (g) Protocol 

 All the powers and duties set out in the Protocol in Part 5 of the 
Constitution. 

 
12.04  Functions of the Chief Finance Officer 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.79 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Page 74

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/08/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 28 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

 
  
 
 (a)  Contributing to corporate management 
  The Chief Finance Officer shall contribute to the corporate management of 

the Council, in particular through the provision of professional financial 
advice. 

  
  

 
(b) Protocol 
 All the powers and duties set out in the Protocol in Part 5 of Constitution 

 
12.05  Duty to provide sufficient resources to the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 

Finance Officer 
 
 The Council shall provide the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer 

with such Officers, accommodation and other resources as are in their opinion 
sufficient to allow their duties to be performed. 

 

 
 
12.06  Conduct 

 
 Officers shall comply with the Officers’ Code of Conduct and the Protocol on 

Officer/Member Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 
 
12.07  Employment 

 
 The recruitment, selection and dismissal of Officers shall comply with the Officer 

Employment Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 

Page 75

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/06/02.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/06/03.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/08.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/08.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 29 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 13  –  DECISION MAKING 
 
13.01  Responsibility for decision making 
 
 The Council shall issue and keep up to date a record of what part of the Council 

or individual has responsibility for particular types of decisions or decisions 
relating to particular areas or functions. This record is set out in Part 3 of this 
Constitution. 

 
13.02  Principles of decision making 
 
 All decisions of the Council shall be made in accordance with the following 

principles:- 
(a) Proportionality (meaning the action must be proportionate to the results to 

be achieved) 
 (b) Due consultation (including the taking of relevant professional advice) 
 (c) Respect for human rights 
 (d) Presumption in favour of openness 
 (e) Clarity of aims and desired outcomes 
 (f) Due consideration to be given to alternative options 
 (g) Reasons for the decisions to be given provided there is no breach of  
  confidentiality 
 
13.03  Types of decision 
  

(a)  Decisions reserved to the Council. Decisions relating to the functions listed 
in Article 4.02 will be made by the Council and not delegated. 

 
 (b)  Key Decisions 
  (i) A decision of the Cabinet/a Portfolio holder/a Township Committee/an  

  Officer acting in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation shall be a 
Key  Decision if it falls within one or more of the following categories:- 

  (a) It is likely to have a major impact on the life of a community within 
the Borough (e.g. the closure of a school or a major traffic 
regulation scheme) 

  (b) It forms part of the development of, or the development of a 
change to, the Policy or Budget Framework 

   (c) Either: 
   (i) it involves revenue expenditure or saving that is neither 

provided  
     for within the Budget, or virement not permitted by the  
     Constitution 
    or 
   (ii) it involves revenue expenditure or saving in excess of 

£500,000 
  (d) It involves capital expenditure that is estimated to exceed 

£500,000 or is not provided for within the budget 
  (e) It involves a significant reduction in or significant change to a 

service or facility provided by the Council, such reduction or 
change not being within the Policy or Budget Framework 

  (f) It consists of the declaration of land or property, the estimated 
value of which exceeds £500,000 as surplus to the Council's 
requirements 

  (g) It involves securing approval in principle to the acquisition or 
disposal of land or property, the value of which is estimated to 
exceed £500,000 

 

Page 76

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/04/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/04/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/04.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 30 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

   (h) It involves securing approval in principle to the taking of, or the  
    granting, renewal, assignment, transfer, surrender, taking of  
    surrenders, variation or termination of any leases, licences,  

   easements or wayleaves, at considerations in excess of £10,000 
per annum or a premium of £100,000 

  (i) A financial decision whose consequences are likely to result in 
compulsory redundancies or major changes to the terms and 
conditions of employment of a significant number of Council 
employees 

    
 (c) A decision taker may only make a Key Decision in accordance with the  
  requirements of the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this  
  Constitution. 
 
13.04  Decision making by the Council 
 
 Subject to Article 13.08, the Council meeting shall follow the Council Procedure 

Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter. 
 
13.05  Decision making by the Executive  

 
 Subject to Article 13.08, the Executive shall follow the Council Procedure Rules 

and the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when 
considering any matter. 

 
13.06  Decision making by Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees shall follow the Council Procedure Rules 
and the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution when considering any matter. 

 
13.07  Decision making by other regulatory and other non-executive Committees 

and  Sub-Committees  
 
 Subject to Article 13.08, other Council Committees and Sub-Committees shall 

follow those parts of the Council Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution as apply to them. 

 
13.08  Decision making by Council bodies acting as tribunals 
 

 The Council, a Councillor or an Officer acting as a tribunal or in a quasi judicial 
manner or determining/considering (other than for the purposes of giving advice) 
the civil rights and obligations or the criminal responsibility of any person shall 
follow a proper procedure which accords with the requirements of natural justice 
and the right to a fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European Convention on 
Human Rights. 

 
  

Page 77

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/04.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/04.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/05.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm
http://conventions.coe.int/treaty/EN/cadreprincipal.htm
http://conventions.coe.int/treaty/EN/cadreprincipal.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 31 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 14 – FINANCE, CONTRACTS AND LEGAL MATTERS 
 
 

14.01  Financial management 
 
 The management of the Council’s financial affairs shall be conducted in 

accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this 
Constitution. 

 
14.02  Contracts 
 
 Every contract made by the Council shall comply with the Contract Procedure 

Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 
14.03  Legal proceedings 
 
 The Deputy Chief Executive Head of Legal and Governance Reform is 

authorised to institute, defend or participate in any legal proceedings in any case 
where such action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council or in 
any case where the Head of Legal and Governance Reform Deputy Chief 
Executive considers that such action is necessary to protect the Council’s 
interests. 

 

14.04  Authentication of documents 

 
 Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or proceedings on 

behalf of the Council, it shall be signed by the Head of Legal and Governance 
Reform Deputy Chief ExecutiveHead of Legal and Governance Reform or other 
person authorised by him/her, unless any enactment otherwise authorises or 
requires, or the Council has given requisite authority to some other person. 

 
 Any contract with a value exceeding £50,000 entered into on behalf of the 

Council in the course of the discharge of an executive function shall be made in 
writing. Such contracts must either be signed by at least two Officers of the 
Council or made under the Common Seal of the Council attested by at least one 
Officer. 

 

14.05  Common Seal of the Council 
 
 The Common Seal of the Council shall be kept in a safe place in the custody of 

the Deputy Chief Executive Head of Legal and Governance Reform.  A decision 
of the Council, or of any part of it, shall be sufficient authority for sealing any 
document necessary to give effect to the decision. The Common Seal shall be 
affixed to those documents which in the opinion of the Deputy Chief Executive 
Head of Legal and Governance Reform should be sealed. The affixing of the 
Common Seal shall be attested by the Deputy Chief Executive Head of Legal 
and Governance Reform or some other person authorised by him or her. 

 

Page 78

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/05/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 32 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 15 – REVIEW AND REVISION OF THE CONSTITUTION 
 

15.01 Duty to monitor and review the Constitution 
 
 The Monitoring Officer shall monitor and review the operation of the Constitution 

to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution are given full effect. 
 
 Protocol for the monitoring and review of the Constitution  
 

A key role for the Monitoring Officer is to be aware of the strengths and 
weaknesses of the Constitution adopted by the Council, and to make 
recommendations for ways in which it could be amended in order better to 
achieve the purposes set out in Article 1. In undertaking this task the monitoring 
officer may:- 

 1 Observe meetings of different parts of the member and officer structure 
 2  Undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions 
 3 Record and analyse issues raised with him or her by Members, Officers, the 
   public and other relevant stakeholders 

4  Compare practices in the Council with those in other comparable 
authorities, or national examples of best practice, and 

 5 Take such action as he or she considers appropriate 
 
15.02  Changes to the Constitution 

 
  (a)  Approval 
   

 The Council has delegated to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee the 
powers to make changes to the Constitution, including additions to and 
amendment of the Council's Schemes of Delegation.  

 
 The Monitoring Officer is authorised to amend the Constitution subsequent 

to decisions taken at the Annual Council meeting in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 1.2 without reference to the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee; to amend the Constitution on matters arising from organizational 
or other review; and to amend the Scheme of Delegation to Officers on 
matters arising from legislative and/or approved operational changes, such 
amendments to be reported to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee on 
a twice yearly basis.   

  
 (b) Change from a Leader and Cabinet form of Executive to alternative  
   arrangements, or vice versa 
   

  The Council must take reasonable steps to consult with local electors and 
other interested persons in the area when drawing up proposals. 

 
 

Page 79

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 33 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

ARTICLE 16 – SUSPENSION, INTERPRETATION AND 
PUBLICATION OF THE CONSTITUTION 
 

16.01  Suspension of the Constitution 
 
 (a) The Articles of this Constitution may not be suspended 

(b) Any suspension of a Procedure Rule must be in accordance with the 
Council's Procedure Rules 

 

16.02  Interpretation 
 
 The ruling of the Mayor as Chairman of the Council as to the construction or 

application of this Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council shall not 
be challenged at any meeting of the Council.  Such interpretation shall have 
regard to the purposes of this Constitution contained in Article 1. 

 
16.03  Publication 
  
 (a)  The Chief Executive shall make availablegive a printed copy of this 

Constitution to each  
  Member of the Council upon delivery to him or her of that individual’s  
  Declaration of Acceptance of Office on the Member first being elected to the  
  Council. 

(b)  The Monitoring OfficerChief Executive shall ensure that copies of the 
Constitution are available for inspection at Council offices, libraries and 
other appropriate locations, and can be purchased by members of the local 
press and the public on payment of a reasonable fee. 

(c)  The Monitoring OfficerChief Executive shall ensure that the summary of the 
Constitution is made widely available within the area and is updated as 
necessary. 

 
 

Page 80

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03.01.htm


 

RMBC Constitution: Part 2 Page 34 of 34                   Updated August 2014  

SCHEDULE 1 

 
DESCRIPTION OF EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
 
 

The following parts of this Constitution constitute the executive arrangements:- 
 
 
 
 
1  Article 6: Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Overview and Scrutiny  
  Procedure Rules 
 
 
 
 
2  Article 7:  The Executive and the Executive Procedure Rules 

 
 
 
 
3  Article 10  Township Committees insofar as the Committees are determining  

  executive matters delegated to them by the Council 
 
 
 
 
4  Article 11 Joint arrangements insofar as any Joint Committee is determining  
  executive matters delegated to it by the Council 
 
 
 
 
5 Article 13: Decision making and the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
 
 
 
 
6  Part 3: Responsibility for Functions 

Page 81

file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/06.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/07.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/10.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/11.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/03/13.htm
file:///C:/Users/walter-brownesian/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/04/01.htm


 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 1 of 37 REDRAFT v1 May 2014       

 
 
 

PART 3 
 
 
 
 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR FUNCTIONS 

 

Page 82



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 2 of 37 REDRAFT v1 May 2014       

CONTENTS 
 
 
 

1 Introduction 
 

 
 

   
2 Responsibility for Local Choice Functions 

 
 

   
3 Responsibility for Council Functions 

 
 

   
4 Responsibility for Executive Functions 

 
 

   

5 Delegation to Individual Cabinet Members 
 

 

   

6 Delegation to Township Committees 
 

 

   
7 Development Control Scheme 

 
 

   
8 Delegations to Officers 

 
 

   
9 Delegations to Joint Committees 

 
 

   
 

Page 83



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 3 of 37 Updated May 2014 

   

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 The Chief Executive shall submit a report for approval by the Council at its annual 
 meeting each year on the arrangements for the discharge of non-executive functions.  
 The Leader shall report the arrangements for the discharge of executive functions to 
 the annual meeting of the Council. 
 
1.2 The Chief Executive and/or the Leader may submit a report to a meeting of the 

Council at any time containing proposed changes to the arrangements for the 
discharge of non-executive and executive functions, as appropriate. 

 
2 RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS 
 

 
 
FUNCTION 

 
DECISION 
MAKING 

BODY 

 
DELEGATION OF 

FUNCTION 
 

 
1 Any function under a local Act other than 

a function specified or referred to in 
regulation 2 or Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and    
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000 (as amended). 

 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
2 The determination of an appeal against    

any decision made by or on behalf of the 
Council. 

 

 
Appeals 

Committee 

 

 
3 The appointment of review boards under 
 regulations under subsection (4) of  

Section 34 (determination of claims and 
reviews) of the Social Security Act 1998. 

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

 
4 The making of arrangements in relation to 

appeals against the exclusion of pupils 
from maintained schools.   

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

 
5 The making of arrangements pursuant to 

sections 94(1), (1A), and (4) of 1998 Act 
(admission appeals). 

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

 
6 The making of arrangements pursuant to 

section 95 (2) of the 1998 Act (children to 
whom section 87 applies: appeals by 
governing bodies). 

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

Page 84



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 4 of 37 Updated May 2014 

   

 
 
 
 

 
 
FUNCTION 

 
DECISION 
MAKING 

BODY 

 
DELEGATION OF 

FUNCTION 
 

 
7 The making of arrangements under 

section 20 (questions on police matters at 
Council meetings) of the Police Act 1996 
for enabling questions to be put on the 
discharge of the functions of a police 
authority. 

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

 
8  The making of appointments under 

paragraphs 2 to 4 (appointment of 
members by relevant councils) of 
Schedule 2 (police authorities established 
under section 3) to the Police Act 1996. 

 

 
Annual 
Council 

 

 
9  The conducting of best value fundamental 

service reviews in accordance with the 
provisions of any order for the time being 
having effect under section 5 (best value 
fundamental service reviews) of the Local 
Government Act 1999. 

 

 
The  

Executive  

 
Appropriate Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
109 Any function relating to contaminated 

land. 
 

 
The 

 Executive 

 

 
1110 The discharge of any function relating 

to the control of pollution or the 
management of air quality. 

 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
1211 The service of an abatement notice in 

respect of a statutory nuisance. 
 

 
The  

Executive 

 

 
1312 The passing of a resolution that 

Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory 
Nuisance Act  

 1993 should apply in the Council’s area. 
 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
1413 The inspection of the authority's area 

to detect any statutory nuisance. 
 

 
The 

Executive 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 85



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 5 of 37 Updated May 2014 

   

 
1514 The investigation of any complaint as 

to the existence of a statutory nuisance. 
 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
1615 The obtaining of information under 

section 330 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as to interests in land. 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
FUNCTION 

 
DECISION 
MAKING 

BODY 

 
DELEGATION OF 

FUNCTION 
 

 
1716 The obtaining of particulars of persons 

interested in land under section 16 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976. 

 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
1817 The making of agreements for the 

execution of highways works. 
 

 
The 

Executive 

 

 
1918 The appointment of any individual:- 

(a) to any office other than an office in 
which he or she is employed by the 
Council, 

(b) to any body other than:- 
(i) the Council 
(ii) a Joint Committee of two or more  
 Authorities, or 

(c) to any Committee or Sub-committee 
of 

  such a body, and the revocation of 
any such appointment. 

 

 
Council 

 

 
2019 The making of agreements with other 

local authorities for the placing of staff at 
the disposal of those other authorities. 

 

 
Council 

 

20        Functions under sections 106, 110, 
111 and 113 of the Local Government and  

Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 relating 
to local area agreements 

The 
Executive 

 

Page 86



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 6 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

3 RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
1 .To receive reports from the Monitoring Officer in respect of the 
resolution of complaints 

2. Appointment of Standards (Hearing) Sub-CommitteesHearing 
Panels (if not otherwise appointed by the Monitoring Officer) 

3. To consider and determine complaints about breaches of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, in accordance with the 
procedures as determined by the Council. 

4. To take actions, as determined by the Standards (Hearing) 
Sub-CommitteeHearing Panel against a Council member who 
has breached the Code of Conduct. 

5. The Committee, as determined by the Standards (Hearing) 
Sub-CommitteeHearing Panel, may  

 Report findings to Council for information; 

 Recommend to Group Leaders that Members be removed 
from Committees; 

 Recommend to the Leader that Members be removed 
from the Executive; 

 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for a 
Member; 

 Recommend removing Members from outside bodies;  

 Recommend the placing of restrictions on Members’ 
access to staff which may be reasonable in the 
circumstances and in accordance with the Member/Officer 
Protocol 

6. Granting dispensations to Councillors, Independent Members 
and Co-opted Members from requirements relating to interests 
set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct on consideration of 
a written application by a Member who would otherwise be 
unable to participate in and/or vote on a matter due to a 
prejudicial interest on the grounds that  
(1) The grant of the dispensation would be in the interest of 

the inhabitants of the authority’s area; or 
(2) It is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation. 

7. Considering appeals against decisions of the Monitoring 
Officer in respect of dispensations claimed for reasons other 
than in (e) above. 

8. Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
Councillors, Independent Members and Co-opted Members; 

9. Assisting Councillors, Independent Members and Co-opted 
Members to observe the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

10. Advising the Council on the adoption and/or revision of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct; 

11. Monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
12. Advising, training, or arranging to train, Councillors, 

Independent Members and Co-opted Members on matters 
relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

13. Considering applications from local authority employees for 

 
Standards 
Committee or  
Standards 
(Hearings) Sub-
CommitteeHearin
g Panel  

Formatted Table

Page 87



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 7 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

exemptions from political restrictions in respect of their posts; 
14. Where appropriate, issuing directions requiring the inclusion of 

a post in the list of politically restricted posts; 
15. Giving general advice on the application of criteria for 

designation of a politically restricted post; 
16. Reviewing any issues referred by the Chief Executive, a 

Director or Monitoring Officer; 
17.  To deal with other functions delegated to the Committee by 

the Council 
 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
1 Functions relating to town and country   planning 
and development control 

 
1 Power to determine application for planning  
 permission. 
 
2 Power to determine applications to develop land  
 without compliance with conditions previously  
 attached. 
 

 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee  
Some functions 
are delegated to 
Township 
Committees or 
Officers 
- the Scheme 

of Delegation 
to Township 
Committees 
(Appendix 1) 

- the 
Development 
Control 
Scheme 
(Appendix 2) 

- The Scheme 
of Delegation 
to Officers 
(Appendix 
3)Set out in 
the 
Development 
Control 
Scheme 

3 Power to grant planning permission for development already 
carried out. 

 
4 Power to decline to determine application for  planning 
permission. 
 
5 Duties relating to the making of determinations of  planning 
applications. 

 

  
6 Power to determine application for planning permission made by 

a local authority, alone or jointly with another person. 
 
 
 

Formatted Table

Page 88



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 8 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

  
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
7 Power to make determinations, give approvals and agree certain 

other matters relating to the exercise of permitted development 
rights. 

 
8 Power to enter into agreement regulating development or use of 

land. 
 
9 Power to issue a certificate of existing or proposed lawful use or 

development. 

 

  
10 Power to serve a completion notice. 
 
11 Power to grant consent for the display of advertisements. 
 
12 Power to authorise entry onto land. 

 

  
13 Power to require the discontinuance of a use of land. 
 
14 Power to serve a planning contravention notice,  breach of 
condition notice or stop notice. 
 
14A   Power to issue a temporary stop notice. 
 
15 Power to issue an enforcement notice. 
 
16 Power to apply for an injunction restraining a breach of planning 

control. 
 
17 Power to determine applications for hazardous substances 

consent, and related powers. 

 

  
 
 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
18 Duty to determine conditions to which old mining permissions, 

relevant planning permissions relating to dormant sites or active 
Phase I or II sites, or mineral permissions relating to mining 
sites, as the case may be, are to be subject. 

 

  
19 Power to require proper maintenance of land.  
  
20 Power to determine application for listed building consent, and 

related powers. 
 

Formatted Table

Formatted Table

Page 89



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 9 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

  
21 Power to determine application for conservation area consent.  
  
221 Duties relating to applications for listed building consent and 

conservation area consent. 
 

  
232 Power to serve a building preservation notice, and related 

powers. 
 

 
243 Power to issue enforcement notice in relation to demolition of 

unlisted building in conservation area. 
 
254 Powers to acquire a listed building in need of repair and to serve 

a repairs notice. 
 
265 Power to apply for an injunction in relation to a listed building. 
 
26    Power to authorise stopping up or diversion of a highway  
 
27 Power to execute urgent works. 
 

   

 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
2 Licensing and Registration Functions – the Local 

Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000, Schedule 1B (as amended) 

 (in so far as not covered by any other paragraph of the 
Schedule). 

 

 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 
Some functions 
are delegated to 
Township 
Committees or 
Officers 
- The Scheme 

of Delegation 
to Township 
Committees 
(Appendix 1) 

- The Scheme 
of Delegation 
to Officers 
(Appendix 3) 

  
1 Power to issue licences authorising the use of land as a caravan 

site (“site licences”) 
 
2 Power to license the use of moveable dwellings      and camping 

sites. 
 
3 Power to license hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. 

Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 
 

“ 
 
 
“ 

  

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Page 90



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 10 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

4 Power to license drivers of hackney carriages and private hire 
vehicles. 

 

“ 

5 Power to license operators of hackney carriages and private hire 
vehicles. 

“ 

  
6 Power to register pool promoters. “ 
  
7 Power to grant track betting licences. 
 

“ 

8 Power to license inter-track betting schemes. “ 
  
9 Power to grant permits in respect of premises with amusement 

machines. 
“ 

  
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
10 Power to register societies wishing to promote 
 lotteries. 

 
“ 

  
11 Power to grant permits in respect of premises where 

amusements with prizes are provided. 
“ 

  
12 Power to issue cinema and cinema club licences. “ 
  
13 Power to issue theatre licences. “ 
  
14 Power to issue entertainment licences. 
 

“ 

14A Functions relating to Licensing (other than as stated below) 
 
14AZA Functions and powers relating to late night levy requirements 
 

See section 
headed 
'Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee' below 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee/Licen
sing Sub-
Committee 
 

14AA Duty to comply with requirements to provide information to 
Gambling Commission 

 
14AB Functions relating to exchange of information 
 
14AC Functions relating to occasional use notices 
 
14B   Power to resolve not to issue a casino premises licence – 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
14C   Power to designate an Officer of a licensing authority as an 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee/Licen
sing Sub-
Committee “ 
 

“ 
 
“ 
 
“ 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 91



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 11 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

authorised person for a purpose relating to premises 
 
14CA Power to make order disapplying section 279 or 282(1) of the 

2005 Act in relation to specified premises 
 
14D   Power to institute criminal proceedings 
 

 
 
“ 
 
 
 
“ 
 
 
 
“ 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
14E   Power to exchange information 
 
14F   Functions relating to the determination of fees for premises 

licenses 
 
14FA Functions relating to smoke free premises etc 

1.     Power to enforce offences relating to the   display of no-
smoking signs 

2.     Power to enforce offences relating to smoking in smoke 
free places 

3.     Power to enforce offence of failing to prevent smoking in 
smoke free places 

4.     Power to transfer enforcement functions to another 
enforcement authority 

 
14G   Functions relating to the registration and regulation of small 

society lotteries 

“ 
 
" 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee/Licen
sing Sub-
Committee 

  
15 Power to license sex shops and sex cinemas. 
       Including provisions under s27 of the Crime and   Disorder Act 

2009 

Licensing 
Manager 

  
16 Power to license performances of hypnotism. “ 
  
17 Power to license premises for acupuncture, tattooing, ear-

piercing and electrolysis. 
“ 

  
18 Power to license pleasure boats and pleasure vessels. “ 
  
19 Power to register door staff. “ 
  
20 Power to license market and street trading. “ 
  
21 Power to license night cafes and take-away food shops. “ 
  

  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 92



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 12 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

FUNCTIONS DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
22 Duty to keep list of persons entitled to sell non-medicinal 

poisons. 
“ 

  
23 Power to license dealers in game and the killing and selling of 

game 
“ 

  
24 Power of register and license premises for the preparation of 

food. 
“ 

  
25 Power to license scrap yards. “ 
  
26 Power to issue, amend or replace safety certificates (whether 

general or special) for sports grounds. 
“ 

  
27 Power to issue, cancel, amend or replace safety certificates for 

regulated stands at sports grounds. 
 

“ 

28 Power to issue fire certificates. “ 
  
29 Power to license premises for the breeding of dogs. “ 
  
30 Power to license pet shops and other establishments where 

animals are bred or kept for the purposes of carrying on a 
business. 

“ 

  
31 Power to register animal trainers and exhibitors. “ 
  
32 Power to license zoos. “ 
  
33 Power to license dangerous wild animals. “ 
  
34 Power to license knackers’ yards. “ 
  
35 Power to license the employment of children. 
 

“ 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
36 Power to approve premises for the solemnisation of marriages. “ 
  
37 Power to register common land or town or village greens, except 

where the power is exercisable solely for the purpose of giving 
effect to:- 

 (a)  an exchange of lands effected by an order under section 
19(3) of, or paragraph 6(4) of Schedule 3 to, the Acquisition of 
Land Act 1981 or 

 (b) an order under section 147 of the Inclosure Act 1845. 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Page 93



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 13 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

38 Power to register variation of rights of common. “ 
  
39 Power to license persons to collect for charitable and other 

causes. 
Licensing 
Manager 

  
40 Power to grant consent for the operation of a loudspeaker. “ 
  
41 Power to grant a street works licence. “ 
  
42 Power to license agencies for the supply of nurses “ 
  
43 Power to issue licences for the movement of pigs. “ 
  
44 Power to license the sale of pigs. “ 
  
45 Power to license collecting centres for the movement of pigs. “ 
  
46 Power to issue a licence to move cattle from a market. “ 
  

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
46A Power to grant permission for provision etc of services, 

amenities, recreation and refreshment facilities on highway, and 
related powers 

 

“ 

47 Power to permit deposit of builder’s skip on highway. 
 

“ 

47A Duty to publish notice in respect of proposal to grant permission 
under Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980 

“ 

  
48 Power to license planting, retention and maintenance of trees 

etc. in part of highway. 
“ 

  
49 Power to authorise erection of stiles etc. on footpaths or 

bridleways. 
“ 

  
50 Power to license works in relation to buildings etc. which 

obstruct the highway. 
“ 

  
51 Power to consent to temporary deposits or excavations in 

streets. 
“ 

  
52 Power to dispense with obligation to erect hoarding or fence. “ 
  
53 Power to restrict the placing of rails, beams etc. over highways. “ 
  
54 Power to consent to construction of cellars etc. under street. “ 
  
55 Power to consent to the making of openings into cellars etc. 

under streets, and pavement lights and ventilators. 
“ 

 

  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted Table

Page 94



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 14 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

FUNCTIONS DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
56 Power to sanction use of parts of buildings for storage of 

celluloid. 
“ 

  
57 Power to approve meat product premises. “ 
  
58 Power to approve premises for the production of minced meat or 

meat preparations. 
“ 

  
59 Power to approve dairy establishments. “ 
  
60 Power to approve egg product establishments. “ 
  
61 Power to issue licences to retail butchers’ shops carrying out 

commercial operations in relation to unwrapped raw meat and 
selling or supplying both raw meat and ready-to-eat foods. 

“ 

  
62 Power to approve fish products premises. “ 
  
63 Duty to keep register of food business premises. 
 
64     Power to register food business premises 
 
65     Power to register motor salvage operators 
 
66     Functions relating to the registration of common land and town 

or village greens 

“ 
 
“ 
 
“ 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

  

  
3 Functions relating to health and safety at work 
 

 Functions under any of the “relevant statutory  provisions” within 
the meaning of Part 1 (health,  safety and welfare in connection 
with work, and  control of dangerous substances) of the Health 
and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to the extent that those 
functions are discharged otherwise than in the Council’s capacity 
as an employer. 

 
 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 
Some functions 
are delegated to 
Officers  
– The Scheme of 

Delegation to 
Officers 
(Appendix 
3)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
4 Functions relating to elections Licensing and 

Regulatory 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted Table

Page 95



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 15 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

Committee 
1 Duty to appoint an electoral registration officer. “ 
  
2 Power to assign officers in relation to requisitions of the 

registration officer. 
Returning Officer 

  
3 Duty to appoint returning officer for local government elections. Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 

  
4 Duty to provide assistance at European Parliamentary elections. Returning Officer 
  
5 Duty to divide constituency into polling districts. Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 

  
6 Power to divide electoral divisions into polling districts at local 

government elections. 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

  
7 Powers in respect of holding of elections. Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee or 
Returning Officer 

  
8 Power to pay expenses properly incurred by electoral 

registration officers. 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

  
9 Power to fill vacancies in the event of insufficient nominations. Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 

  
10 Duty to declare vacancy in office in certain cases. Returning Officer 
  
11 Duty to give public notice of a casual vacancy. Returning Officer 
  
12 Power to determine fees and conditions for supply of copies of, 

or extracts from, elections documents. 
Returning Officer 

  
 

FUNCTIONS 
 

DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 
13 Power to submit proposals to the Secretary of State for an order 

under section 10 (pilot schemes for local elections in England 
and Wales) of the Representation of the People Act 2000. 

 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

  

  
5 Functions relating to name and status of areas and 

individuals 
 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 
Council 

  

Formatted: Centered

Page 96



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 16 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

1 Power to change the name of a district.   
  

2 Power to confer title of honorary alderman or to admit to be an 
honorary freeman. 

 

  

  
6 Power to make, amend, revoke or re-enact byelaws Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 

  
  
  
  
7 Functions relating to statements of account pensions etc. 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
CommitteeAudit 
and Risk 
Management 
Committee  

 Functions relating to local government statements  and of 
accounts and pensions, etc. 

  
8 Miscellaneous functions Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 
 
Some functions 
are delegated to 
Township 
Committees or 
Officers 
- The Scheme of 
Delegation to 
Township 
Committees 
 (Appendix 1) 
- the 

Development 
Control 
Scheme 
(Appendix 2) 

- The Scheme of 
Delegation to   
Officers 
(Appendix 3) 

  
1 Power to recommend to Council changes toamend the 

Constitution as detailed in Article 15.01 of the Constitution 
“ 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
  
2 Power to recommend to Council the making, amending, 

revoking or replacing of any scheme authorised or required by 
“ 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 97



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 17 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

regulations under Section 18 (schemes for basic attendance and 
special responsibility allowances for local authority members) of 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

  
3 Power to recommend to Council:- “ 
 (a) the amount of any allowance payable under –  
  (i) subsection (5) of section 3 (Chairman's  

 expenses) of the 1972 Act 
 

  (ii) subsection (4) of section 5 (Vice- 
   Chairman's expenses) of that Act 

 

  (iii) subsection (4) of section 173 (financial  
   loss allowance) of that Act (b) 
  (iv) section 175 (allowances for attending  
   conferences and meetings) of that Act 

 

 (b) the rates at which payments are to be made 
  under section 174 (travelling and subsistence  
  allowances) of that Act  

 

  (c) the amount of any allowance payable pursuant  to a 
scheme under section 18 of the Local  Government and 
Housing Act 1989, or the rates at which payments by way of 
any such  allowance are to be made  

 

        (d) whether a charge should be made for any  approval, 
consent, licence, permit or registration the issue of which is 
not the responsibility of an executive of the authority 

 

        (e) where a charge is made for any such approval, consent, 
licence, permit or registration, the  amount of the charge 

 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
4 Power to recommend to Council, the appointment of the Deputy 

Mayor for the following municipal year 
“ 

  
5 Power to create footpath or bridleway, or restricted byway  by 

agreement. 
Township 
Committees or 
Officers 
- The Scheme of 
Delegation to 
Township 
Committees 
 (Appendix 1) 
- the 

Development 
Control 
Scheme 
(Appendix 2) 

- The Scheme of 
Delegation to   
Officers 
(Appendix 3) 

  
6 Power to create footpaths, and bridleways and restricted 

byways. 
“ 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 98



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 18 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

  
7 Duty to keep register of information with respect to maps, 

statements and declarations. 
“ 

  
8 Power to stop up footpaths, and bridleways and restricted 

byways. 
“ 

  
9 Power to determine application for public path extinguishment 

order. 
“ 

  
10 Power to make a rail crossing extinguishment order. “ 
  

11 Power to make a special extinguishment order “ 
  

12 Power to divert footpaths, and bridleways and restricted 
byways.. 

“ 

  
13 Power to make a public path diversion order. “ 
  
14 Power to make a rail crossing diversion order. “ 
  
15 Power to make a special diversion order. “ 
  
16 Power to require applicant for order to enter into agreement. “ 
  
17 Power to make an SSSI diversion order. “ 

 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
18 Duty to keep register with respect to applications under sections 

118ZA, 118C, 119ZA and 119C of the Highways Act 1980. 
“ 

  
19 Power to decline to determine certain applications. “ 
  
20 Duty to assert and protect the rights of the public to use and 

enjoyment of highways. 
“ 

  
21 Duty to serve notice of proposed action in relation to obstruction. “ 
  
22 Power to apply for variation of order under section 130B of the 

Highways Act 1980. 
“ 

  
23 Power to authorise temporary disturbance of surface of footpath, 

or bridleway or restricted byway. 
“ 

  
24 Power to temporarily to divert footpath or, bridleway or restricted 

byway. 
“ 

  
25 Functions relating to the making good of damage and the 

removal of obstructions. 
“ 

  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 99



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 19 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

26 Powers relating to the removal of things so deposited on 
highways as to be a nuisance. 

“ 

  
27 Power to extinguish certain public rights of way. “ 
  
28 Duty to keep definitive map and statement under review. “ 
  
29 Power to include modifications in other orders. “ 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 
 

  
30 Duty to keep register of prescribed information with respect to 

applications under section 53(5) of the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981. 

 

“ 

30A Power to authorise stopping up or diversion of highway.  
  
31 Duty to reclassify roads used as public paths.  
  
32 Power to prepare map and statement by way of consolidation of 

definitive map and statement. 
“ 

  
33 Power to designate footpath as cycle track. “ 
  
34 Power to extinguish public right of way over land acquired for 

clearance. 
“ 

  
35 Power to authorise stopping-up or diversion of footpath, or 

bridleway or restricted byway. 
“ 

  
36 Power to extinguish public rights of way over land held for 

planning purposes. 
“ 

  
37 Power to enter into agreements with respect to means of 

access. 
“ 

  
38 Power to provide access in absence of agreement. “ 
  
39 Power to appoint staff, and to determine the terms and 

conditions on which they hold office (including procedures for 
their dismissal). 

Appointment 
Committee or 
Disciplinary 
Committee (as 
the case may be) 
or as detailed in 
the Scheme of 
Delegation to 
Officers 
(Appendix 3 to 
the Constitution), 
with due 
reference to 
Offier 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Left

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 100



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 20 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

Employment 
procedure Rules 
(Part 4I to the 
Constitution) 

40 Power to make procedure rules relating to contracts 
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

 
 

FUNCTIONS 
 

DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
41 Duty to make arrangements for proper administration of financial 

affairs etc. 
Chief Finance 
Officer 

 
42 Power to appoint officers for particular purposes (appointment of 

“proper officers”). 
 
 
 
43 Power to make closing order with respect to take-away food 

shops. 
 

 
The Appointment 
Committee has 
power to appoint 
the Chief 
Executive, 
Directors and 
Assistant 
Directors Council 
 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee 

44 Duty to designate officer as the head of the authority’s paid 
service, and to provide staff, etc. 

 

Council 

44A Duty to provide staff, etc to person nominated by monitoring 
officer. 

 

“ 

44B Powers relating to overview and scrutiny committees (voting 
rights of co-opted members). 

“ 

  
45 Duty to designate officer as the monitoring officer, and to 

provide staff, etc. 
“ 

  
 
48 Power relating to the protection of important hedgerows. 

 
Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

  
48A Powers relating to complaints about high hedges. “ 
  
49 Power relating to the preservation of trees. “ 
  
50 Power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of 

maladministration etc. 
 

Monitoring Officer 
or Chief Finance 
Officer 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 101



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 21 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

 

  
51 Power to make an order identifying a place as a designated place 

for the purposes of police powers in relation to alcohol 
consumption. 

 
52. Power to make or revoke an order designating a 
locality as an alcohol disorder zone. 
 
53. Power to apply for an enforcement order against unlawful works 

on common land. 
 
54. Power to protect unclaimed registered common land and 

unclaimed town or village greens against unlawful interference. 
 
55. Power to institute proceedings for offences in respect of 

unclaimed registered common land and unclaimed town or village 
greens. 

Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 
 
 

“ 
 
 
“ 
 
 
“ 
 
 
 
" 

  
52 To receive the minutes of the Links Consultative Forum. 
 
. 

 

  
1.  To discharge non-executive functions relating 

to the terms and conditions of staff 
 

2.  Approval of proposals for organisational changes where the 
number of staff affected is 100 or more in any one proposal 
including the transfer of services and changes to service delivery 
models 

 
3.  Pay Reviews for Directors and Phase 2 Senior management 

Review 
 
4. Power to undertake the assessment of Director Performance for 

the purposes of salary progression within the Council’s agreed 
performance framework 

 
5. Power to consider the outcome of consultations on organisational 

change where there is a failure to agree between management 
and staff/trade unions on issues of principle/significance. 

 
6. Policy work relating to Equality Impact assessment work, Equality 

policies , HR workforce equality information, any data analysis, 
any learning and understanding our communities and customer 
profile 
 

7.  Receipt of updates on Compliance with the Corporate Equalities 
Action Plan. 

 
1 Power to recommend recruitment to senior posts (Chief 

Executive, Executive Directors, and Heads of Service) in 
accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 

 
2 Power to determine pay and conditions issues for senior officers 

Employment and 
Equalities 
Committee 
 

“ 
 
 
Employment 
Committee 
 

“ 
 
 
“ 
 
 
 
“ 
 
 
 
 
“ 
 
 
 
 
“ 

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.58 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.58 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  0.58 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08 cm,
Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5 cm

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered

Page 102



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 22 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

(Chief Executive, Executive Directors, and Head of Service). 
  
3 Power to approve early retirement of senior officers (as defined 

above). 
 

Employment 
Committee 

4 Power to consider the outcome of consultations on organisational 
change where there is a failure to agree between management 
and staff/trade unions on issues of principle/significance. 

Employment 
Committee 

  
5 Power to approve changes to corporate conditions of service for 

Council employees. 
Employment 
Committee 

  
6 Power to undertake the assessment of Executive Director 

performance for the purpose of salary progression. 
 

Employment 
Committee 

  

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
Power to undertake the recruitment and recommend appointments to 
senior posts (Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Head of 
Service Level) in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure 
Rules. 

Appointment 
Committee 

  
Power to recommend the dismissal of or disciplinary action against 
the Chief Executive, the Monmitoring officer, Chief Finance officer, 
Directors and Assistant Directors in accordance with the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules. 

Disciplinary 
Committee 

 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
Personnel Appeals 
 

 Disputes* 

 Disciplinary 

 Grading 

 Pensions 

Appeals 
Committee 

 Grievance ** 

 Applications for early retirement 

 

  
 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  

Formatted Table

Page 103



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 23 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

 
Environment Appeals 
 
1 Where no statutory appeal is available against any formal action 

and/or refusal, cancellation, revocation, 
 suspension, or imposition of conditions, in respect of 
 the following Licences, Consents, Permits and 
 Registrations - 
 

 
Appeals 
Committee 
Appeals marked 
# are delegated 
to Township Sub-
Committees, 
subject to the 
Members 
involved being 
advised on the 
appropriate 
appeals 
procedure. 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

 Dealers in second-hand goods #  

 Breeding of dogs 

 Employment Agencies # 

 Game and Game Dealers # 

 Rag flock and other filling materials 

 Food hawkers and their premises # 

 Pet shops # 

 Animal boarding establishments # 

 

 Riding establishments #  

 Protection of wild birds  

 Dangerous wild animals #  

 Hypnotists  

 Zoos #  

 Hairdressers and barbers # 

 Acupuncturists, tattooists, ear-piercers, electrolysists etc. # 

 Street and house to house collections # 

 

 Scrap metal dealers #  

 Betting, Gaming and Lotteries(subject to    

             Implementation of the Gambling Act 2005) #  

 Food premises (including stalls and vehicles) #  

 Caravan sites and mobile homes  

 Nurses Agencies #  

 Hackney Carriages and Drivers/Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers 
and Operators 

 

 Street trading – Consents/Licenses #  

 Poisons  

 Sunday Trading  

 All other appeals relating to non-executive functions  

  
2 To determine appeals against action taken under the Council’s 

Cemetery and Crematorium Regulations 1989 
 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

Page 104



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 24 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

 

  
Housing Appeals  
  
  
1 Appeals by contractors against exclusion from the probationary 

and main lists of contractors for House Renovation Grants and 
by contractors and/or applicants against refusal of grant 
applications where the nominated contractor is not considered to 
be capable of attaining the relevant standard on completion of 
the works. 

Appeals 
Committee 

  
2 Appeals where applications for Disabled Facility Grants or 

Adaptations are refused on the grounds that work proposed is 
not reasonable or practicable having regard to the age and 
condition of the premises, and it is considered more appropriate 
that alternative accommodation is made available. 

Appeals 
Committee 

  
3 Appeals against decisions of the Head of Strategic Housing not 

to award Relocation Grants in individual cases. 
Appeals 
Committee 

  

Social Services Appeals  
  

1 To determine those appeals against decisions of the 
Executive, the Cabinet Member for Adult  Care or the Cabinet 
Member for Children, Schools and Families in consultation 
with the Director Adult 
 Care/Director f Children’s Services where a statutory right of 
appeal exists or where procedures otherwise grant a right of 
appeal against such decisions. 

 

Appeals 
Committee 

 
 

FUNCTIONS 
 

DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
           
  
2 Any other appeals. Appeals 

Committee 
  

  
Functions relating to Licensing Act 2003  
1 Power to determine an application for personal licence if a police 

protection  objection has been received. 
 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 
(3 Members - 
political balance 
need not apply 

Formatted Table

Page 105



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 25 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

2 Power to determine an application for a personal licence where 
applicant has an unspent conviction. 

 
 
 

" 

3 Power to determine an application for a premises licence/club 
premises certificate if relevant representation has been made. 

" 

  
4 Power to determine an application for a provisional statement if 

relevant representation has been made. 
" 

  
5 Power to determine an application to vary a premises licence/club 

certificate if relevant representation has been made. 
" 

  
6 Power to determine an application to vary designated premises 

supervisor if police objection has been received. 
" 

  
7 Power to determine an application for the transfer of a premises 

licence if a police objection has been received. 
Licensing Sub-
Committee  
(3 embers - 
political balance 
to apply 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
8 Power to determine applications for interim authorities if a police 

objection has been received. 
" 

  
9 Power to determine an application to review premises licence/club 

premises certificate. 
" 

  
10 Power to make decision to object when the local authority is a 

consultee and not the relevant authority considering the 
application. 

" 

  
11 Power of determination of a police objection to a temporary event 

notice. 
" 

  
Functions relating to Gambling Act 2005  
  
1.   Fee setting (where appropriate). Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Committee 

  
2.   Power to determine applications for premises licenses where 

representations have been received and not withdrawn. 
Licensing Sub 
Committee 

  
3.  Power to determine applications for variations to a licence where 

representations have been received and not withdrawn. 
" 

  

Formatted Table

Page 106



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 26 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

4.  Power to determine applications for a transfer of a licence where 
representations have been received from the Gambling 
Commission. 

" 

  
5.  Power to determine applications for a provisional statement where 

representations have been received and not withdrawn. 
" 

 
 

 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

  
6.  Power to undertake a review of a premises licence. Licensing Sub 

Committee " 
  
7.  Power to determine applications for club gaming/club machine 

permits where objections have been made and not withdrawn. 
" 

  
8.  Power to cancel club gaming/club machine permits. " 
  
9.  Power to give counter notice to a temporary use notice and as 

provided elsewhere in this part of the Constitution. 
" 

  
 
 

 
FUNCTIONS 

 
DELEGATION 
OF FUNCTION 

 

To undertake the Council’s role as Charitable Trustee, including 
where the Council is sole trustee and including the consideration of 
matters where there is a conflict or potential conflict between the 
Council’s interests and those of the Charitable Trust. 
 

Charitable 
Trustee  
Committee 

Formatted Table

Page 107



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 27 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

1. To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the 
Constitution relating to the annual statement of accounts 
 
 
1. Functions relating to statements of account pensions etc. 
 
2. Functions relating to local government statements and of accounts 

and pensions, etc. 
 
3. Duty to approve authority’s statement of accounts, income and 
expenditure and balance sheet, or record of payments and receipts 
(as the case may be). 

 
4. Council Tax Base Calculation 
 
Audit and Safeguarding Committee 
 
 
To consider and approve the Annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
2. To consider and approve the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
3. To approve the Internal Audit Charter. 
 
4. To review and approve the Internal Audit Annual Plan and the Risk 
Management Strategy, considering the effectiveness of the proposed 
audit programme in providing adequate assurance over 
arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control 
for the ensuing year. 
 
5. To consider the Internal Audit reports arising from the audit 
programme, ensuring that adequate management responses are 
made in respect of the findings of audit investigations, and particularly 
monitoring the outcomes of responses to individual significant 
adverse reports on financial management and internal control. 
 
6. To consider the Internal Audit Annual Report and to ensure the 
implementation of any appropriate action that may be identified. 
 
 
 
7. To review the adequacy of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, 
and related policies and procedures, to ensure their application and 
effectiveness.  
 
8. To consider the External Audit Plan, the external auditor’s annual 
letter, relevant reports and the annual report to those charged with 
governance on issues arising from the audit of the Annual Statement 
of Accounts. 
 
9. To consider the reports of external inspection agencies that are 
relevant to the Terms of Reference of this Committee, and engage 
with those agencies as appropriate to ensure that appropriate and 
effective relationships between those agencies and the Council are 
maintained. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Page 108



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 28 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

 
 
To review the adequacy of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, 
and related policies and procedures, to ensure their application and 
effectiveness.  
 
To consider the External Audit Plan, the external auditor’s annual 
letter, relevant reports and the annual report to those charged with 
governance on issues arising from the audit of the Annual Statement 
of Accounts. 
 
To consider the reports of external inspection agencies that are 
relevant to the Terms of Reference of this Committee, and engage 
with those agencies as appropriate to ensure that appropriate and 
effective relationships between those agencies and the Council are 
maintained. 
 
Consideration and approval of the Council Tax Base and the 
Business Rate Baseline Return (NNDR1) 
 
To engage with the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board as 
appropriate to ensure that appropriate and effective relationships 
between the Board and the Council are maintained, and to review 
and audit the work of the Board through processes including 
 

 Consideration of Performance against Annual Business Plan 
targets, performance indicators etc 

 Consideration of Performance against contractual, service 
level agreements/ requirements 

 Consideration of Annual Reports 
 

 

Page 109



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 29 of 37 Updated May 2014  

  

To challenge and audit the work of principal Council contractors (L4L, 
RDA) through processes including 

 Consideration of Performance against Annual Business Plan 
targets, performance indicators etc 

 Consideration of Performance against contractual, service 
level agreements/ requirements 

 Consideration of Annual Reports 
 

 

  
 

Page 110



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 30 of 37 Updated May 2014    

4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 
 

 The Executive shall be responsible for undertaking all functions, powers and duties 
relating to the lawful business of the Council, (except the non-executive functions 
for determination by the Council, or delegated by the Council to Committees, Sub-
Committees and Officers, or functions statutorily determined to be undertaken by 
the Health and Wellbeing Board), including but not limited to:- 

 
1 The development, revision, amendment and implementation of the Plans, 

Strategies and Policies which form the Policy Framework as set out in 
Article 4 for submission to the Council for approval. 

 
2  Any items of major policy or other significance which are to be referred to 

the Council for determination. 
 
3 The organisation and management processes of the Council designed to 

make the most effective contribution to the achievement of the Council's 
objectives; to keep them under review in the light of changing 
circumstances, to make changes in either political management or 
departmental organisational structures in relation to the allocation of 
functions and responsibilities. 

 
4 The development and implementation of the Budget. 
 
5 The allocation, management and control of all Council Services within the 

Budget and Policy Framework approved by the Council. 
 
6 The level of discretionary fees and charges. 
 
7 The development and implementation of the Community Plan. 
 
8 The development and implementation of Best Valuewellbeing initiatives. 
 
9 Performance Management Monitoring and evaluation. 
 
10 Service planning and objectives. 
 
11 The discharge of the Council's functions in respect of emergency planning. 
 
12 Consulting Township Committees on matters relating to a Township 

Committee's area and, as appropriate and practical, on corporate matters 
which impact on a Township generally. 

 
13 Overall responsibility for the delivery of the Council's statutory housing 

functions. 
 
14 The development of proposals for Housing Land Transfer. 
 
15 The determination of any Council housing rents. 
 
156 Exercising the functions, powers and duties of the Council as Local 

Education Authority. 
 
167 Recommending changes in school organisation to the Schools Organisation 

Committee. 

Page 111



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 31 of 37 Updated May 2014    

 
178 The planning and provision of school places. 
 
189 Exercising the functions, powers and duties of the Council relating to the 

provision of Social Services. 
 
1920 Power to set payments for care in independent sector Nursing Homes and 

Residential Care Homes within the Borough 
 
2021 Exercising the functions, powers and duties of the Council under the Public 

Order Act 1986. 
 
212 Exercising the functions, power and duties of the Council in relation to the 

compulsory purchase of properties or lands. 
 
223 The approval of claims for compensation arising out of proposed or 

confirmed Compulsory Purchase Orders. 
 
234 The approval of the terms of disposal of properties or lands owned by the 

Council for its existing use or a use for which planning permission has been 
obtained, consulting the relevant Township Committee(s) where 
appropriate. 

 
245 The approval of the terms of purchase or properties or lands in proposed or 

confirmed Compulsory Purchase Orders. 
 
256 The approval of the terms of purchase of properties or lands in the approved 

Housing Inspection Programme in advance of any resolution to make a 
Compulsory Purchase Order, and of properties or lands designated for 
Clearance in a Housing Programme. 

 
267 The exercise of all functions, powers and duties in relation to road traffic 

regulation and traffic regulation orders, and traffic management and 
regulation matters. 

 
278 To approve the provision of new play sites. 
 

 The Executive shall not be responsible for any such functions or actions as are 
stated as not being the responsibility of the Executive in Regulations 2 and 4 and in 
the circumstances mentioned in Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Functions 
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended). 

 
 Delegation to the Executive 
 

1 All functions, powers and duties relating the lawful business of the Council, 
except the non-executive functions for determination by the Council or 
delegated by the Council to Committees, Sub-Committees and Officers, 
including 4.1-4.26 above, and in particular:- 

 (a) All matters which comply with the Plans, Strategies and Policies which 
form the Budget and Policy Framework and which are approved by the 
Council 

 (b) All matters which any Officer considers should be dealt with by the 
Executive on the grounds of being inappropriate to be dealt with under 
his or her delegated powers 

Page 112



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 32 of 37 Updated May 2014    

(c) All matters which have been referred from another body for 
determination 

 (d) The exercise of functions, duties and powers relating to the 
redevelopment of the defined area of Rochdale Town Centre shall, as 
delegated by the Council, be exercised by the Rochdale Town Centre 
Committee for the duration of that Committee. 

 
 The Executive shall submit recommendations to the Council in respect of the 

following matters:- 
 (i) Those matters which have been reserved for determination by the Council in  
  Article 4 

(ii) All matters where there is a statutory requirement for a matter to be 
considered by the Council 

 (iii) All matters which the Chief Executive, Borough Solicitor or Executive Director  
  (Resources) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer 

determines should be considered by the Council. 
 
 As part of the above, the Executive shall:- 
 

1 Consider and make recommendations to the Council on the Plans, Strategies 
and Policies forming the Budget and Policy Framework in accordance with 
Article 4. 

 
2 Consider and make recommendations to the Council on a Programme of 

Capital Expenditure and on a Revenue Budget for each Service before the 
beginning of each financial year and on the setting of Virement Limits in 
accordance with Article 4. 

 
3 Consider and make recommendations to the Council regarding the calculation 

of the Council Tax Base and making and levying of the Council Tax in 
accordance with Article  

 
4 Consider and make recommendations to the Council on matters relating to 

borrowing money in accordance with Article 4. 
 

5 Consider and make recommendations to the Council on proposals for 
Housing Land Transfer in accordance with Article 4, consulting the relevant 
Township Committee(s) as appropriate. 

 
6 Determine any Council house rents. 
 
67 Determine matters within the remit of the Council as the Local Education 

Authority to ensure an efficient education service for the population of the 
area, consulting the relevant Township Committee(s) as appropriate. 

 
78 Determine all matters assigned to the Council under any legislation relating to 

the provision of Social Services, consulting the relevant Township 
Committee(s) as appropriate. 

 
89 Exercise the functions, powers and duties of the Council under the Public 

Order Act 1986. 
 

910 Exercise the functions, powers and duties of the Council in relation to the 
compulsory purchase of properties or lands. 

 

Page 113



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 33 of 37 Updated May 2014    

101 Approve claims for compensation arising out of proposed or confirmed 
Compulsory Purchase Orders. 

 
112 Approve the terms of disposal of properties or lands owned by the Council for 

its existing use or a use for which planning permission has been obtained, 
consulting the relevant Township Committee(s) as appropriate, except as 
otherwise delegated in the Council's Schemes of Delegation (Appendix 3). 

 
123 Approve the terms of purchase of properties or lands in proposed or 

confirmed Compulsory Purchase Orders where payment in respect of any one 
interest exceeds £40,000 exclusive of fees and costs. 

 
134 Approve the terms of purchase of properties or lands in the approved Housing 

Inspection Programme in advance of any resolution to make a Compulsory 
Purchase Order, and of properties or lands designated for clearance in a 
Housing Programme where payment exceeds £40,000 exclusive of fees and 
costs. 

 
145 Exercise the functions, powers and duties of the Council in relation to road 

traffic regulation orders and traffic management and regulation matters, 
except as otherwise delegated in the Council's Schemes of Delegation 
(Appendix 3). 

 
156 Determine all Local Choice Functions set out in Part 3.2 of this Constitution 

which the Council has decided should be undertaken by the Executive. 
 

17 Receive the minutes of the Joint Partnership Board for people with hearing 
disabilities (the constitution of which is appended as Appendix 1 to this part of 
the Constitution. 

 
168 Receive the minutes of the Voluntary Sector Partnership, the Terms of 

Reference for which are appended as Appendix 2 to this part of the 
Constitution. 

 
179 Approve new personnel policies and/or revise existing personnel policies, 

other than as required by the Policy Framework. 
 
1820 Approve significant organisational change (as determined by the Chief 

Executive/ Head of Personnel Services) at a strategic level. 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Functions 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will lead the improvement of the health and 
wellbeing of the Borough population, with a specific focus on tackling health 
inequalities.  The Board will join up commissioning strategies across the NHS, 
social care, public health and other partners that contribute to health and wellbeing.  
The Board will have an agreed vision, strategy and delivery plan to keep the 
business of the Board focused and ambitious.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will provide for shared leadership of a strategic 
approach to the health and wellbeing of the Borough and its communities that 
reaches across all relevant organisations.  In doing so, there will be shared 

Page 114



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 34 of 37 Updated May 2014    

ownership of the Board by all its members (and their nominating organisations) and 
accountability to the communities of the Borough 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will work to – 

 
(1) ensure that all available resources to support health improvement and 

people’s quality of life are used efficiently and to their full potential.  
(2) lead an assessment of the health and wellbeing needs of the local 

population and produce a high-level Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(3) develop a joint health and wellbeing strategy providing an overarching 

framework and priorities identified for action within which commissioning 
plans for the NHS, social care, public health and other health and wellbeing 
related services will be developed;  

(4) shift the focus of services from crisis management to a preventative 
approach at key points in the whole life course 

(5) challenge all partners to fully deliver their contribution to the Borough’s 
priorities for health and wellbeing  

(6) lead joint working and ensure coherent and co-ordinated commissioning 
strategies, including those of the NHS Commissioning Board.  

(7) provide public accountability for services that are directly related to the 
health and wellbeing of the local population. 

(8) ensure all partners fully understand what outcomes the Board are working to 
and use robust performance management structures to measure progress 
and success.  

(9) Maintain an oversight of the allocated public health budgets and how these 
are spent. 

(10) Pull together the commissioning activities of the NHS locally and the local 
authority where this aligns with delivery of the joint health and wellbeing 
strategy and, through integrated commissioning, require assurances form 
joint commissioning structures of value for money and equity of access and 
outcomes. 

 
5 DELEGATION TO INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBERS 
 
 Details of the delegation of decision-making to individual Cabinet Members are 

contained in the Council's Scheme of Delegation to individual Cabinet Members 
(Appendix 4). 

 
6 DELEGATION TO TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES 
 
 Details of the delegation of functions to Township Committees are contained in the 

Council's Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees (Appendix 1). 
 
7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SCHEME 
 
 Details of the delegation of functions are contained in the Council's Development 

Control Scheme (Appendix 2). 
 
8 DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS 
 
 Details of the delegation of functions to Officers are contained in the Council's 

Scheme of Delegation to Officers (Appendix 3). 
 
9 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS - DELEGATIONS 
 

Page 115



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 35 of 37 Updated May 2014    

9.1 Health Scrutiny 
 
 The Council has delegated those aspects of the health scrutiny function linked to 

the scrutiny of NHS organisations which cover more than one local authority area, 
including this Borough, to joint bodies.  These bodies, the participating Local 
Authorities, the NHS organisations, and the terms of reference of the bodies as 
detailed in the appendices to this part of the Constitution are as follows:- 

 

 
Body 

 
Participating Local 
Authorities 

 
NHS Organisations 

 
Appendix 

 

Greater 
Manchester Joint 
Health Scrutiny 
PanelCommittee 

Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, 
Oldham, Rochdale, 
Salford, Stockport, 
Tameside, Trafford 
and Wigan 

Greater Manchester Strategic 
Health Authority, Greater 
Manchester Ambulance Service, 
Christies  Hospital, Greater 
Manchester Workforce 
Confederation, Specialist 
Children's Service provided by 
the Greater Manchester Trust 

3 
 
 
 
 
 

Joint Committee - 
Pennine Care NHS 

Trust 

Bury, Oldham, 
Rochdale,  
Stockport, 
Tameside 

Pennine Care (Mental Health) 
NHS Trust 

4 
 
 

Joint Committee - 
Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS 

Trust 

Bury, Manchester, 
Oldham, Rochdale  

Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS 
Trust 

5 
 
 

 
9.2 Joint Waste Development Plan Document 
  
The Council has entered into a Local Agreement with the other Greater Manchester Local 
Authorities (GMLA) for the purpose of establishing a Joint Committee to: 
a) Prepare a Joint Waste Development Plan Document (JWDPD) in accordance with 

the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 2004 and to propose the same to each 
GMLA for the purpose of adoption; 

b) Subject to a resolution of each GMLA, to submit the JWDPD for Independent 
Examination, to participate in the Independent Examination of the JWDPD; 

c) To comply, where practicable, with each GMLA's Local Development Scheme; 
d) To comply with each GMLA's Statement of Community Involvement; and  
e) To procure Administrative Assistance. 
 
The preparation of a Development Plan Document concerned with waste is delegated to 
that Joint Committee, such delegation not including the approval of the JWDPD for 
Independent Examination and or adoption of the JWDPD which shall both remain decisions 
of the Council.  Procedural arrangements for the Joint Committee, including composition 
and membership of the Joint Committee, shall be as specified in the Local Agreement and 
as detailed in Appendix 6 to this Part of the Constitution. 
 
9.3 Joint Minerals Development Plan Document 
  

The Council has entered into a Local Agreement through the Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities (AGMA) for the purpose of establishing a Joint Committee 
to: 

Page 116



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 36 of 37 Updated May 2014    

a) Prepare a Joint Waste Development Plan Document (JMDPD) in accordance 
with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 2004 and to propose the same to 
each GM authority  for the purpose of adoption; 

b) Subject to a resolution of each GM authority, to submit the JMDPD for 
Independent Examination, to participate in the Independent Examination of the 
JMDPD; 

c) To comply, where practicable, with each GM authority’s  Local Development 
Scheme; 

d) To comply with each GM authority’s Statement of Community Involvement; and  
e) To procure Administrative Assistance. 

 
The preparation of a Development Plan Document concerned with minerals is 
delegated to that Joint Committee, such delegation not including the approval of the 
JMDPD for Independent Examination and or adoption of the JMDPD which shall 
both remain decisions of the Council.  Procedural arrangements for the Joint 
Committee, including composition and membership of the Joint Committee, shall be 
as specified in the Local Agreement. 

 
9.24 Association of Greater Manchester Authorities 
 

The Council has entered into a Local Agreement with the other nine local 
authorities within the Greater Manchester area to form a Joint Committee 
established as the (Joint Arrangements) Committee and called the AGMA 
Executive Board (AGMA being the acronym for the Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities). 
 
The Constitution for the AGMA Executive Board and related structures, including 
Procedure Rules, and the exercise of powers (including delegations) and terms of 
reference, as contained within the Operating Agreement and Constitution dated 29th 
August 2008 and available on the website of the Association of Greater Manchester 
Authorities, agma.gov.uk. 

 
9.35 Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
 

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) undertakes statutory 
functions across the area of Greater Manchester provided for by the Local 
Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. The Combined 
Authority covers the geographical are covered by the ten Metropolitan Borough 
areas within Greater Manchester, and the Councils f or those areas are constituent 
councils to the GMCA.  Statutory functions include  transport,  economic 
development and regeneration functions, and functions relating to transport and 
highways have also been delegated by the constituent councils.  

The Authority’s constitution is set out in an Operating Agreement, which has been 
approved by all ten constituent councils, and this Agreement also sets out the terms 
of reference and rules of procedure for the Transport for Greater Manchester 
Committee (TfGMC), the Joint Committee that oversees many of the transport 
functions of the GMCA either under delegated authority or through 
recommendation.   This Agreement also establishes and outlines the operation of 
Scrutiny arrangements.   

The GMCA constitution sets out the powers and functions of the GMCA, those 
powers and functions referred or delegated to TfGMC, Financial Procedures, Codes 
of Conduct for members and officers, and schemes of delegation to Chief Officers. 
These latter delegations provide for the day to day management, supervision and 
control of services provided for the GMCA, including the responsibilities of the Head 

Page 117



 
 
 
 
 

RMBC Constitution: Part 3 Page 37 of 37 Updated May 2014    

of Paid Service, Treasurer, Monitoring Officer and Secretary.  The GMCA 
constitution is available on the website of the Association of Greater Manchester 
Authorities, agma.gov.uk/gmca. 

A Joint Arrangement and Agreement also exists between GMCA, TfGMC and the 
ten councils in respect of the Greater Manchester Road Activity Permit Scheme.  
Matters relating to the establishment of the Scheme have been delegated to the 
GMCA and decisions relating to staffing levels and budgets, fee levels and 
allocation, adn future direction and operation of the Scheme shall apply when 
permit powers become available. 

9.46 Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel 

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 placed a responsibility on 
local authorities to establish and operate Police and Crime Panels linked to the 
establishment of the position of Police and Crime Commissioner.  The 
Arrangements for the Panel are set out in an Agreement between the ten 
constituent councils within Greater Manchester and was considered and agreed at 
a meeting of the Council held on 25th July 2012. 

 

9.5 Joint Committee on Strategic Procurement 

The Council has entered into a joint arrangement with the authorities of Trafford 
and Stockport.  

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Formatted: Underline

Page 118



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 1 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

 
 
 

PART 4 
 
 
 

(C)  BUDGET AND POLICY 
FRAMEWORK  

PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 2 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

 
CONTENTS 

 
 
 
RULE   
   
BPF1 Budget Preparation Process  
   
BPF2 Policy Preparation Process  
   
BPF3 Decisions Outside the Budget or Policy Framework  
   
BPF4 Urgent Decisions Outside the Budget or Policy Framework  
   
BPF5 Virement  
   
BPF6 In-Year Changes to the Budget and Policy Framework  
   
BPF7 Call-In of Decisions Outside the Budget or Policy Framework  
   
 

 

Page 120



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 3 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

SETTING THE FRAMEWORK 
 
The Executive shall publicise, by including in its notice of intention to make key decisionsForward 
Plan a timetable for making proposals to the Council for the adoption of any plan, strategy or budget 
which forms part of the budget and policy framework, together with its arrangements for 
consultation following publication of those initial proposals.  The Chairs of the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee(s) will also be notified of the timetable. 
 
The noticePlan  shall be available for inspection at the Council's designated officevarious 

Information Offices and on the  
CCouncil's web site. 
 
BPF1:   BUDGET PREPARATION PROCESS 
 
1.1 While the Cabinet may commence early budget preparations by making initial proposals 

and undertaking consultations, As the formal budget preparation process is determined 
by the date on which the Revenue Support Grant allocation to the Council is announced 
and the date by which the Council Tax for the following year must be set (not less than 
21 days before the date on which the Council Tax comes into effect).  T, the timescale 
for the fomal process, including consultation, is therefore limited. 

 
1.2 Process and timetable 
 
 (a) No later than the end ofDuring September, the Cabinet shall notify the relevant 

Overview and Scrutiny  
  Committee(s)s of the proposed timetable for the Budget Preparation 
process.  This timetable shall include proposed dates for any early budget 
proposals and consultation it is intended to take. 

 
(b) The timetable shall include a meeting of the Cabinet in late December in 

anticipation of Depending on the date of the publication of the Secretary of State's 
proposals for the Revenue Support Grant, at which time the Cabinet shall, in the 
third week of December, or as soon as practicable, present its firm proposals for 
the  Council's Revenue Budget for the following financial year. 

    
 (c) The Chief Executive shall be responsible for ensuring that the Cabinet's budget 

initial  
  proposals shall beare referred to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s).  
 
 (d) The Township Committees and other bodies considered appropriate , the Joint 

Consultative Committee and the Voluntary  
  Sector Partnership shall meet during January to consider the proposals.  The  
  recommendations arising from these meetingsinutes shall then be forwarded to the 

Cabinet and the   Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 

(e) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall meet further in January to consider 
the proposals of the CabinetExecutive, together with the recommendations of the 
Township Committees and other bodies considered appropriate., the Joint 
Consultative Committee and the Voluntary Sector Partnership. 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  3 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left
+ Not at  2.86 cm

Page 121



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 4 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

(f) The recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Township 
Committees and other bodies considered appropriate, the Joint Consultative 
Committee and the Voluntary Sector Partnership with regard to the initial proposals 
on the budget shall be forwarded to the Cabinet. 

 
(g) The Cabinet shall meet in February to consider during the first full week in 

February.  Having considered the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, the Township Committees and other bodies considered appropriate , 
the Joint Consultative Committee and the Voluntary Sector Partnership, the 
Cabinetand may, if it considers it appropriate, may amend its proposals before 
submitting them to full Council for consideration.  It will also report to Council on 
how it has taken into account any recommendations from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Township Committees and any other body consulted, Joint 
Consultative Committee and Voluntary Sector Partnership. 

 
(h) The Council shall meet to consider the recommendations and report of the Cabinet 

with sufficient time for the provisions of BPF 1.4 below to be enacted, if required.  
 

1.3 Calculation 
 
(ha) Where Subject to Rule BPF(1) where, before 8th February in any financial year, 

the Cabinet submits to the Council, or such other body as the Council may 
determine, for its consideration in relation to the following financial year:- 

 
  (a) estimates of the amounts to be aggregated in making a calculation   

  (whether originally or by way of substitute) in accordance with any of  
  sections 31A2 to 37 or 43 to 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
 (b) estimates of other amounts to be used for the purposes of such a calculation 
 (c) estimates of such a calculation, or 

(d) amounts required to be stated in a precept under Chapter IV of Part 1 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 

 
 and following consideration of those estimates or amounts the Council or the 

delegated body has any objections to them, it must take the action set out in Rule 
BPF1.3(ib). 

 
(ib) Before the Council or delegated body makes a calculation (whether originally or by 

way of substitute) in accordance with any of the sections referred to in Rule 
BPF1.3(h)(a), or issues a precept under Chapter IV of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, it must inform the Leader of any objections which it 
has to the Cabinet's estimates or amounts and must give to the Leader instructions 
requiring the Cabinet to reconsider, in the light of those objections, those estimates 
and amounts in accordance with the Council's requirements. 

 
(jc) Where the Council or delegated body gives instructions in accordance with Rule 

BPF1.3(ib), it must specify a period of at least five working days beginning on the 
day after the date on which the Leader receives the instructions on behalf of the 
Cabinet within which the Leader may:- 

 
 (a) submit a revision of the estimates or amounts as amended by the Cabinet  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left +
Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 122



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 5 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

  ("revised estimates or amounts") which have been reconsidered in 
 accordance with the Council's requirements, with the Cabinet's reasons for 
 any amendments made to the estimates or amounts, to the Council for the  

  Council's consideration, or 
(b) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the 

Council's objections and the Cabinet's reasons for any such disagreement 
 
(kd) When the period specified as by the Council, referred to in Rule 1.3(jc) has 

expired, the Council must, when making calculations (whether originally or by way 
of substitute) in accordance with the sections referred to in BPF Rule 1.3(ha)(a), or 
issuing a precept under Chapter IV of Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, take into account:- 

 
 (a) any amendments to the estimates or amounts that are included in any 

 revised  estimates or amounts 
 (b) the Cabinet's reasons for those amendments 
 (c)  any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the Council's objections,  
  and 
 (d) the Cabinet's reasons for that disagreement 
 
 which the Leader submitted to the Council, or informed the Council of, within the 

period specified. 
 
(le) BPF Rules 1.3(ha) to (ke) shall not apply in relation to:- 
 

(a) calculations or substitute calculations which thea Council is required by the 
Secretary of State to make  in accordance with section 52I, 52J, 52T or 52U 
of the Local Government  

  Finance Act 1992, and 
(b) amounts stated in a precept issued to give effect to calculations or  substitute 

calculations made in accordance with section 52J or 52U of that Act. 
1.4 Budget 
 

(ma) The Council shall meet in the last week of February to consider the proposals 
of the Cabinet and may adopt them, amend them further or substitute its own 
proposals in their place. In considering the matter, the Council should have before 
it the Cabinet's proposals and any report from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  

 
(b) The Council's decision shall be published and a copy shall be given to the Leader. 

The notice of the decision shall be dated and shall state either that the decision 
shall be effective immediately (if the Council accepts the Cabinet's proposals 
without amendment), or (if the Cabinet's proposals are not accepted without 
amendment) that the Council's decision shall become effective on the expiry of five 
working days after the publication of the notice of the decision, unless the Leader 
objects to it within that period. 

 
(nc) If the Leader objects to the decision of the Council, he/she should give written 

notice to the Chief Executive to that effect prior to the date upon which the decision 
is to be effective. The written notification must state the reasons for the objection.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm, Tab stops: Not at  3.65 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left +
Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 123



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 6 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

Where such notification is received, the objection shall be referred to athe further 
meeting of Council scheduled to take place before 10th March. 

 
(od) At that Council meeting, the decision of the Council shall be reconsidered in the 

light of the objection, which shall be available in writing for the Council. 
 
(pe) The Council shall, at that meeting, make its final decision on the matter on the 

basis of a simple majority. The decision shall be published and shall be 
implemented immediately. 

 
(qf) In approving the budget, the Council shall also specify the extent of virement within 

the budget and the degree of in year changes to the budget framework which may 
be undertaken by the Cabinet in accordance with rule BPF5 (Virement) and BPF6 
(In year changes to the Budget and Policy Framework). 

 
BPF2:   POLICY PREPARATION PROCESS 
 

2.1 Process  
 

(a) Before the Cabinet meets to recommend adoption of a plan or strategy to the 
Council, At least four months before a plan or strategy needs to be adopted, the 
Cabinet shall first have published initial proposals on the plan or strategy and 
have shall canvassed the views of local stakeholders as appropriate and in a 
matter suitable to the matter under consideration.  If the matter is one where the 
Overview and Scrutiny  Committee has carried out a review or study, then the 
findings of that review or study will be reported to the Cabinet and considered in 
the preparation of initial proposals. 

 
 
(b) Any representations made to the Cabinet as part of theis consultation process 

shall be taken into account in formulating the initial proposals and shall be 
reflected in any report dealing with them and, where time permits, be reported 
also to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  If the matter is one where the 
Overview and Scrutiny  Committee has carried out a review or study, then the 
findings of that review or study will be reported to the Cabinet and considered in 
the preparation of initial proposals. 

 
(c) The Cabinet's initial proposals shall be referred to the appropriate Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and also to the Township Committees where there is a local 
dimension and the Township Committee(s) can influence that local content.  The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall canvass the views of local stakeholders if 
it considers it appropriate, though will in accordance with the matter under 
consideration and haveing particular regard not to duplicate any consultation 
carried out by the Cabinet.  The outcome of the deliberations of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee shall be reported to the Cabinet on the outcome of its 
deliberations.  If the The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall present its 
response on the initial proposals to the next appropriate meeting of the Cabinet, 
unless the Cabinet considers that there are special factors, which require a more 
immediate response, .  If it does, it will inform the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the time for response when the proposals are submitted and how 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25 cm,
Hanging:  1.75 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25 cm,
Hanging:  2.75 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.06 cm,
Hanging:  0.94 cm

Page 124



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 7 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

the Committee’s deliberations will be consideredwhen the proposals are referred 
to it. 

 
(d) Having considered the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and the Township Committees where appropriate, the Cabinet, if it considers it 
appropriate, may amend its proposals before submitting them to full Council for 
consideration.  It will also report to Council on how it has taken into account any 
such  recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Township Committees. 

 
(e) The Council shall consider the proposals of the Cabinet and may adopt them, 

amend them or substitute its own proposals in their place.  In considering the 
matter, the Council should have before it the Cabinet's proposals and any report 
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   

 
(f) The Chief Executive shall give notice of the decision to the Leader.  The notice 

shall be dated and shall state either that the decision shall be effective 
immediately (if the Council has no objections to the proposals) or shall give notice 
in accordance with BPF2.1(g) and (h) (if the Council has objections to the 
proposals). 

 
(g)   Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with BPF Rule 2.1(f), it must 

specify a period of five working days beginning on the day after the date on which 
the Leader receives the instructions on behalf of the Cabinet within which the 
Leader may: 

 
(a) submit a revision of the plan or strategy as amended by the Cabinet  

(the "revised plan or strategy"), with the Cabinet's reasons for any 
   amendments made to the plan or strategy, to the Council for the  
   Council's consideration, or 

(b) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the  
   Council's objections and the Cabinet's reasons for any such disagreement 
 

(h) When the period specified by the Council, referred to in BPF2.1(g) has expired, 
the Council must make a final decision and when: 

 
(a) amending the plan or strategy or, if there is one, the revised plan or  
 strategy  
or 
(b) adopting (with or without modification) the plan or strategy 
 

 take into account any amendments made to the plan or strategy that are included 
in any revised plan or strategy, the Cabinet's reasons for those amendments, any 
disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the Council's objections and the 
Cabinet's reasons for that disagreement, which the Leader submitted to the 
Council, or informed the Council of, within the period specified. 

 
2.2 Draft plans 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.25 cm,
Hanging:  0.75 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 125



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 8 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

(fa) Where the Cabinet has submitted a draft plan or strategy to the Council for its 
consideration and, following consideration of that draft plan or strategy, the 
Council has any objections to it, the Council must take the action set out in 
BPF2.2(gb). 

 
(gb) Before the Council : 
 

(a) amends the draft plan or strategy  
(b) approves, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or any  

 Minister of the Crown for his/her approval, any plan or strategy (whether or  
 not in the form of a draft), of which any part is required to be so submitted, or 
(c) adopts (with or without modification) the plan or strategy 

 
 it must inform the Leader of any objections which it has to the draft plan or strategy and 
must give to him instructions requiring the Cabinet to reconsider, in the light of those objections, the 
draft plan or strategy submitted to it. 

 
(hc) Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with BPF Rule 2.2(gb), it must 

specify a period of five working days beginning on the day after the date on which 
the Leader receives the instructions on behalf of the Cabinet within which the 
Leader may: 

 
(a) submit a revision of the draft plan or strategy as amended by the Cabinet  

(the "revised draft plan or strategy"), with the Cabinet's reasons for any 
   amendments made to the draft plan or strategy, to the Council for the  
   Council's consideration, or 

(b) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the  
   Council's objections and the Cabinet's reasons for any such disagreement 
 

(i) When the period specified by the Council, referred to in BPF2.2(hc) has expired, 
the Council must make a final decision and when: 

 
(a) amending the draft plan or strategy or, if there is one, the revised draft plan or  
 strategy and  
(b) approving for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or any  
 Minister of the Crown for his/her approval, any draft plan or strategy (whether 

or not in  
 the form of a draft or revised draft) of which any part is required to be so  
 submitted, or 
(c) adopting (with or without modification), the plan or strategy 
 

 take into account any amendments made to the draft plan or strategy that are 
included in any revised draft plan or strategy, the Cabinet's reasons for those 
amendments, any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the Council's 
objections and the Cabinet's reasons for that disagreement, which the Leader 
submitted to the Council, or informed the Council of, within the period specified. 

 
 
BPF3: DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.22 cm,
Hanging:  0.79 cm, Tab stops: Not at 
2.86 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Page 126



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 9 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

(a)  Subject to the provisions of Rule BPF5 (virement) the Cabinet, committees of the 
Cabinet, individual Cabinet members, and any any Township Committees or 
Officers discharging executive functions may only take decisions which are in line 
with the budget and policy framework. If any of these bodies or persons wishes to 
make a decision which is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget approved by full Ccouncil, then that decision 
may only be taken by the Council, subject to Rule BPF4 below. 

 
 (b)   If the Cabinet, committees of the Cabinet, individual Cabinet members, and any 

Township Committees or Officers discharging executive functions want to make 
such a decision, they shall take advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the S151 
Officer as to whether the decision they want to make would be contrary to the 
policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget.  If the 
advice of either of those officers is that the decision would not be in line with the 
existing budget and/or policy framework, then the decision shall be referred by that 
body or person to the Council for decision, unless the decision is a matter of 
urgency, in which case the provisions in Rule BPF4 (urgent decisions outside the 
budget and policy framework) shall apply. 

 
BPF4:   URGENT DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

4.1 (a)  The Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual Cabinet member, a 
Township Committee or Officers discharging executive functions may take a decision 
which is contrary to the Council’s policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget approved by full Council if the decision is a matter of 
urgency. However, the decision may only be taken:- 

 
 i)  if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the Council; and  
 ii)  if the chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agrees that the  
  decision is a matter of urgency. 
 

4.2  The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full Council andd  
tthe consent of the Cchair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to the decision 
being taken as a matter of urgency should be noted on the record of the decision. In 
the absence of the chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the consent of the 
Mmayor, and in the absence of both, the Ddeputy mMayor shall be sufficient. 

 
4.3  (b)  Following the decision, the decision taker shall provide a full report to the next 

available Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and why the 
decision was treated as a matter of urgency. 

 
BPF5:  VIREMENT 
  

 (a)  The Council shall have the following budget heads:- 

 Adult Care 

 Assistant Chief Executive 

 Business Partnerships 

 Child Care 

 Environment Management 

 Finance Services 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.22 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.54 cm, Tab stops:  2.25
cm, Left + Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.54 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.06 cm,  No bullets or
numbering

Page 127



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 10 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

 Information and Libraries 

 Learners and Young People 

 Legal and Democratic Services 

 Partnership and Regeneration 

 People Management 

 Performance and Development 

 Planning and Regulation 

 Revenues and Benefits 

 Schools 

 Strategic Housing 

 Housing Revenue Account 
 

5.1 (b)  Steps taken by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
members, Township Committees or Officers,  discharging executive functions to 
implement Council policy shall not exceed those budgets allocated to each budget 
head. However, such bodies or individuals shall be entitled to vire across budget heads 
in accordance with the virement procedures approved by full Council. 

 
5.2 Virement shall only be undertaken in accordance with Budget and Policy Framework 

Rule 1.4(e) and the requirements of Financial Regulations, including the agreed 
Scheme of Virement. 

 
 
BPF6: IN-YEAR CHANGES TO THE BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
 The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with the Council, 

and decisions by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, individual Cabinet members, 
Township Committees or Officers, discharging executive functions should be in line with 
the framework. No changes to any policy and strategy which make up the policy 
framework may be made by those bodies or individuals except those changes:- 

 
 (a)  Which shall result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part of service  
  to meet a budgetary constraint 
 
 (b)  Which are necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial direction or  
  government guidance 
 
 (c)  In relation to the policy framework in respect of a policy which would normally  
  be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but where the existing  
  policy document is silent on the matter under consideration 
 
 (d)  Which relate to policy in relation to schools, where the majority of school  
  governing bodies agree with the proposed change 
 
BPF7: CALL-IN OF DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

 (a)  Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is of the opinion that an 
executive decision that has been called in is, or if made would be, contrary to the policy 
framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Council’s budget, then it 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.86 cm,
Tab stops:  2 cm, Left + Not at  2.86
cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left
+ Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.86 cm

Page 128



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 11 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

shall seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Executive Director 
(Resources).and shall refer the matter to the Council for determination. 

 
7.2 The relevant considerations to be undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and, in the event of a referral to the Council, by the Council are contained within the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules.  

 
 (b) In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Executive, the Monitoring 

Officer's report and/or the S151 Officerand/or Head of Finance's report shall be to 
the Cabinet with a copy to every Member of the Council. Regardless of whether the 
decision is delegated or not, the Cabinet must meet to decide what action to take in 
respect of the Monitoring Officer's or the S151 Officer ’s report and to prepare a 
report to Council in the event that the Monitoring Officer or the S151 Officer 
concludes that the decision was a departure, and to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee if the Monitoring Officer or the S151 Officer concludes that the decision 
was not a departure. 

 
 (c) If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet implemented, and 

the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the S151 Officer is that the decision 
is or would be contrary to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may refer the 
matter to Council.  In such cases, no further action shall be taken in respect of the 
decision or its implementation until the Council has met and considered the matter. 
The Chief Executive shall then call a meeting of the Council within such time as he 
or she considers appropriate following the request by the Performance Committee. 
At the meeting, the Council shall receive a report of the decision or proposals and 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer and/or the S151 Officer. 

 
  The Council may either:- 
 
  i)  endorse a decision or proposal of the Executive decision taker as falling 

  within the existing budget and policy framework. In this case no 
further    action is required, save that the decision of the Council 
shall be minuted    and circulated to all Councillors in the normal 
way 

 
  Or 
 
  ii)  amend the Council’s budget or policy framework to  encompass the  

   decision or proposal of the body or individual responsible for 
that      executive function and agree to the decision 
with immediate effect. In this     case, no further action 
shall be required save that the decision of the     Council 
shall be minuted and circulated to all Councillors in the normal    
 way  

 
  Or 
 
  iii)  where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary to the  

   policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.86 cm, Tab stops:  2.06
cm, Left + Not at  2.86 cm

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  2.86
cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.86 cm, Tab stops:  2.06
cm, Left + Not at  2.86 cm

Page 129



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4C Page 12 of 12 Revised February 2015May 2014 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 

with the     budget, and does not amend the existing 
framework to accommodate it,     the Council shall require 
the Executive to reconsider the matter in     
 accordance with the advice of either the Monitoring Officer or theS151  
   Officer.  

 

 
 
 

 

Page 130



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 1 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

 
 
 

PART 4 
 
 
 
 
 

(D)  EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE 
RULES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 2 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

 
CONTENTS 

 
 
 
RULE   
   
EP1 Operation of the Executive  
   
EP2 Conduct of Executive Meetings  
   
EP3 Committees of the Cabinet  
   
EP4 Individual Cabinet Members  
   
EP5 Township Committees and Sub-Committees 

Exercising Executive Functions 
 

   
EP6 Rulings   
 

Page 132



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 3 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

EP1 OPERATION OF THE EXECUTIVE 
 
1.1 Executive Decision Making 
 
 The arrangements for the discharge of executive functions are determined by the 

Leader of the Council who may determine the exercise of executive power to be set 
out in Part 3 of this Constitution adopted by the Council.  Those arrangements 
provide for executive functions to be discharged by:- 

 
(i) The Cabinet 
(ii) A Committee of the Cabinet 
(iii) A Member of the Cabinet 
(iv) An Officer  
(v) A Township Committee 
(vi) Joint Arrangements 

 
1.2 Arrangements for the Discharge of Executive Functions 
 
 The Leader of the Council shall at the Annual Meeting of the Council each year,  

confirm the arrangements for the discharge of executive functions and the 
delegation of those functions as provided in Rule EP1.1 above. 

 
1.3 Changes to the Arrangements for the Discharge of Executive Functions 
 
 The Leader of the Council may determine changes in the discharge of executive 

functions at any time, provided that notice of such changes is advised to all 
Members of the Council and is given by publication of the changes to the Council’s 
website, prior to the exercise of powers under the changed arrangements.  The 
Leader shall report to the followinga  meeting of the Council at any time regarding 
proposed changes in to the arrangements determined since the previous meeting of 
the Council.for the discharge of executive functions for inclusion in the Council’s 
Schemes of Delegation in relation to Part 3 of the Constitution. 

 
1.4 Conflicts of Interest 
 

(a) If a Member of the Cabinet has a conflict of interest this shall be dealt with as 
set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5 of the 
Constitution. 

 
(b) If the exercise of an executive function has been delegated to a Cabinet 

member, a Committee of the Cabinet, an Officer or a Township Committee, and 
should a conflict of interest arise meaning that person or body cannot make a 
decision, then the function shall be exercised by the Cabinet,in the first 
instance by the body by whom the delegation was made and unless otherwise 
as set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5 of the 
Constitution. 

 
1.5 Leader and Deputy Leader 
 

(a) The Council shall appoint a person from among the Members of the Council to 
be the Leader. 

Page 133



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 4 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

 
(b) The Member appointed as Leader shall remain in office for a period of up to 

four years from the day of the Annual Meeting and ending on the day when the 
Council holds its first Annual Meeting after the Leader’s normal day of 
retirement as a Councillor or the Council rescinds the appointment or the 
person ceases to be a Councillor, whereupon the Council shall forthwith 
appoint another person to be Leader. 

 
 (c) The Leader shall appoint a person from among the Members of the Cabinet to 

be the Deputy Leader to act in the absence of the Leader. 
 
 (d) The Member appointed as Deputy Leader shall remain in office until the next 

 Annual Meeting of the Council or until the Leader rescinds the appointment, 
 whereupon the Leader shall forthwith appoint another person from among the 
 Members of the Cabinet to be Deputy Leader.   

 
1.6 Absence of a Cabinet Member 
 
 The Leader, or in his or her absence the Deputy Leader, shall be able to act on 

behalf of any Cabinet Member in his or her absence or where he or she is unable to 
act. 

 
1.7 Date, Time and Place of Executive Meetings 
 
 The Council at its Annual Meeting shall agree a schedule of Cabinet and Township 

Committee meetings. 
 
1.8 Meetings of the CabinetExecutive 
  
 Meetings of the Cabinet Executive shall normally be held in public other than when 

the decision maker determines that confidential and/or exempt information might be 
disclosed.  28 days notice of the intention to consider business in private shall 
normally be provided. 

 
 The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution sets out the 

requirements in respect of public and private meetings. 
 
1.9 Quorum 
  
 The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet shall be three., provided that the Leader 

and/or the Deputy Leader shall be in attendance. 
 
1.10 Executive Decision Making  
 

(a)  Executive decisions shall be taken in accordance with the principles set out in 
Article 13 of the Constitution. 

 
(b) Executive decisions which have been delegated to the Cabinet, Committees of 

the Cabinet and Township Committees shall be taken at meetings convened in 
accordance with the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

Page 134



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 5 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

1.11 Committees of the Cabinet and Township Sub-Committees 
  
 The Cabinet shall have power to appoint Committees of the Cabinet, and Township 

Committees shall have power to appoint Sub-Committees. 
 
EP2 CONDUCT OF CABINETEXECUTIVE MEETINGS 
 
2.1 Chairman of the Meeting 
 

(a) The Cabinet and Committees of the Cabinet - If the Leader is present he or she 
shall preside.  In his or her absence, the Deputy Leader shall preside.  In the 
absence of both of them, or where they so agree, a person appointed to do so 
by those present shall chair the meeting. 

 
(b) Township Committees and Sub-Committees - The Chair, or in his or her 

absence the Vice Chair, shall preside.  In the absence of both of them, or 
where they so agree, a person appointed to do so shall chair the meeting. 

 
2.2 Attendance 
 

(a) Attendance shall be as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 
(b) A Member who is not a Member of the Cabinet or, a Committee of the Cabinet 

or of a particular Township Committee or Sub-Committee may attend any of 
those meetings for public items, and the Chairman of the meeting shall have 
power to determine whether or not that Member shall be permitted to remain in 
the meeting during the consideration of any private item of business. 

  
(c) The Chair of the meeting shall have power to determine whether or not persons 

other than Members of the Cabinet or , Committees of the Cabinet or Township 
Committees or Sub-Committees shall be allowed to speak on any item of 
business and, if so, for how long.  

 
2.3 Business 
 
 At each meeting of the Cabinet, the following business shall be conducted:- 
 

(i)  Consideration of the Minutes of the last meeting Declarations of interest, if any 
(ii) Declarations of interest, if anyConsideration of the Minutes of the last meeting 
(iii) Matters referred to the Cabinet (whether by an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee or by the Council) for reconsideration by the Cabinet in accordance 
with the provisions of contained in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the 
Constitution 

(iv) Consideration of any reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committees   
(v)   The business set out in the agenda for the meeting, which shall indicate which 

are Key Decisions and which are not Key Decisions in accordance with the 
Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution 

Page 135



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 6 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

(vi)  The business set out in the agenda for consideration as private business where 
 notice in accordance with the requirements as set out in the Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution has been given. 
 

 The summons to all meetings shall set out the business to be considered and no 
business other than that set out in the summons shall be considered at that meeting, 
except with the consent of the Chair of the meeting at the outset of any meeting, 
which consent shall be given only in accordance with the provisions of section 
100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972requirements of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules. 

 
2.4 Consultation 
 
 All reports to the Cabinet on proposals relating to the formulation of the Budget and 

Policy Framework shall contain details of the nature and extent of any consultation 
with Stakeholders and the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the 
outcome of that consultation.  Reports about other matters shall set out the details 
and outcome of any consultation as appropriate.   

 
2.5 The Cabinet Agenda 
 

(i) Any Member of the Cabinet may request the Chief Executive to place an item 
of business which is about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 
which affects the Borough on the agenda of the next available meeting of the 
Cabinet.   

 
(ii) Any Member of the Council may request the Chief Executive to place an item 

of business which is about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 
which affects the Borough to be placed on the agenda of a Cabinet meeting for 
consideration.  The Chief Executive, or in his or her absence the Leader or 
Deputy Leader, shall only refuse to comply with such a request for some 
substantial reason.  The Notice of the Meeting shall state the name of the 
Member who requested the item of business to be considered.  This Member 
shall be invited to attend the meeting, whether or not it is a meeting in public 
session.  However, the Chief Executive has the discretion to limit the number of 
such items of business at the Cabinet meeting. 

 
(iii) The Chief Executive shall ensure that aAny item of business resolved by an i 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Council for referral to the Cabinet 
shall bes placed on the agenda of the next available meeting of the Cabinet or 
as soon as practicable thereafter. where a relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or the Council have resolved that an item of business be 
considered by the Cabinet.  

 
(iv) The Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer may 

include one or more items of business for consideration on the agenda of a 
Cabinet meeting and may require a meeting to be called in pursuance of their 
statutory duties.  If there is no meeting of the Cabinet in time to deal with the 
matter in question, then the person(s) entitled to include an item of business on 
the agenda may also require that a meeting be convened at which the matter 
will be considered. 

Page 136



 

RMBC Constitution: Part 4D Page 7 of 7 Revised May 2014February 2015 
Executive Procedure Rules 

 
(v) The Leader may request the Chief Executive to call a Special Meeting of the 

Cabinet. 
 
EP3 COMMITTEES OF THE CABINET 
 
 These Rules apply to Committees of the Cabinet (with the exception of Rule EP1.5, 

Rule EP1.9 where the quorum shall be three, Rule EP2.1(b) and Rule EP4). 
 
EP4 INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBERS 
 
 An individual Cabinet Member may only determine such matters as specified in Part 

3 to the Constitution.  Such matters must be determined in the presence of a 
Director or other designated Officer on consideration of a prepared report. 

 
 
 
EP5 TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES EXERCISING EXECUTIVE  
 FUNCTIONS 
 
 These Rules apply to Township Committees and Sub-Committees exercising 

executive functions (except for the purposes of Rules EP1.56, 1.8, 1.9, 2.1 to 2.5, 3 
and 4 where the provisions for Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 
Procedure Rules respectively shall apply)Rule EP1.9 where the quorum for 
Township Committees shall be a third or five (whichever is the greater) and three for 
Township Sub-Committees, Rule EP2.1(a) and Rule EP3). 

 
EP6 RULINGS  
 
 The ruling of the Chief Executive or his or her nominee as to the interpretation of 

these Executive Procedure Rules or as to the procedure to be followed in relation to 
executive meetings if not otherwise stated in the Executive Procedure Rules shall 
be final and not open to discussion. 

 
 

Page 137



Appointment of Statutory and Proper Officers 

1. In this Constitution Tthe posts set out below shall beare the designated Statutory and 
Proper Officer for the Council and those posts shallwill undertake the specific 
responsibilities attached to the role of the specific Statutory and Proper Officer. 

2. In the event of any Officers mentioned below being for any reason unable to act or of 
any of their posts being vacant, the Chief Executive or, in their absence, the 
Executive Director (Governance)Director of Customer and Corporate Services, or the 
and in the absence of both, the Executive Director (Finance)Director of Finance, shall 
nominate an Officer to act in their stead.  

3. Until the Council decides otherwise the Chief Executive is appointed the Proper 
Officer for the purpose of all statutory provisions, whether existing or future, in 
respect of which no express Proper Officer appointment has, for the time being, been 
made. 

Statutory Officers 

Legislation Section Statutory Officer Allocated To 

Local Authority 
Social Services Act 
1970 

S6 
Director of Social 
Services (Adult 
Services only) 

Executive Director (Community, 
Children, Adults and Health 
Services)Director of Adult Services 

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S151 
Chief Finance 
Officer 

Executive Director of  (Finance) 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

S4 
Head of Paid 
Service 

Chief Executive 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

S5 Monitoring Officer 
Executive Director (Governance)Head of 
Legal and Governance Reform 

Education Act 1996 S532 
Chief Education 
Officer 

Executive Director (Community, 
Children, Adults and Health 
Services)Director of Childrens’ Services 

Childrens Act 2004 S18 
Director of 
Childrens Services 

Director of Childrens’ ServicesExecutive 
Director (Community, Children, Adults 
and Health Services) 

Proper Officers 

Legislation Section Provision Proper Officer 

Any reference to any enactment passed before or during the 
1971-72 session of Parliament other than the Local Government 
Act 1972 or in any instrument made before 26th October 1972 to 
the Town Clerk of a Borough which, by virtue of any provision of 
the said Act, is to be construed as a reference to the Proper 
Officer of the Council. 

Chief Executive 

Any reference in any local statutory provision to the Clerk of the 
Council or similar which, by virtue of an order made under the 
Local Government Act 1972 or the Local Government Act 1992, 

Chief Executive 

Formatted: Double underline

Page 138



is to be construed as a reference to the Proper Officer of the 
Council. 

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S83(1)-(4) 
Witness and receipt of 
declaration of acceptance of 
office 

Chief Executive 

 S84 
Receipt of declaration of 
resignation of office 

Chief Executive 

 S88(2) 
Convening of meeting of 
Council to fill casual vacancy 
in office of Chair/Mayor 

Chief Executive 

 S89(1)(b) 
Receipt of notice of casual 
vacancy from two local 
government electors 

Chief Executive 

 S225(1) Deposit of documents Chief Executive 

Local Elections 
(Principal Areas) 
Rule 1986 

Rule 44 
Receipt from Returning 
Officer of names of persons 
elected to Council 

Chief Executive 

 Rule 46, 47 
Receipt from Returning 
Officer of election documents 

Chief Executive 

 
Rule 48, 49, 
51 

Retention of election 
documents and making them 
available for public inspection 

Chief Executive 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

S2 
Receipt of list of Politically 
Restricted Posts 

Chief Executive 

 S15, 16, 17 
Receipt of notices relating to 
Political Groups 

Chief Executive 

The Local 
Authorities 
(Standing Orders) 
(England) 
Regulations 2000 

Regs 3 and 4 
and Schedule 
1 

Provision relating to the 
appointment and dismissal of 
staff 

Chief Executive 

    

    

Registration 
Services Act 1953 

S9(1)  
S3(b) 
S13(2)(h)  
S20(b) 

Registration of Births, Deaths 
and Marriages 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

  
Registration of Births, Deaths 
and Marriages Regulations 
1968 - 1994 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S100(B)(2) 
Circulation of reports and 
agendas 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S100(B)(7) Supply of papers to press 
Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S100(C)(2) Summary of minutes 
Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Page 139



 S100(D)(1)(a) 
Compilation of background 
papers 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S100(D)(5)(a) 
Identification of background 
papers 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S100(F) 
Identification of confidential 
documents not open to 
Members 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S229(5) 
Deposit of documents - 
certification 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S234 Authentication of documents 
Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 
S236(9) & 
(10) 

Service of Byelaws on other 
Authorities 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S238 Certification of Byelaws 
Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 
Schedule 14 
Para 25(7) 

Certification of resolutions - 
Para 25 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 S248 (2) Keeping roll of Freeman 
Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 
Schedule 12 
Para 4(2)(b) 

Signature of summons to 
Council 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

 
Schedule 12 
Para 4 (3) 

Receipt of notices regarding 
addresses which Summons 
to meeting are to be sent 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Local Government 
Act 1974 

S30(5) 
Notice of Local Government 
Ombudsman report 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 
1976 

S41 
Certification of copies of 
resolutions, Minutes, other 
documents 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Greater 
Manchester Act 
1981 

S60(5)(a) 

Receipt of objections to 
proposals to designate 
places for touting, hawking, 
photographing etc. 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Elections N/A 

Officers who in the event of 
the Chief Executive being for 
any reason unable to act or 
in his absence authorised to 
undertake the full range of 
duties 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services  

Council Tax 
(Administration 
and Enforcement) 
Regulations 1992 

Reg 7 
Service of Attachment of 
Earnings Orders 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

The Local 
Authorities 
(Executive 
Arrangements) 

Regs 3 and 4 

Recording of collective 
Executive Decisions 
Verification etc. of Mayoral 
Petitions 

Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services 

Page 140



(Access to 
Information 
(England) 
Regulations 2000 

    

    

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S115(2) 
Receipt of money due from 
Officers 

Director of Finance 

 
S146(1) (a) & 
(b) 

Declarations and certificates 
with regard to securities 

Director of Finance 

 S210(6) & (7) 

Charity functions of holders 
of offices with existing 
authorities transferred to 
holders of equivalent office 
with new authorities, or if 
there is no such office, to the 
Proper Officer 

Director of Finance 

 S228(3) 
Accounts - to be open for 
inspection 

Director of Finance 

 N/A 

Any reference in any local 
statutory provision to the 
Treasurer of a specified 
Council or the Treasurer of a 
specified Borough which, by 
virtue of order made under 
Section 254 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, or the 
Local Government Act 1992, 
is to be construed as a 
reference to the Proper 
Officer of the Council 

Director of Finance 

 N/A 

Any reference in any 
enactment passed before or 
during the 1971/72 session of 
Parliament other than the 
Local Government Act 1972 
or in any instrument made 
before 26th October 1972 to 
the Treasurer or a Treasurer 
of a Borough which virtue of 
any provision of the said Act 
is to be construed as a 
reference to the Proper 
Officer of the Council 

Director of Finance 

Rates Act 1984 

 

S7 Certification of rate Director of Finance 

    

    

Page 141



Local Government 
Act 1972 

S96(1) 
Receipt of notices of 
pecuniary interests 

Monitoring Officer 

 S94 & 96(2) 
Keeping of record of 
disclosures and notice of 
pecuniary interests 

Monitoring Officer 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

S19 
Members interests - 
notification 

Monitoring Officer 

    

    

National 
Assistance Act 
1948 

All Public Health (misc) 

Head of the Greater 
Manchester Health 
Protection Unit and/or 
his/her duly authorised 
nomineesDirector of 
Public Health 

National 
Assistance 
(Amendment) Act 
1951 

All Public Health (misc) 

Head of the Greater 
Manchester Health 
Protection UnitDirector of 
Public Health 

Public Health 
(Control of 
Diseases) Act 
1984 

S11(1)  
S11(3)  
S18(1)  
S20(1)  
S21(1)  
S22(1)  
S23(2)  
S24(1)  
S26(2)  
S29(4)  
S30(2)  
S31(1)  
S32(1)  
S34(3), (5)  
S35(1)  
S36(1)  
S37(1)  
S38(1)  
S39(1), (3)  
S40  
S41(1)  
S42(1) 
S43(1)  
S48(1) 
S50(2)(b)  
S51(1) 

Control of Diseases (various) Director of Public Health  

The Public Health 
(Infectious 
Diseases) 
Regulations 1988 

Regs 6 
Regs 8  
Regs 9  
Regs 10  
Regs 11  

Infectious Diseases Director of Public Health 

Page 142



Regs 12  
Regs 13  
Schedule 3 & 
4 

Milk and Dairies 
(General) 
Regulations 1988 

Part VII 
(Regulations 
18 to 20) 

Statutory Provision 
Pasteurisation Orders 

Director of Public Health 

    

    

Registration 
Services Act 1953 

S9(1)  
S3(b) 
S13(2)(h)  
S20(b) 

Registration of Births, Deaths 
and Marriages 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

 
Registration of Births, Deaths 
and Marriages Regulations 
1968 - 1994 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S13(3) Parish Trustee Chief Executive 

S83(1)-(4) 
Witness and receipt of 
declaration of acceptance of 
office 

Chief Executive 

S84 
Receipt of declaration of 
resignation of office 

Chief Executive 

S88(2) 
Convening of meeting of 
Council to fill casual vacancy 
in office of Chair/Mayor 

Chief Executive 

S89(1)(b) 
Receipt of notice of casual 
vacancy from two local 
government electors 

Chief Executive 

S96(1) 
Receipt of notices of 
pecuniary interests 

Chief Executive 

S94 & 96(2) 
Keeping of record of 
disclosures and notice of 
pecuniary interests 

Chief Executive 

S100(B)(2) 
Circulation of reports and 
agendas 

Chief Executive 

S100(B)(7) Supply of papers to press Chief Executive 

S100(C)(2) Summary of minutes Chief Executive 

S100(D)(1)(a) 
Compilation of background 
papers 

Chief Executive 

S100(D)(5)(a) 
Identification of background 
papers 

Chief Executive 

S100(F) 
Identification of confidential 
documents not open to 
Members 

Chief Executive 

S115(2) 
Receipt of money due from 
Officers 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

Formatted Table

Page 143



S146(1) (a) & 
(b) 

Declarations and certificates 
with regard to securities 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

S191 
Functions in respect of 
Ordnance Survey 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability) 

S204(3) 
Receipt of application for 
licence under Licensing Act 
1964 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability) 

S210(6) & (7) 

Charity functions of holders 
of offices with existing 
authorities transferred to 
holders of equivalent office 
with new authorities, or if 
there is no such office, to the 
Proper Officer 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

S225(1) Deposit of documents Chief Executive 

S228(3) 
Accounts - to be open for 
inspection 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

S229(5) 
Deposit of documents - 
certification 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

S234 Authentication of documents 
Executive Director 
(Governance) 

S234(2) 
Statutory Notices under 
various Public Health and 
associated legislation 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability) 

S236(9) & 
(10) 

Service of Byelaws on other 
Authorities 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

S238 Certification of Byelaws 
Executive Director 
(Governance) 

Schedule 14 
Para 25(7) 

Certification of resolutions - 
Para 25 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

S248 (2) Keeping roll of Freeman Chief Executive 

Schedule 12 
Para 4(2)(b) 

Signature of summons to 
Council 

Chief Executive 

Schedule 12 
Para 4 (3) 

Receipt of notices regarding 
addresses which Summons 
to meeting are to be sent 

Chief Executive 

Schedule 16 
Para 28 

Receipt of deposit lists of 
protected buildings 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability) 

N/A 

Any reference in any local 
statutory provision to the 
Treasurer of a specified 
Council or the Treasurer of a 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

Page 144



specified Borough which, by 
virtue of order made under 
Section 254 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, or the 
Local Government Act 1992, 
is to be construed as a 
reference to the Proper 
Officer of the Council 

N/A 

Any reference in any 
enactment passed before or 
during the 1971/72 session of 
Parliament other than the 
Local Government Act 1972 
or in any instrument made 
before 26th October 1972 to 
the Treasurer or a Treasurer 
of a Borough which virtue of 
any provision of the said Act 
is to be construed as a 
reference to the Proper 
Officer of the Council 

Executive Director 
(Finance) 

Local Government 
Act 1974 

S30(5) 
Notice of Local Government 
Ombudsman report 

Chief Executive 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 
1976 

S41 
Certification of copies of 
resolutions, Minutes, other 
documents 

Chief Executive 

Local Government 
Act 1972 

S191 
Functions in respect of 
Ordnance Survey 

Director of Economy and 
Environment 

 S204(3) 
Receipt of application for 
licence under Licensing Act 
1964 

Director of Economy and 
Environment 

 S234(2) 
Statutory Notices under 
various Public Health and 
associated legislation 

Director of Economy and 
Environment 

 
Schedule 16 
Para 28 

Receipt of deposit lists of 
protected buildings 

Director of Economy and 
Environment 

Rent (Agriculture) 
Act 1976 

All 

Provision of alternative 
accommodation 
Regeneration and 
Architecture 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Local Authorities 
Cemeteries Order 
1977 

All Officer of the burial authority 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

All Registrar for various matters Executive Director 

Page 145



relating to cremation Health 
and to nominate a Medical 
Referee and Deputy 
Referees under the 
regulations 

(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Cremation 
Regulations 

All 

Registrar for various matters 
relating to cremation Health 
and to nominate a Medical 
Referee and Deputy 
Referees under the 
regulations 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Rent Act 1977 S15 

Certificates of provision of 
suitable alternative 
Regeneration and 
Architecture Part IV 
accommodation 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Highways Act 
1980 

S37(5) 
Deposit of Certificate of 
Dedication or copy order 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S205(3) 
Preparation of specification 
estimate and provisional 
appointment 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S205(3) 
Certification of copies of 
resolution and approved 
documents 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S210(2) 

Certifications of document 
giving details of estimate and 
consequential amendment of 
provisional appointment 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S211(1) Making final appointment 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S216(2) & (3) 
Settlement of proportion of 
amount 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 

Page 146



Economy and 
Environment 

Greater 
Manchester Act 
1981 

S60(5)(a) 

Receipt of objections to 
proposals to designate 
places for touting, hawking, 
photographing etc. 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

Rates Act 1984 S7 Certification of rate 
Executive Director 
(Finance) 

Building Act 1984 

S61(2) Repair etc., of drain 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

S78 

To act as “the surveyor” 
empowered to take and 
authorise emergency action 
in respect of damage to 
dangerous buildings, walls 
etc. 

To order the demolition of 
buildings rendered 
dangerous by damage, 
without prior authorisation of 
the Council 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Public Health 
(Control of 
Diseases) Act 
1984 

S11(1)  
S11(3)  
S18(1)  
S20(1)  
S21(1)  
S22(1)  
S23(2)  
S24(1)  
S26(2)  
S29(4)  
S30(2)  
S31(1)  
S32(1)  
S34(3), (5)  
S35(1)  
S36(1)  
S37(1)  
S38(1)  
S39(1), (3)  
S40  
S41(1)  
S42(1) 
S43(1)  
S48(1) 
S50(2)(b)  
S51(1) 

Control of Diseases (various) 

Head of Greater 
Manchester Health 
Protection Unit his/her 
duly authorised nominees 
and the Director of Public 
Health  

Formatted Table

Formatted Table

Page 147



Weights and 
Measures Act 
1985 

S72 
Chief Inspector (Weights and 
Measures) 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Local Elections 
(Principal Areas) 
Rule 1986 

Rule 44 
Receipt from Returning 
Officer of names of persons 
elected to Council 

Chief Executive 

Rule 46, 47 
Receipt from Returning 
Officer of election documents 

Chief Executive 

Rule 48, 49, 
51 

Retention of election 
documents and making them 
available for public inspection 

Chief Executive 

Elections 

N/A 

Registration Officer for any 
constituency or part of a 
constituency coterminous 
with or contained in the 
Tameside Metropolitan 
Borough 

Chief Executive 

N/A 

Returning Officer for the 
election of Councillors for the 
Tameside Metropolitan 
Borough 

Chief Executive 

N/A 

Officers who in the event of 
the Chief Executive being for 
any reason unable to act or 
in his absence authorised to 
undertake the full range of 
duties 

Executive Director 
(Governance) and Head 
of Democratic Services 

The Public Health 
(Infectious 
Diseases) 
Regulations 1988 

Regs 6 
Regs 8  
Regs 9  
Regs 10  
Regs 11  
Regs 12  
Regs 13  
Schedule 3 & 
4 

Infectious Diseases 
Head of the Greater 
Manchester Health 
Protection Unit 

Milk and Dairies 
(General) 
Regulations 1988 

Part VII 
(Regulations 
18 to 20) 

Statutory Provision 
Pasteurisation Orders 

Head of the Greater 
Manchester Health 
Protection Unit and 
his/her duly authorised 
nominees 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

S2 
Receipt of list of Politically 
Restricted Posts 

Chief Executive 

S19 
Members interests - 
notification 

Chief Executive 

S15, 16, 17 
Receipt of notices relating to 
Political Groups 

Chief Executive 

Formatted Table

Page 148



Environmental 
Protection Act 
1990 

S149 Stray dogs 

Executive Director 
(Economic Growth, 
Investment and 
Sustainability)Director of 
Economy and 
Environment 

Council Tax 
(Administration 
and Enforcement) 
Regulations 1992 

Reg 7 
Service of Attachment of 
Earnings Orders 

Executive Director 
(Governance) 

The Local 
Authorities 
(Executive 
Arrangements) 
(Access to 
Information 
(England) 
Regulations 2000 

Regs 3 and 4 

Recording of collective 
Executive Decisions 
Verification etc. of Mayoral 
Petitions 

Chief Executive 

The Local 
Authorities 
(Standing Orders) 
(England) 
Regulations 2000 

Regs 3 and 4 
and Schedule 
1 

Provision relating to the 
appointment and dismissal of 
staff 

Chief Executive 

 

Formatted Table

Page 149



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 1 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

 

 

PART 4 

 
 
 
 
 

(H)  CONTRACT PROCEDURE 
RULES 

 
  

Page 150



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 2 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents  

1. An Introduction to the Contract Procedure Rules ................................................................. 3 

2. Basic Principles and Responsibilities .................................................................................... 4 

3. Relevant Contracts ................................................................................................................ 5 

4. The Procurement Process ..................................................................................................... 7 

4.1 Steps Prior to Purchase ............................................................................................... 7 

4.2 Calculating the Total Value of a Contract .................................................................... 8 

4.3 Supporting Local Businesses ....................................................................................... 8 

4.4 Purchase of Goods/Services/Works ............................................................................ 8 

4.5 Pre-Tender Market Research & Consultation ............................................................ 10 

4.6 Standards and Award Criteria .................................................................................... 10 

4.7 Invitations to Tender and Quotations ......................................................................... 11 

4.8 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures .......................................................... 12 

4.9 Submission and Receipt of Tenders and Quotations ................................................ 12 

4.10 Opening Tenders and Quotations ............................................................................ 13 

4.11 Errors and Discrepancies in Tenders....................................................................... 13 

4.12 Evaluation of Tenders .............................................................................................. 13 

4.13 Contract Award ......................................................................................................... 14 

4.14 De-briefing of Bidders ............................................................................................... 15 

4.15 Complaints and Challenges ..................................................................................... 15 

5. Variations to the Rules ......................................................................................................... 16 

6. Contracts .............................................................................................................................. 18 

7 Managing Risks .................................................................................................................... 21 

8. Contract Management ......................................................................................................... 22 

9. Records ................................................................................................................................ 23 

10. Disposal of Assets ............................................................................................................. 23 

11. Contracts of no cost to Council ......................................................................................... 23 

Page 151



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 3 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

1. An Introduction to the Contract Procedure Rules 

 

1.1  These Contract Procedure Rules (‘the Rules’) are intended to promote good 

purchasing practice, public accountability and deter corruption. Following the Rules 

will result in open and transparent procurement practices that will contribute towards 

excellence in financial management and also provide a full audit trail to counter any 

allegations that a purchase has been made unfairly, incorrectly or fraudulently.  

1.2  The Rules must be followed by the Council and its strategic partners where 

contractually binding. The Rules must also be followed by arms length organisations 

when they are entering into contracts on behalf of the Council.  

1.3  These Rules must be considered along with the Council’s Financial Regulations and 

Scheme of Delegation.  

1.4 The Service Director Finance and Procurement and the Deputy Chief Executive and 

Monitoring Officer are responsible for keeping the Rules under review and may make 

amendments to them from time to time subject to the correct approval. The Service 

Director Finance and Procurement is also responsible for monitoring compliance with 

the Rules and to undertake an annual review of the Rules.  

 

Further Information 

Further advice can be sought from Corporate Procurement or Corporate Services: 

Corporate Procurement  - email: corporate.procurement@rochdale.gov.uk 

     tel: 01706 925479 

 

Corporate Services -  email:  legal@rochdale.gov.uk 

     tel:  01706 924712/4734 

 

 

Page 152

mailto:corporate.procurement@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:legal@rochdale.gov.uk


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 4 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

2. Basic Principles and Responsibilities  

 

2.1 Basic Principles  

The Council must procure goods, works and services in accordance with strict rules imposed 

by European, national and internal rules and regulations.  The Council is not always able to 

act in the same way that a private individual or commercial business may act because it is 

subject to specific requirements relating to the spending of public money. 

2.1.1 All purchasing and disposal procedures conducted by the Council must satisfy many 

different requirements, including: 

a. Achieving best value for all public money spent; 

b. Being consistent with the highest standards of integrity;  

c. Following the Council’s Anti-Bribery Policy and Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy; 

d. Ensuring fairness and transparency in allocating public contracts; 

e. Complying with UK & EU law and all other legal requirements; 

f. Ensuring that non-commercial considerations do not influence any contracting 

decision; 

g. Supporting the Council’s corporate and departmental aims and policies;  

h. Meeting the Council’s Data Protection, Information Security and Freedom of 

Information standards. 

2.1.2  This list is indicative but not exhaustive and it is the officer’s responsibility to ensure 

compliance against the areas listed above and any further service specific or Council 

requirements.  

 

2.2 The Role of Officers Undertaking Procurement Activity 

2.2.1  Officers responsible for any purchasing activity must comply with these Rules, along 

with any guidance and updates provided by Corporate Procurement. The latest 

information is available on the Council’s intranet. The Financial Regulations, the 

Scheme of Delegation and all National and EU requirements must also be met before 

entering into any binding legal requirements. Officers must ensure that any agents, 

consultants and contractual partners acting on their behalf also comply. 

2.2.2  Officers must: 

a. Follow the Rules when purchasing goods, services and works; 

b. Have proper regard for all necessary legal, financial and professional advice; 

c. Declare any personal interest in a contract, financial or otherwise;  

d. Obtain all requisite approvals and ensure budgetary provision is in place before 

placing an order or raising a purchase order for any supplies, services or works;  

e. Check whether there is an existing corporate contract that can be used before 

seeking to award another contract; where a suitable contract exists this must be 

Page 153

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 5 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

used unless there is an justified reason not to and an exemption has been 

approved; See Section 5 of these Rules for further information; 

f. Give due regard to the local economy, the economic social and environmental 

wellbeing and value for the borough and any other sustainability factors; 

g. All orders are to be matched with an official Purchase Order and all other 

requirements of the Financial Regulations from the Council’s Financial 

Management System. 

h. Ensure that the Council obtains “Best Value” in all its contracts by having regard 

to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness  

i. Carry out a Best Value consultation with service users and stakeholders prior to 

outsourcing council services; 

j. Keep a detailed record of the process used to procure a contract  

 

2.2.3  When any employee either of the Council or of a service provider may be affected by 

any transfer arrangement, Officers must ensure that the Transfer of Undertaking Protection 

of Employment (TUPE) issues are considered and obtain human resources (HR)/legal 

advice before proceeding with inviting tenders or quotations. Officers should also seek the 

necessary approvals regarding TUPE and seek guidance from Corporate Services if unsure. 

 

2.3 The Role of Executive Directors/Service Directors/Senior Management in 

Managing those Undertaking Procurement Activity  

2.3.1  Executive Directors/Service Directors/Senior Management must ensure that their 

staff: 

a. Comply with the Contract Procedure Rules; the Financial Regulations and the 

Scheme of Delegation to Officers; 

b.  For ALL contracts:  

Send electronic copies of all signed contracts and any incidental documentation 

to Corporate Procurement for storage on the Council’s tender portal, The Chest; 

c.  Keep records of any exemptions to the Contract Procedure Rules and: 

d.  For ALL variations to contracts:  

Send electronic copies of any amended contracts and incidental documentation 

to Corporate Procurement for storage on the Council’s tender portal, The Chest. 

2.4 The Role of Members 

2.4.1  Members should refer to the Member Code of Conduct. 

3. Relevant Contracts 

3.1 What is a relevant contract? 

3.1.1  All relevant contracts for goods, services or works must comply with the Rules. A 

relevant contract is any arrangement made by, or on behalf of, the Council for the 

Page 154



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 6 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

carrying out of works or for the supply of goods, materials or services. These include 

arrangements for, but not limited to: 

a. Works; 

b. The supply or disposal of products or goods; 

c. The hire, rental or lease of goods or equipment; 

d. The provision of consultancy or other professional services; 

e. The delivery of services 

f. The ongoing provision of goods, services and/or works via a framework 

arrangement.  

3.1.2  Relevant contracts do not include: 

a. Contracts of employment or service which make an individual a direct employee 

or officer of the Council; 

b. Agreements regarding the acquisition, disposal, or transfer of land provided only 

that there are no associated obligations to carry out works (e.g. development) on that 

land. 

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

 

Page 155



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 7 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

4. The Procurement Process 

4.1 Steps Prior to Purchase 

4.1.1  The Officer must confirm that they have the requisite authority to advertise, award the 

contract, (please see Section 4.3) and have the contract signed (please see Section 6.2). 

4.1.2  The Officer must appraise the purchase in a manner commensurate with its 

complexity and value. The Officer must also take into account any guidance provided 

by Corporate Procurement, by: 

a. Considering value for money and the Council’s Aims; 

b. Appraising the need for the expenditure and its priority; 

c. Defining the objectives of the purchase; 

d. Assessing any risks associated with the purchase and how to manage them; 

e. Considering what procurement method is most likely to achieve the purchasing 

objectives; 

f. Drafting  a detailed scope of services/ specification; 

g. Using the Council’s standard terms and conditions where possible or a 

recognised industry standard template document including the Council’s 

additional public sector clauses or seeking legal advice for a bespoke contract; 

h. Giving consideration to the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the 

borough and the benefit which the procurement process can bring to the 

community. 

 

4.1.3  A completed Procurement Request Form must be sent to Corporate Procurement 

before starting any process to ensure compliance with these Rules. A link is provided 

at the end of this Section. 

 

Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

 

4.1.4 When proposing to procure or making arrangements for procuring a service contract 

(including Part B services contracts) where the Estimated Value exceeds the EU 

Threshold the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 places a duty on the Council 

to consider how what is being procured may improve the economic, environmental 

and social wellbeing of the borough of Rochdale and also to consider whether it 

should consult on these issues. 

 

NOTE – Where a strategic partnership is in place advice must be sought from the 

Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer on how to proceed with the award 

and/or any tender process for the same or similar services as those specified under 

the strategic partnership contract.   

Page 156



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 8 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

 

4.2 Calculating the Estimated Value of a Contract   

4.2.1  The Contract Procedure Rules apply to the aggregate value of the contract.  The 

Council is not allowed to split contracts to avoid public procurement rules. Therefore 

all contracts should be advertised according to their total value and Officers must 

calculate the Estimated Value (excluding VAT) of any contract or purchase.  This 

should be calculated as follows: 

 

Yearly contract value X Contract Period in years 

(including any option to extend) = Total value. 

 

4.2.2 These Rules apply where there are no other procedures which take precedence over 

these Rules, e.g. existing contracts or where external funding has been obtained with 

supporting contractual requirements. If in doubt, or where there are complex 

arrangements which mean that it is difficult to calculate the Estimated Value of a 

contract requirement, Officers must seek the advice of Corporate Procurement or 

Corporate Services. 

 

4.3 Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) 

4.3.1 Officers should carefully review the required specifications of any Contract to ensure 

that small and medium sized enterprises are not being disadvantaged in their ability 

to tender for goods, works or services with the Council. For example, consider 

whether strict requirements in a pre-qualification questionnaire (PQQ) are necessary 

and proportionate to the contract requirement, and whether a PQQ is necessary at 

all. 

4.4 Purchase of Goods/Services/Works  

4.4.1  The following tables apply to all purchases of goods and services (Table 1) and 

works (Table 2) that have adequate budget provision, value for money can be 

demonstrated and, where necessary, Cabinet has approved both the advertising of 

the tender and award or variation through the Council’s procurement process. For 

any expenditure not in budget or approval from Cabinet/Council has not been 

granted, the Service must obtain the relevant approval before commencing any 

tender or quote. Where the total value for a purchase is within the values in the first 

column below, the procedure in the second column must be followed. Approval to 

tender and award contracts is received from the persons specified in the third 

column.  

 

 

 

Page 157



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 9 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

TABLE 1. Goods and Services Contracts 

Total Value 
(excl. VAT) 

Procurement Procedure Approval Required 

Up to £10,000  Obtain quote through The Chest. Must invite a 
minimum of two quotes and receive at least 
one quote back.  

Service Director or 
delegated Officer 

£10,001 - 
£50,000 

Obtain quote through The Chest. Must invite a 
minimum of two quotes and receive at least 
one quote back. 

Service Director 

£50,001 – EU 
Threshold 
(Click here for 
the current 
threshold) 

Invitation to tender on The Chest.  
The tender should be open to anyone wishing 
to tender. If exceptional circumstances make 
this impractical and with the approval of the 
Head of Procurement a minimum of five 
suppliers must be invited  

In all cases receive at least two tenders back. 

Service Director in 
consultation with 
Service Directors, 
Finance and 
Procurement and 
Deputy Chief Executive 
and Monitoring Officers  

Above EU 
Threshold 
(Click here for 
the current 
threshold) 

Follow EU procedure, or where this does not 
apply Invite tenders in compliance with the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2006. 

Up to £250k 

Service Director in 
consultation with 
Service Directors, 
Finance and 
Procurement and 
Deputy Chief Executive 
and Monitoring Officer 

Over £250k 

Cabinet 

 

TABLE 2. Works Contracts 

Total Value 

(excl. VAT) 

Procurement Procedure Approval 

Required 

Below EU Threshold (Click here 

for the current threshold) 

Obtain quote/tender through The 

Chest in line with the Rochdale 

Construction Process. Must invite 

a minimum of five and receive at 

least two quotes back. Where this 

is not applicable apply for an 

exemption to invite tenders based 

on best practice. 

Up to £250k 

Service Director 
in consultation 
with Service 
Directors, 
Finance and 
Procurement and 
Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Monitoring Officer 
Over £250k 

Cabinet 

Above EU Threshold (Click here 

for the current threshold) 

Use the relevant North West 

Construction Hub Framework. 

Where this is not applicable apply 

for an exemption to invite tenders 

in accordance with the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2006. 

Cabinet 

Page 158

http://www.ojec.com/Threshholds.aspx
http://www.ojec.com/Threshholds.aspx
http://www.ojec.com/Threshholds.aspx
http://www.ojec.com/Threshholds.aspx


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 10 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

4.4.2  On occasion where there are not enough suitably qualified suppliers to meet the 

requirements of Table 1 and/or 2, all suitably qualified candidates must be invited to 

tender. So for example, for a goods contract of £10,000, if only two suitable suppliers 

can be found, both must be invited and a note placed on The Chest to evidence the 

research undertaken.  

4.4.4 If the minimum number of bids is not received, and/or there is insufficient local 

supplier interest please consult Corporate Procurement for further advice. 

4.4.5 An Officer must not enter into separate contracts nor select a method of calculating 

the total value in order to minimise the application of these Rules. Please refer to 

Section 4.2 for further information. 

4.4.6 Where the a procedure compliant with the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 is 

required, the Officer shall consult Corporate Procurement and Legal Services. 

 

Further Information 

A Guidance note on choosing suppliers is available on the Corporate Procurement intranet 

page. 

4.5 Pre-Tender Market Research and Consultation 

4.5.1  The Officer responsible for the purchase may consult potential suppliers prior to the 

issue of the Invitation to Tender in general terms about the nature, level and standard 

of the supply, contract packaging and other relevant matters, provided this does not 

prejudice any potential candidate, but the Officer must not seek or accept technical 

advice on the preparation of an Invitation to Tender or quotation from anyone who 

may have a commercial interest in the tender, as this may prejudice the equal 

treatment of all potential candidates or distort competition. Please seek advice from 

Corporate Procurement in all instances where pre-tender consultation is proposed.  

4.5.2  Advice on the use of Expressions of Interest can be provided by Procurement as part 

of the process to identify potential bidders. 

 

4.6 Standards and Award Criteria  

4.6.1   Before inviting tenders, the Officer must ascertain any relevant technical standards 

(e.g. European standards or British standards) which apply to the subject matter of 

the contract. The Officer must include those standards which are necessary properly 

to describe the required quality. Corporate Services must be consulted if it is 

proposed to use standards other than European or International standards. 

4.6.2   The Officer must define award criteria that are appropriate to the purchase and 

designed to secure an outcome giving Value for Money for the Council. The basic 

criteria shall be: 

a.  ‘Most economically advantageous’, where considerations other than price also 

apply; 

b.  ‘Lowest price’ where payment is to be made by the Council; 

Page 159

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 11 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

c.  ‘Highest price’ if payment is to be received. 

4.6.3 Whilst ensuring that the need to retain transparency and fairness in the evaluation 

process officers should include criteria that reward suppliers who promote the local 

economy for example, via the use of local sub contractors or other value added 

activity. Please seek advice from Corporate Procurement to ensure any activity is in 

line with the latest legislation and best practice and is non-discriminatory. 

4.6.4  Advice will be provided by Procurement and Corporate Services in defining ‘Most 

economically advantageous’ if this is the selected criteria.  

4.6.5  For the process to award a contract, please refer to Section 4.13. 

 

4.7 Invitations to Tender and Quotations 

4.7.1  All Quotes and Tenders must be advertised via The Chest using templates that are 

available from Corporate Procurement and must have a completed Procurement 

Request Form approved in advance of the start of any advertisement. Please see the 

end of Section 4 for a link to the Procurement Request Form on the Council’s 

intranet. 

4.7.2   The Invitation to Tender shall state that no Tender will be considered unless it is 

received by the date and time stipulated in the Invitation to Tender. Any Tenders 

received after this date and time will not be evaluated. Please note, the date and time 

of receipt will be as recorded via The Chest, not the individuals computer.  

4.7.3   All Invitations to Tender shall include the following: 

a. A specification that describes the Council’s requirements in sufficient detail to 

enable the submission of competitive offers. Templates and guidance can be 

obtained from Corporate Procurement;  

b. A requirement for bidders to declare that the Tender content, price or any other 

figure or particulars concerning the Tender have not been disclosed by the bidder 

to any other party (except where such a disclosure is made in confidence for a 

necessary purpose); 

c. A requirement for bidders to fully complete and sign all Tender documents 

including a form of Tender and certificates relating to canvassing and non-

collusion; 

d. Notification that Tenders are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are 

compiled at the bidder’s expense; 

e. A description of the award procedure and, unless defined in a prior 

advertisement, a definition of the award criteria and sub-criteria (if any) in 

objective terms with an indication of the relative weighting of each criterion and 

sub-criterion for evaluation purposes. Please see Section 4.6 or speak to 

Procurement for further advice. 

Page 160



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 12 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

f. The method by which any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted Tenders 

is to be dealt with; in particular, whether the overall price prevails over the rates in 

the Tender or vice versa; 

g. Guidance and support on how the Chest system works and where they can get 

help; 

h. The relevant OJEU contract notice reference, where the opportunity has been 

advertised via OJEU. 

 

4.7.4   All Invitations to Tender or quotations must specify the goods, service or works that 

are required, together with the terms and conditions of contract that will apply. 

4.7.5  The Invitation to Tender or quotation must state that the Council is not bound to 

accept any quotation or Tender. 

4.7.6  All candidates invited to Tender or quote must be issued with the same information at 

the same time and subject to the same conditions. Any supplementary information 

must be given on the same basis. All communications must be recorded on the 

Chest through the use of the Question and Answer facility.  

 

4.8 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures 

4.8.1  Providing clarification of an Invitation to Tender to potential or actual candidates or 

seeking clarification of a Tender, whether via the Chest or by way of a meeting, is 

permitted. Discussions with bidders after submission of a Tender and before the 

award of a contract (post Tender clarification) can only be with a view to clarifying 

mistakes or errors in the Tender submitted, operational provisions or terms and 

conditions of contract. Where post Tender clarification discussions are to take place 

with a supplier, all bidders involved in the respective exercise must be notified and all 

information must be documented by the Officers conducting the clarification and 

recorded on The Chest. 

4.8.2  Discussions with bidders after submission of a Tender and before the award of a 

contract with a view to obtaining adjustments in scope, price, delivery or content (i.e. 

post-Tender negotiations) may distort competition and should not be carried out 

without advice from Legal Services. 

4.8.3  Where post-Tender clarification results in a fundamental change to the specification 

(or contract terms) the contract must not be awarded but re-Tendered, following the 

guidance from Corporate Procurement. 

 

4.9 Submission and Receipt of Tenders and Quotations  

4.9.1  Candidates must be given an adequate period in which to prepare and submit a 

proper Quotation or Tender, consistent with the complexity of the contract 

requirement. The Public Contracts Regulations 2006 lay down mandatory minimum 

Page 161



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 13 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

time periods which you must follow. Please request a timeline from Corporate 

Procurement. 

4.9.2  All Tenders must be submitted electronically through the Chest. Tenders received by 

any other means must be rejected unless previously agreed by the Head of 

Procurement. 

4.9.3  All tenders must be received on time or they will be rejected (unless there are 

exceptional circumstances beyond the bidder's control in which case consult Legal 

Services).  

 

4.10 Opening Tenders and Quotations 

4.10.1 Tenders are to be opened in accordance with the following table, Table 3. 

 

TABLE 3 

Value of 

Contract/ Quote 

Officers required to be present Expected 

Duration 

Under £5k One Procurement Officer  As agreed with 

Procurement Lead 

Officer 

£5k- £50k Head of Procurement or appointed deputy As agreed with 

Procurement Lead 

Officer 

Over £50k Nominated representative of the Deputy Chief 

Executive and Monitoring Officer to remove 

electronic seal and tender submissions to be 

verified and released by Lead Procurement Officer 

following compliance checks 

Within 5 working 

days of the 

deadline unless 

otherwise agreed 

in advance 

 

4.11 Errors and Discrepancies in Tenders 

4.11.1 Please refer to Section 4.8, Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures. This is not 

to be used as a second opportunity to submit a price. If a bidder withdraws, the 

remaining tenders should be considered for acceptance in the usual way. 

 

4.12 Evaluation of Tenders 

4.12.1 Adequate time must be allowed for Tenders to be evaluated. For contracts under 

£50k, at least three to five working days should be allowed; For contracts over £50k 

at least five to ten working days should be allowed; 

Page 162



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 14 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

4.12.2 Officers evaluating bids must be appropriately qualified to evaluate their allocated 

section of the Tenders.  They should be required to record detailed objective 

feedback on each bid and the relative advantages of the successful bid.   

4.12.3 All compliant tenders must be checked to ensure they are arithmetically correct. If 

arithmetical errors are found they should be notified to the Bidder, who should be 

requested to confirm or withdraw their Tender. Alternatively, if the rates in the 

Tender, rather than the overall price, were stated within the Tender invitation as 

being dominant, an amended Tender price may be requested to accord with the rates 

given by the Bidder. 

4.12.4 All evaluations should be recorded on The Chest. The Service must then confirm to 

Corporate Procurement that the contract can be awarded. A Post-Tender Report 

template is available for this purpose. 

 

4.13 Contract Award 

4.13.1 For all supplies, works and most service contracts tendered under the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2006, a ten-day ‘standstill period’ must be observed between 

the decision to award and contract conclusion. Once the decision to award a contract 

is made, after you have received all necessary approvals, each bidder must be 

notified in writing on the outcome of the tender process, including the information set 

out in Regulation 32 of the Regulations. If a pre-qualification questionnaire (PQQ) or 

an expression of interest prior to PQQ was used, all those bidders must be given 

feedback at the stage at which they are de-selected from the process. Advice on the 

use of PQQ and expressions of interest can be provided by Procurement. Please see 

Section 4.14 regarding de-briefing bidders. 

4.13.2 Procurement and Corporate Services will provide advice and support with regards to 

Contract award letters, feedback to bidders and the contract Terms and Conditions, 

including any incidental documentation. 

4.13.3 Officers may accept quotations and Tenders received in respect of proposed 

contracts, provided they have been sought and evaluated fully in accordance with 

these Rules and in respect of the Scheme of Delegation. 

4.13.4 Procurement will be responsible for sending out the contract award letter and contract 

for signing by the winning contractor(s) via The Chest. Once signed, the Head of 

Procurement or Corporate Services will arrange for the contract to be signed by the 

Council having checked that the appropriate authorisation is in place. 

4.13.5  The Service must ensure any contract documentation is stored electronically on The 

Chest and for contracts over £50k, a signed original is sent to Corporate Services. 

See Section 6 for further information. 

4.13.6 If the amount of the tender proposed to be accepted exceeds the amount of the 

budgetary provision, the tender should not be accepted until the Service Director, 

Page 163



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 15 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

Finance and Procurement are satisfied that budget provision has been made for the 

additional cost. 

4.13.7 The service must ensure that the contract provides for the supplier to have an 

insurance policy, which can be inspected during the contract period.  

4.13.8 For procurements which are regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 

(including Part B services), a contract award notice must be sent to OJEU no later 

than 48 days after the conclusion of the contract.  Contact Corporate Procurement for 

further information on this important step. 

 

4.14 De-briefing of Bidders 

4.14.1 The confidentiality of quotations, Tenders and the identity of candidates must be 

preserved at all times and information about one candidate’s Tender submission 

must not be given to another candidate. 

4.14.2 The Officer must notify all candidates simultaneously and as soon as possible of the 

intention to award the contract to the successful candidate and this should be done 

via The Chest. 

4.14.3 Advice must be sought from Procurement and Corporate Services in all instances 

before de-briefing bidders. Feedback must provide sufficient justification for the 

Council’s decision making process. All feedback should provide an objective analysis 

of the bidder's response to the relevant criteria and the relative advantages of the 

successful bidder by way of comparison. 

 

4.15 Complaints and Challenges  

4.15.1 If a complaint is received or if any of the bidders challenge any decisions made under 

these rules, Corporate Services and Corporate Procurement should be notified 

immediately. All complaints must be received via The Chest. No further 

communication should be made without approval from Corporate Services and 

Corporate Procurement. 

 

Further Information 

The following are available on the Council’s intranet: 

 Procurement Request Form for purchases under £10K  

 Procurement Request Form over £10K are available on  

 Guidance notes  

o The Procurement Process  

o Completing the Procurement Request Form 

Page 164

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 16 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

5. Variations to the Rules  

5.1 Overview 

5.1.1  In order to maximise the Council’s efficiency through the procurement process and to 

avoid any resulting contractual delays which could impact upon project delivery, 

delegated authority from Cabinet should always be sought, to advertise, award and 

authorise signature to the contracts. 

5.1.2  In addition delegated authority from Cabinet may also be required for existing 

contracts which require variations, extensions or an exemption from these Rules. For 

operational reasons, a variation, extension or exemption may be required to minimise 

costs and allow the Service to consider longer term requirements given the high level 

of change which the Council is currently facing. 

5.1.3  In these circumstances, the following may apply: 

 a. A contract may be awarded through an existing framework agreement or 

collaborative agreement where it offers value for money and efficient use of 

resources through avoiding a full EU procurement process. No awards of 

this nature should be sought without considering the local economic 

social and environmental impact. 

b. Extensions/variations/exemptions will only be applied where the following criteria is 

fulfilled. The request must be: 

I. Compliant with EU directives, the Public Contracts Regulation 2006, other 

applicable National legislation and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules; 

II. Within an existing budget and value for money can be demonstrated; 

III. Approved by the relevant Service Director(s) and a relevant exemption from 

the Contract Procedure Rules is agreed in advance with the Service Director. 

IV. Consideration  has been given to its impact on the local economy 

 

NOTE - no exemptions from EU legislation are possible. 

 

5.2 Procedure  

5.2.1    To apply for an exemption or an extension to contract, you must fill in the Exemption 

Form available on the Council’s Intranet. This form MUST be signed (electronically or 

by hand) in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. It should be sent to 

those with authority to approve exemptions as set out in the Council’s Scheme of 

Delegation before forwarding to Corporate Procurement. 

5.2.2   All officers must ensure that the form provides full details of the request and any 

supplementary documentation to support the request. Incomplete forms will be 

returned and could result in a delay in the request being considered. 

5.2.3   Applications for exemptions where the value is under £50k can be signed by the 

Head of Procurement. Applications where the value is over £50k must be signed by 

Page 165

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532
http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 17 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

the Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer. Any variation where the value is 

over £250k must be approved by Cabinet 

5.2.4   No commitment should be made to the supplier prior to authorisation and an 

exemption or extension cannot be given where this would contravene EU 

procurement rules 

5.2.5 A record of the decision approving an exemption and the reasons for it will be stored 

electronically on the Council’s tender portal, The Chest, for ALL requests and a hard 

copy of the relevant contract and incidental documentation for contracts over £50k 

must be kept in the Deed Room by Corporate Services.  

5.2.6 If an exemption has been granted to these rules, the eProcurement guidance must 

be followed and a Purchase Order raised accordingly. Failure to do so could be a 

disciplinary offence. For further guidance please refer to the Financial Regulations. 

5.2.7 The Head of Procurement is responsible for holding a complete record of all 

exemptions and is expected to report to Cabinet annually. 

 

5.3. Exemptions  

5.3.1  Exemptions will only be considered for the following reasons 

a. The nature of the market for the works to be carried out, or the goods or services 

to be provided, has been investigated and is demonstrated to be such that a 

departure from the requirements of the Rules is justifiable, for example, if there is 

no real competition; 

b. The contract offered by a supplier is to undertake investigative spend and/or 

contract analysis with the outcome of achieving savings. 

c. The contract is for works, supplies or services which are required in 

circumstances of extreme urgency which could not reasonably have been 

foreseen; or 

d. Extending an existing contract; it must be in our interests to negotiate with the 

existing supplier and must be tied to the Scheme of Delegation 

e. Price control- if the price is controlled by trade organisations or government order 

and there is no reasonable alternative; 

f. Repairs or parts — if the only option is to repair or buy new parts for existing 

equipment or buildings, and there is only one supplier; 

g. Purchase is to be made by auction (including online auctions) or at any public 

fairs or markets; 

h. Purchase is for a patented article demonstrably available from only one supplier 

on the market; 

i. The Purchase has been agreed by the Cabinet or ELT (Executive Leadership 

Team) to be for the good of the Council; 

j. There are other circumstances that are truly exceptional. 

5.3.2  To apply for a variation or extension, please see Section 5.2, above. 

Page 166



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 18 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

 

5.4 Variations and Extensions  

5.4.1  Subject to any statutory restrictions and compliance with these Rules, a Service 

Manager may authorise the following, in conjunction with Corporate Procurement, 

extensions and variations to an existing contract, either:  

a. An extension for a particular period provided for within the terms and conditions 

of the contract (but subject to satisfactory outcomes of contract monitoring); or  

b. A single extension of the contract by up to six months, or half the contract term 

(whichever is less and provided that the value of the extension is less than the 

applicable EU procurement threshold); and 

c. Any other variation, and, if relevant a consequent change in price, determined in 

accordance with the contract terms. 

5.4.2 In any other circumstances the Service Manager may vary or extend a contract, 

providing that to do so is consistent with the provisions of Financial Regulations. 

5.4.3 Contracts procured under the EU Regulations must not be extended or varied without 

consulting the Head of Procurement.  

5.4.4  It is good practice to detail within the original contract if it can be extended, along with 

details of how long the extension is in place for. 

5.4.5  To apply for a variation or extension, please see Section 5.2, above. 

 

Further Information 

The following are available on the Council’s intranet: 

 Exemption Form  

 Guidance note on Exemptions and Extensions 

 Financial Regulations 

 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

6. Contracts  

6.1 Documentation 

6.1.1  All relevant contracts must be in writing and must set out the parties’ obligations, 

rights and risk allocations. Advice must be sought from Corporate Services as to the 

form of contract.  

6.1.2  All relevant contracts, irrespective of value, shall clearly specify: 

a. What is to be supplied (i.e. the works, materials, services, matters or things to be 

furnished, had or done) 

b. The provisions for payment (i.e. the price to be paid and when) 

c. The time, or times, within which the contract is to be performed 

d. The provisions for the Council to terminate the contract including break clauses. 

e. The provision for collateral warranties from sub contractors. 

Page 167

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532
http://intranet/i2%20documents/Impermanent/Financial%20Regulations.doc


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 19 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

 

6.1.3  The Council’s terms and conditions of contract must be used wherever possible 

rather than the suppliers. If you intend to use the supplier's terms advice must be 

sought from Corporate Services.  

 

6.1.4  The formal advice of Corporate Services must be sought for the following  contracts: 

a. Where the Total Value exceeds £50k 

b. Contracts involving leasing arrangements 

c. Where it is proposed to use a supplier's own terms 

d. Contracts that are complex in any other way 

 

6.1.5  Procurement will provide further advice on contract specific specifications. 

6.2 Contract Formalities 

6.2.1  Once the Service Director or delegated Officer has accepted the winning bidder, all 

agreements shall be completed as follows in Table 4, below. 

 

Table 4. The Signing of Contracts 

Value Method of Completion By 

Under £5k Standard Catalogue Orders 

Order your selected item(s) from the standard catalogues 

provided by Procurement. 

One-Off or Non-Standard Orders 

A purchase order must be raised containing the standard 

terms and conditions of contract between the Council and the 

supplier and The Chest reference number for all one-off 

and/or non-standard orders. In some instances, a Government 

Purchase Card may be used for purchases. Please refer to 

the Purchase Card guidance on the intranet for further 

information. 

Service Director 

or delegated 

Officer 

Between 

£5k and 

£50k 

By signature Head of 

Procurement 

£50k and 

above 

Under Seal  Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
Monitoring 
Officer 

 

6.2.2  All relevant contracts must be concluded formally in writing before the supply, service 

or construction work begins, except in exceptional circumstances, and then only with 

the prior approval from the Head of Procurement or Deputy Chief Executive and 

Page 168



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 20 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

Monitoring Officer in line with the values in Table 4, above. A letter of intent is 

insufficient. 

6.2.3A Purchase Order must be raised in the eProcurement system for all orders. Your 

purchase order must contain the standard terms and conditions of contract between 

the Council and the supplier. A quotation and a purchase order will create a legally 

binding contract for contracts whose total value is under £5k. The purchase order is 

used to formalise the terms of the contract.  

 

6.2.4  All orders must be matched with a Purchase Order and be in line with the 

Council’s Financial Regulations. 

 

6.3 Contracts under Signature 

6.3.1  The Officer responsible for securing signature of the contract must ensure that the 

person signing for the other contracting party has authority to bind it. The Officer 

signing the contract on behalf of the Council must check to ensure that he/she has 

the relevant authorisation to sign the contract and, where he/she does not have such 

authority, make the other contracting party aware that this is the case and that further 

approvals/authorisation is needed before the contract can become binding. 

6.4.1 The original contract should be archived and stored off site using the Council’s 

records management system. 

 

6.4 Contracts under Seal  

6.4.1  A contract must be sealed where: 

a. The Council wishes to extend the liability period under the contract and enforce its 

terms for up to 12 years. 

b. The price to be paid or received under the contract is a nominal price and does not 

reflect the value of the goods or services 

c. There is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for the other 

contracting party 

d. The total value of the contract is £50,000 or over 

6.4.2  Where contracts are completed by each side adding their formal seal, such contracts 

shall be attested by an officer so authorised under the Council’s Constitution. 

6.4.3  Every Council sealing will be consecutively numbered, recorded and signed by the 

person witnessing the seal. The seal must not be affixed without the authority of 

Corporate Services, acting under delegated powers. 

6,4.5 The original contract should be archived and stored off site using the Council’s 

records management system. 

 

Page 169



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 21 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

6.5 Transfer of Contracts 

6.5.1 In appropriate circumstances, the Council may agree to transfer a contract by way of 

a novation agreement.  

6.5.2 This decision must be taken by the Cabinet for contracts of a value in excess of 

£250,000 (or the relevant Committee for non-executive functions), and by the 

relevant Service Directors for contracts of a value of up to £250,000. Agreement must 

also be obtained from the Head of Procurement, Service Director Finance and 

Procurement, and Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer. 

6.5.3 The Head of Procurement must hold a complete record of all transfers, and submit an 

annual report to the relevant Cabinet meeting. 

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

The following are available on the Council’s intranet: 

 Financial Regulations  

 Guidance note on the Form of Contract  

7 Managing Risks 

7.1 Prevention of Corruption/ Anti-Bribery  

7.1.1 All Officers must comply with the Rochdale’s Officer Code of Conduct, Anti- Bribery 

Policy and Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and must not invite or accept any gift or 

reward in respect of the award or performance of any contract. High standards of 

conduct are obligatory; it will be for the Officer to prove that anything received was 

not received corruptly. Corrupt behaviour will lead to dismissal.  

 

7.2 Declaration of Interest 

7.2.1 Any interest which may affect the award of a contract under these Rules must be 

declared. Officers must declare to their line manager any interest which could be 

perceived to influence their judgement in contracting matters. Officers must also 

record their interest or any interest held by a close family member in the Staff 

Register of Interests which is updated annually. 

7.2.2 Where an officer has an interest which could influence their judgement in contracting 

matters, he or she must not take part in the procurement process.  

7.2.3 No gifts or hospitality should be accepted from any bidders to any contract being let 

by the Council, and to do so is a disciplinary offence. You must inform the Deputy 

Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer if you are dealing with a contract for the 

Council and have been offered such a gift or hospitality. 

7.2.4 All officers involved in contracting matters must have regard to the Employee Code of 

Conduct which can be obtained from People Management Service. 

 

Page 170

http://intranet/i2PageServer/PageServer.aspx?PID=6f31ce81-dfeb-44d2-a15e-db2220507532
http://intranet/I2%20documents/Services/People%20Management/Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
http://intranet/I2%20documents/Services/People%20Management/Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf


RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 22 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

8. Contract Management 

8.1  All contracts must have a named Council Contract Manager for the entirety of the 

contract. 

8.2  The Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing monitoring and evaluating 

the contract to ensure that its provisions and the services within it are being followed 

and performed as they should be.  

8.3 During the life of the contract, the Contract Manager should monitor the 

contract in respect to the following: 

a. Performance; 

b. Compliance with specification and contract; 

c. Cost; 

d. Any Best Value requirements; 

e. User satisfaction; and 

f. Risk management. 

8.4 Where the contract is to be re-let, this information should be available early enough 

to inform the approach to re-letting the next contract. 

8.5 Corporate Procurement can provide advice on good practice in performance 

management of contracts.  

8.6 All Contracts must be published on Council’s Contract Register in line with the 

Government’s Transparency Agenda. This is currently managed via The Chest.  

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

 

Page 171



RMBC Constitution: Part 4H Page 23 of 23 Revised February 2015 

Contract Procedure Rules 

 

9. Records 

9.1  The following records must be kept on the Chest for a period of six years: 

a. Invitations to quote and quotations 

b. A record of any exemptions to the procurement process and the reasons for 

them 

c. A record of the reason if the lowest price is not accepted 

d. Written records of communications with the successful contractor or an 

electronic record if a written record of the transaction would normally not be 

produced 

9.2  The original signed or sealed contract along with all tender documents should be 

stored electronically on the Councils tender portal, The Chest, and all contracts over 

£50k should bearchived and stored using the Council’s records management 

system..  

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

10. Disposal of Assets 

Goods 

10.1  Please consult Corporate Procurement and the Asset Management Group before 

disposing of any goods to ensure the latest guidance is followed. 

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

11. Contracts of no cost to Council 

11.1  There may be circumstances where a contract arises that involves no cost to the 

Council but a commercial advantage would be gained from it by the company who is 

awarded the contract. In such circumstances advice must be sought from Legal 

Services and Corporate Procurement.  

 

Further Information 

Please refer to Section 1 for contact details. 

 

Page 172


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Nomination of Deputy Mayor 2015/2016
	5 Gambling Act 2005 - Fees
	Gambling Act 2005 - Fees enc. 1

	6 Implications of the approach to licensing of Hackney Carriage vehicles adopted by Rossendale Borough Council
	equality impact assessment template v2

	7 Constitutional Review
	PART 1 - Summary and Explanantion
	PART 2 Articles
	PART 3 -  Responsibility for Functions.doc
	Part 4C  Budget and Policy Framework
	PART 4D - Executive Procedure Rules
	Proper Officer list
	Part 4H - Contract Procedure Rules


